Regular City Council Meeting

Agenda
February 22, 2021

7:30 p.m. Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call
Approval of City Council Minutes: February 8, 2021
Approval of Bills: None
Approval of Agenda

Public Comment
Discussion - Downtown

Fire Chief Report
Police Chief Report

CDBG Public Hearing

I Old Business
1. 2021 CDBG Allocation

II. . New Business
1. Consider Approval of Revised Resolution Establishing Policies and Guidelines for
Granting Poverty Exemption from Payment of Property Taxes
2. City Investment Policy
3. First Reading of Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning Map of the City of South
Lyon Conditionally Rezoning 34.42 acres (Parcel No. 21-30-126-003) from I-1 (Light
Industrial) to R-3 (Single-Family Residential) using the Open Space Preservation

Option
1. Budget
IV.  Public Comment
V.  Manager’s Report
V1.  Council Comments

VII.  Adjournment

*Please see reverse side for rules of conduct for public comment at City Council meetings*



City of South Lyon
Regular City Council Meeting
February 8 2021

Mayor Pelchat called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.
Mayor Pelchat led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call: Mayor Pro Tem Kivell joined the meeting from South Lyon M1, Councilmembers: Dilg joined
the meeting from South Lyon MI, Kennedy joined the meeting from South Lyvon MI, Kurtzweil joined the
meeting from South Lyon MI, Richards joined the meeting from South, Lyon MI and Walton joined the
meeting from South Lyon MI / 4

Also, present; City Manager Zelenak, Attorney Hamameh, Chi/e/f%~i' ovik, Chief Vogel, Finance and Benefit

.. . . . i,
Administrator Tiernan, DDA Director Nate Mack, Superintg '/e/-/.//{%g/mey and Clerk/Treasurer Deaton

teridontay Ar

. N
Absent: Mayor Pelchat ///////////
MINUTES ; ////////
CM 2-1-21 MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES 7 ////////

.

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Dilg //////// .

Motion to approve the minutes a]s{//fgresented //%/ // '
QF /

VOTE: MOTION EARRIED UNANIMOU
BILLS W/%%W/////%/ A ,

CM 2-2-21 MOTION TO APPROVE THE//iILLS//////////

iy /
Motion by Kennedy, supported by ng//}};n ////

i AL, o
VOTE. Motion to app%/ﬁ/}}}/l/féz/// %XA@
{////f/////// % / v
Q232 //////f{/@ %@E DA /%//

M 2321//1\}/(/)/}/;1///3% TO
i’/ ';/;/:,7',_/%/;;,.

#IVJoton to approvg
VOTE-/%//‘[

}1, Sugl%/g//lzg/d by ﬂf%
///;/2%; agend é/}; Presented //%

/// //%/ OTI(%J////I}/;/CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
CONSENT AGENDA

/ 4
1. Resicid {’g//ﬁ

"

gﬁg}on by Ryan Eare from the Cultural Arts Commission

CM 2-4-21 MOTIO {%%;Q%APPRO&/&//?CONSENT AGENDA
Motion by Dllg,@}%?' Kennedy

Motion fo approve4) //é sent agenda as presented

i
VOTE: ’////%%IO’HON CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ryan Lare stated last night at 10:00 he had the privilege of watching SLPD and SL¥D and HVA respond
to arollover crash at Eleven Mile near Colonial Acres. He stated the response time by all departments
were absolutely amazing. He stated there was a fire and if there were injuries, he hopes they get well
soon. Again, he stated the response time was amazing and their dedication to get there at that time of
night was absolutely impressive. He then congratulated Chris Sovik and his department and thanked
Chief Vogel and his department and the towing service and the HVA for their incredible work and due
diligence at 10:30 at night.

2/8/2021



DISCUSSION- Downtown

DDA Director Nate Mack stated he submitted the application for phase 2 of the restaurant relief program
through Oakland County on February 4. He further stated he requested an additional 30% above our
original allocation, the County stated they didn’t expect everyone to participate so they encouraged the
participating communities to request more funding. He then stated he requested 3 hand sanitization
stations that would be in one location, we discussed having one on the trails, and maybe one more
downtown. He then stated he requested to reimburse the costs they have incurred for improving their
sanitation, or anything to accommodate out-door dining, they can submit receipts to us and then we will
evaluate the applications and get them reimbursed based on the amount we receive. He stated we haven’t
been told how much finding we will be allocated. Mr. Mack remmc;/e// everyone that indoor dining
resumed on February 1% at 25% capacity and a 10:00 p.m. curfew H% tated the DDA Board of Directors
is meeting this Thursday via zoom and it will be like an annual b /retreat to discuss the upcoming

v,
goals for 2021. He then stated on January 29 the Lyon Are ////// %/;’{/ f//pree received an award for the best
marketing project in a community over 10,000 from the M o/ / o/ %town Association. He then stated

he isstill working with the applicant for the liquor licor @ 135 £ 1a k@ensure they have all the
information necessary before it comes to Council fg ///?(1 ew. Mr. Mack stateéf /%e have all the
greenhouses out except for one as part of the phas ,,/9/1//1//9 - of the restaurant rehefp;@gram He stated Java
House has decided not to use one, so he is reaching outfm a few ot}}r busmesses tm/see if they would like
to use it, if not Lake Street Tavern said they would use alt, /% %ﬁ[e stated he Wlﬁ/ /é;attendmg the

i

March 26% training program that he is ifi i /hfed with. the oned the vendor ma% not be able to

i / /7 /// /7/
fill the order for the black garbage can It dfs// otthe downtown s trying to find another way to match
them. %%/’/%// 1//////////
////
FIRE CHIEF REPORT / % %///%%%, //////
Chief Vogel stated it l}/ {/;/ i ],}} /(%/ i / Was a second alarm house fire in
Northfield Townshlp, //// Oak T / q / ’ﬁad to deal with the car crash that

//// //
caught fire, He stated 1t e typical )?hen it gets th/ljs cold out He then thanked Nate in the DDA. He

:‘.tated outdog/r/ %@ //%/ %{/\// @es Nate for working with our new Inspector and
rying to // /// 2// /4 ////{ . /;/ )//Jpl‘e(}r /ates them working together for trying to figure
out what Zﬁfe for ou t // ur bus 111/9/93/ ack open. He then stated we had part two of
the prom // nal system to % él t sts for Ciéutenant and 1 for Sergeant and he thanked
Councllme e Kennedy fo tmg Wi tﬁ that and he hopes to announce some promotions soon.
Councllmembé/Kennedy stated” t}( ‘e are som%ﬁne candidates in the Fire Department and it will be a

tough decision. % //

POLICE CHIEF REP@RTZ%POhC?epartment Annual Report

Chief Sovik stated if he h d;f’ % nbe the year 2020, it would be COVID. He then stated what we are
all living through could not h u/ ‘been predicted. The virus forced the Police Department to make
changes to protect the employees and those we come in contact with from the potentially dangerous and
deadly discase. He stated we chose to partner with the CDC and relied heavily on the information passed
onto us from the Oakland County Health Department. He stated they immediately enacted safety
protocols and procedures and were ready to change procedures based on new information. He further
stated closing the station was never an option. Our community knows we will respond no matter the
circumstances. We did change how we responded. We temporarily shut down some of the services in an
attempt to limit contact with those who may be infected. Our response time did not suffer and we
appeared in person to most of the calls we would before the pandemic hit us and we took more reports

over the phone and when we did respond in person, we took every precaution in order to prevent further

2/8/2021



spread of the virus. We made less traffic stops and less community contacts than in years past. He stated
he proud of the changes they made in order to safely continue to partner with our community. Chief
Sovik stated we hired our newest officer Joseph Czapski and he continues to perform as expected. He
begins his 2-week shadow period on Wednesday. He will be critically evaluated during that time to prove
he is capable to respond to calls on his own. He came from the Burton Police Department with 6 years of
experience and the City looks forward to a long-term relationship with Joe. Chief Sovik stated succession
planning is important to the future growth and leadership of the Police Department. It is a goal of his to
leave this Police Department in better shape than when he took over 2 years ago. He further stated he can
confidently say if he left tomorrow the goal would have been accomplished. He stated Iieutenant Baaki
attended the Michigan Association Chief of Police executive school this past November. Developing
leaders at every level, whether it’s first-line supervisors or new p ,tr.o]//oﬂicers learning their craft is our
focus. Officer Jacobs was nominated by his peers as Officer %f/year. This is only the second year our
. . T, . .
department has recognized an officer for his or her accomphshmé%n//tg/éz’and we will continue for many
years to come. The committee unanimously agreed that JaKe was desa”/r}/»/}lg of this recognition and in
addition to receiving the departments certificate of m/%;;}//t/f//)ejé‘rlier in the yeﬁaﬁ%%//}/{e was a two-time recipient
of officer of the year while part of the Walled Lake#0licé Department. Hedléo officiated a wedding for
y p //,//}%//l p 9,0 g

his friend during the pandemic, the ultimate citizen;;%/s/} st. He stated Officers S‘t%///%ls and Schneemann
received the lifesaver award for their actions in Octdgg/»//f:?ffThey responded to a sm{lfé“ investigation in
Colonial Acres. While assisting the Fire Department with’ ogcupafit evacuations, theyZobated an
unconscious elderly male lying face doy;/n;@n..the floor. Atter fentoving him from the condo, they re-
entered the residence and located an eldeij;}ﬁ@%e/ in a hospi a:lxg,////gd unable to move. They safely
removed her from the situation as well. B/@%/h Oﬁ{;{%’ﬁyreceived awards from Michigan State

: N W e N
Representative Kathy Crawford for their selticgs act1on-,,s,,§, zhief Sovi ;;sy.ted they made some
. . s 3, Y. %Z%%%. %%%%- e :
improvements to their bulld}%{//&nost of the oggmal fencing wa replao%d//fm addition to some kitchen
updates. He further st;}/}/ew///;he P mn hav1ng@§///fl/;p}}//;/n//}6use aa%%ak/‘ollce Station before COVID hit
and he hopes to plan th{%}/n the ﬁ1ture/Z}”-’:fzﬁter the nun{ 161 %’é 1 Hé’stated several officers chose to go
with the outer load bearin/‘é%/ﬁff’f ts insteac of the under;gs)' soft body armor. The outer vest can be easily
removed and put back on as//%”%fé‘ded ////’/g/@ ing to ou/r%”‘ carch the vest is supposed to help with back and

_ 7 ‘
hip pain asséctated With.the current dlity belts, Ajlthe ofHizers currently using these are happy with their
p pain sy G RINTfhe currelf 01y el Gyl th Gifgrs curmently using these ars happy
dBGISIO%v “hiief Sovik'stdtéd the vy Savere no ex t4 Cost (0 the City, as they were paid for by the
individt ajsy, He then stated'm%/g YONe hz;/;/ 1oticed the portable speed radar signs throughout the City
during the fi¢er months of the-af{{/é/’_’ar. He stated we received a lot of positive feedback, and we will be
U . 3 K

using them ag%lis year. Chieéfé/g’/vﬂ( statei 1 ¢ven though there were many birthday parties cancelled

this year, the Po i@é’g&nd Fire Depa ﬁen’c performed about 50 drive-bys. He stated the parents of the
birthday boy or girl/%éf@/;sted that}/P}/’:f’ice and Fire drive by their location with lights and sirens on to
celebrate their speciall/{'/fg y »He s/}/}}j%ecipients ranged from a 2-year-old boy, 21-year-old twins, and a
43-year-old. He stated me@/f@?{fé 1ankful to bring a little happiness to them. He then thanked Council

for their unwavering suppor%ﬁ/%é last year, it means a lot to the Officers. Councilmember Dilg stated it
is a great report and all the things the Police Department has had to change over the past vear and it is
very impressive and she thanked him for all he does for the community. Councilmember Kurtzweil stated
the drive by’s really meant a lot to people and it made a huge difference in peoples lives. It has been very
difficult for people. It meant a lot to people and they are still talking about it, and how great it is to live in
a small town with a great Police Department. Councilmember Kennedy stated the annual report was great

and is very thorough and detailed.

OLD BUSINESS- None

2/8/2021



NEW BUSINESS

1. CDBG Set public hearing February 22, 2021 7:30 p.m.
City Manager Zelenak stated each year the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
provides funds to jurisdictions throughout the country for projects that meet their national objectives. The
City of South Lyon will receive funds from HUD via Oakland County. This coming year our tentative
allocation will be $29,552. Last year the City designated the funds to be used for the Senior Center and
Haven. The 2021 CDBG application deadline for receiving CDBG funds for the upcoming year is Friday
March 5%, Tonight, we are requesting to schedule our CDBG Public Hearing for Monday February 22,
2021 at 7:30 p.m. This will be published in a local newspaper which gives the opportunity for hearing
public comments relating to allocating those funds in South Lyon. N
CM 2-5-21 MOTION TO SCHEDULE 2021 CDBG PUBLIC HEAR[NG

Motion by Kennedy, supported by Dilg // ///
Motion to schedule the 2021 CDBG pubhc hearlng % / /;P/;M on Monday February 22, 2021
ROLL CALL VOTE: alton, Yes . 4 // ///,,/
/
Dll r/} /7////////’//
v W@

Qi ve 2

Richat ///? Yes /%

Kivell-és %

/ MOTIOI\%//”% _ED UNANIMOUSLY "

2. Purchase of antomated ﬁngerpr} f de catlo syste{«// %F

“ // o
Chief Sovik stated in August of 2020 1ast yeaffCLE///f‘% Sfthat we’re going to be needing new

s % /’ % /// Iy K2
automated fingerprint identifi¢af; //u) dit 1s part 61 the booking process and for
building criminal hlStOI‘ ///} ///Q/ / /%//S// /////e// ’//} e

date our system. He further stated
we have been having se/;/p//ssues wﬁ;%ur //W 1/ “to recalibrate fingerprints from

U
time to time. He further §//ét§/d this W / o ot a budgete 1tern because we weren’t informed beforehand. In
’%” t tial cash
September el/i/‘}/}/kl;?ng /// ; //s/ antial cash seizure forfeit from when we had a
guy worki ng 1 /W ///fhke to use those funds to pay for this systent.
//é//// // // 4
It eosts/$/§/;8 00 dit % /39 po 1 ////}/}/968 that use the CLEMIS system and when they go
out to ﬁn %Je vendors they ”’“ ﬁ - hest price posmble because of the bulk they buy at. To go out on
'

our own to ? o find other blﬂ ) wouhﬁ;ffhelp the City. He stated he is asking to waive the bidding
process and to/g/};/ow them to pur /l}/ﬁée AEI//;./
CM 2-6-21 MOTI.N TO WAIVF//THE BID PROCESS AND PURCHASE AFIS

Motion by Walton suppo 3by Kennedy

Motion to wa%th bi dd /// - process and to purchase the AFIS system from line item 265-000-

000-964-000 in the amou/l{/t $8 3

ROLL CALIL VOTE: ////////// Walton- Yes
Richards- Yes
Kennedy- Yes
Kurtzweil- Yes
Dilg- Yes
Kivell- Yes
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOQUSLY

BUDGET- No discussion was held

2/8/2021



PUBLIC COMMENT- None

MANAGER’S REPORT

City Manager Zelenak stated the department heads have been working on their preliminary budgets and
we will be scheduling our budget meetings very soon. They will be sometime in early March. He stated
the CDBG application will be ready at the next meeting and we will have the public hearing. He stated he
has spoken with some Councilmembers regarding the joint City Council and Planning Commission
Meeting. We would like to have it either Thursday the 25" of February or Monday March 1%. He stated
the Capital Conference is March 16" and 17" if anyone would like to attend, please let us know. He
further stated for upcoming Council Meetings we will have our mvest;nent policy which is included in the
packet for review. He stated we will have a representative that as;s);’?us with the preparation of that
document at the meeting as well. City Manager stated at the nex etmo we will have the conditional

/Zﬂ%é-
rezoning meeting of Holly Hills. At a future meeting we wﬂl,b 1§ g the mural ordinance before City
Council. ///// //’%/////
/ 7 //f///%
COUNCIL COMMENTS / @///
Councilmember Dilg welcomed back the restaurants and it is good to see peo %/} ut there eating and
seeing some life back in our restaurants, ///// / y //’Z/é//j///
/
Councilmember Kennedy reminded ev”/// }‘13 that the%ffm /Wé( for the Shop L /{fl Bingo game
457/ k4

created by the Covid-19 Lyon Task For / n the ¢o mumty to shop, dine and get carryout
G, .
and complete your bingo card. The deadlu//i%/l //’//‘ 5“’. /////

// //
Councilmember Kurtzweil rem / (% Pkles we have to support them
o a ////% //// /, c
and don’t forget to sto /}f W//// ry /},;/ y o) } W k. She then thanked everyone
for supporting the restalr all 4/// ‘/Z/ dtry t//; /// / {ar}/;s downtown during the next few
weeks. ///// % /
. // // /f/// o

Councﬂ ’?I{flchard ed | ty that t Was part o of the CDBG application is excellent

d hei ,{// S hent //’5////%// /////e/// o /////’ “make a larger copy and make them available

¥ 4 /f%%g . L 9/;//

//}1/1/0 ’1 on ///// t the C1ty boundaries, He then stated he visited the hill in

McHattle ik because he w{/ G see’g yr many people were using the hill for sledding. He further

stated there /gt%g,at least 20 peop /”//l@th ere ha‘f, ng a good time. The straw bales that were used for bumpers

Ui,
were really ge m’g/used He state% e hopes the skating rink can get flooded again so people can use it.

L
He thinks it would"getza lot of use.
Councilmember Walton th;;/} /d// X Carcone from Lyon Township for helping her with a Lyon
Township resident that reacl@%t to her. She then thanked the DPW for keeping the streets cleared

from the snow. They have don a great job and she hopes everyone stays warm in the cold weather.

Mayor Pro Tem Kivell stated he hopes everyone will dine local, we have a lot of people that have stepped
up and made some great investments in our community and they still need our help. Everyone needs to
help and get out and dine at our local restaurants. They can use our business to keep their businesses
running. He further stated he hopes the greenhouses continue to accommodate people that want a safe
environment. He stated watching the kids on the sledding hill reminds him of being a little boy in Hines
Park where he would spend hours. He then stated the hill is product of some of the soils and things that

2/8/2021



were taken out when we did Reynold Sweet Parkway was augment to that so it was a little higher and
steeper and he is grateful we capitalized on the mistake made at Reynold Sweet Parkway.

ADJOURNMENT
CM 2-7-21 MOTION TQ ADJOURN
Motion by Kurtzweil, supported by Kennedy
Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:08 p.m.
VOTE: MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Respectfully submitted,

Glenn Kivell, Mayor Pro Tem Lisa ﬁe%ff@/n, City Clerk

@
y " .
Cn A )

. k.

0w

/////
o

. /'/ %/
Y
0
W

’////
// /////
//

\

Z K %f 7 7%:
75 // ’/
'/
// /,,// 7 7
/

.
-

@

.

2/8/2021



CDBG Public Hearing

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2021
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager
AGENDA TOPIC: Setting CDBG Public Hearing

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Each year the U S Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) provides funds to jurisdictions throughout the country for projects
that meet their national objectives. Here in South Lyon we receive funds from HUD via
Oakland County. This coming year our tentative allocation will be $29,552. Last year
the City designated the funds to be used for the Senior Center and Haven. The 2021
CDBG application deadline for receiving CDBG Funds is Friday, March 5,2021. On
February 8, 2021 the City published notice of the CDBG Public Hearing, which tonight
gives the opportunity for hearing public comments relating to allocating those funds in
South Lyon.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 2021 CDBG Public
Hearing Notice, and tentative South Lyon allocation.

REQUIREMENTS OF TONIGHTS PUBLIC HEARING:

Open the Public Hearing
Hear any Public Comments
Close Public Hearing.

LATER ON TONIGHTS MEETING AGENDA: We will present and vote on the 2021
CDBG Allocation.



Oakland County does not have information on exact CDBG funding levels for Program Year (PY})
2021. Use the final award figure from PY 2019 to compile your application. Once exact amounts
are available necessary adjustments will be made.

Planning

Planning

Procurement, Davis Bacon, Demolition

City Allocation Monitor City Allocation Monitor
Auburn Hills $82.430 TBD Northville* $7.000 TBD
Berkley $36,290 TBD Novi $130,530 TBD
Birmingham $36,090 T1BD Qak Park $128,952 TBD
Bloomfield Hills* $7,000 TBD Orchard Lake Vig* | $7,000 TBD
Clarkston* 1$7,000 TBD Pleasant Ridge* $7,000 TBD
Clawson $35,634 TBD Pontiac $799,257 TBD
Farmington $27.469 TBD Rochester $28,533 TBD
Ferndale $90,050 TBD Rochester Hills $160,965 TBD
Hazel Park $85,661 TBD South Lyon $29.552 TBD
Huntington Woods | $8,797 TBD Syivan Lake* $7.000 TBD
Keego Harbor $14,250 TBD Troy $178,147 TBD
Lathrup Village $7.000 TBD Walled Lake $29,186 TBD
Madison Heights $142,364 TBD Wixom $51,165 TBD

Township :Illiggi?ogn Monitor Township ;:zgzi?ogn Monitor
Addison $9,667 TBD Milford $16,775 TBD
Bloomfield $51,857 TBD Qakland $22.828 TBD
Brandon $27.726 TBD QOrion $56,147 TBD
Commerce $62,495 TBD Oxford $30,585 TBD
Groveland $7.452 TBD Rose $9,519 TBD
Highland $29,956 TBD Rovyal Oak $11.689 TBD
Holly $20,011 TBD Springfield $20,658 TBD
Independence $52,303 TBD West Bloomfield $91,182 TBD
Lyon $22,983 TBD White Lake $44 665 TBD

Village ;:‘c"zgg’ogn Monitor Village ;:i’;g;:‘fn Monitor
Beverly Hills $13,049 TBD Milford $15.560 TBD
Franklin® $7.000 TBD Ortonville* $8,294 TBD
Holly $21,655 TBD Oxford $11,1214 TBD
Lake Orion $9,333 TBD Wolverine Lk $7.000 TBD
Leonard* $7,000 TBD

I

Staff Phone Specialty Areas
Samantha 858-5312 CDBG Application, Eligibility, Reprogramming, SHPO,
Ferguson Consolidated Plan/Annual Action Plan/ CAPER

Environmental Review, Contract Compliance,

Mike Pucher 858-0196 Reimbursement, Minor Home Repair, Contracts,




("‘\

City of South Lyon
Notice of Public Hearing
Community Development Block Grant Funds

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of South Lyon will hold a public hearing regarding the use of
Community Development Block Grant Funds. The Hearing will be held on Monday February 22, 2021 at
7:30 pm at the regularly scheduled South Lyon City Council Meeting, which will be held electronically
for the purpose of hearing public comments on the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Program Year 2021 application to fund eligible projects. All interested citizens may join the electronic
mecting. Comments may also be received in writing Monday February 22, 2021 at 5:00 pm.
arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs, including handicap accessibility or interpreter,
will be made upon receiving 72-hour advance notice. Contact Lisa Deaton City Clerk/Treasurer at (248)
437-1735 at City Hall for special services.

Lisa Deaton, City Clerk/Treasurer

*electronic meeting information will be added before publishing*



The Oakland Press - 02/10/2021 Page : BQO7

Contactun
Class!fisd Salos:
Bir-2ii-zie | 2431455300 sasebwspopercizss
@ 1la Klomp, Director:
B2 3

Wednanday, February 10, 2021 3 vege &1 7w

REDM/THEZAALANCATESS. ANE T¥

A CIWDALYTRIE

IBARGAINSI I'E'-" I I DIRECTCARE ~
EAl HS! EERERAL ITED . Eh% IVED B DIRECT CARE S nd v r
cageer ‘ | Vising pée ou
el ERE- @ Dennics Close
TR AT VoL KAVE ! . hnl g g
RETIRED CARFET FERNDALE g“%"ms
TR ThaClyotforminie || oo sha warkin heaHeeo?
cal Bob 3 3070088 iz Jooking fof anaddition Heln ﬁtderlv [t ories.
NEw )!-IGLHHD TR Waara o i NGt i senBaule.
DRAPES, DVER 20 Palrs, AUBURN HIL farthe pasluun of Must be raflable and casin
teige, e, 34 kg, gke. cond. edge of Constryction, GENE il e /o Ve s
10r. 2268517093 e T aes e ME(:HANIG. and weekends. 40TK with
- Envipment s helpful, i i match, ald smk leave
I AREWOOD - hThn }ﬁca} L'nim':datal \\d\IE S tadar pi Ao e
Computer skills are requiree, | | Mave thorough knowledge 1 by 245 Bdo 2
FIREWODD 3 X 4X 8 We are privately owned of autamolive mechanics b
Cares, roenor seasnnod. | | AGREATPLACE 10 WK1 || for both gas ans dieselve- | ) ppivegs
Buy ity e serl load ettt
and Save] 339-326-5915 Competitive wages and aptiude, and experlence DRIVER NEEDED
EMPLOYERS PAI BENEFITS: working in alf‘ast paced HmWHEEu:H R
casDsE el st doni nlos envirenmient thal requines PORTATION CDMPA|
attentan fg detaac: * | Arst and aeond it Al
B m"fj'{f;,“;,,“ﬁ‘g;’,‘.{‘;‘,’é‘ﬁ'ﬂ‘fs_ ey andipesbikyty || bl eod dbies record
FlGTi :emu @ assign- round cl
Amale cpportunity for F merts.Salar Y range anﬁ ‘rug sereentog. Emall
sm.ﬂm \.ﬁm E!cgrm:g mnitfobs2015@amalk.oam
call Cheits._ 248-373-5000 .
el | Sho |n Local
HOW BUYING Al Fishing Gear, apgly.
Ems' 'r'mlgbbkulk;t gi!flco?w ANTED ™ © ki
et
or call TSt T8 i el eaps your
PROFESSIONALS
| Hkpagpme M n oc I
e i R oney ~oca
ET/PT 0N site interviows Oakland County Company 1s FARMINGTON HE
Sam- 1 jom, Iesking f LS,
jalyasinc, oG] nﬂcnraﬂhu:nunlanlf KICHIGAN .
opan scnedzle immvedliate Mac Yaly Bookkeeper. Bookkeoping,
e || iy | GEEEEISE | eahiiGe :
suﬁ;ﬂﬁmﬁﬂ},"; et [ "‘",‘fe,ﬁﬁﬁ'n;!ﬁﬂs&"’ EEHEFITS AVAILABLE l')
%0 days e ST WAt ERs || Please el your resume la: sumes bo:
MusT HavE.own %E{“"‘“ #MACHINE OPERATORS conpnsa” ¢ ) y R
1.300 W‘ Mlﬂ 2 Rd, —_———— | || TOWNHOUSES - : I
45084 or ematl Mac Valves ine. offers PARY TIHE DELIVERY
eanwashtean102@gimail cort accumﬁ‘,lcllw hE'ﬁTx, Auburn Hills Co seeking ATV SELL IT IN THE
YOLFLL HEVER KNOW -ov shedica] Dancalas el 55 e Pa b oar A CLASSIFIEDS!
oo e it aei oo || shorttermand lang tern || delfecr e o 2 e nied VILAGH
" Reasba oriva profit sharing, ggte I Delrol matro o, ARARTVENTS
?ruw!rogb.ﬁrg;m&n:w Bl annlyin W mMIE\&IJ firs/day. / Must
sl today o &l Trasa a 3ose sec 4593“ ﬁ{?!|yh&immm' o
" ()] Hreeman
_— 243-624-T700, Perfect fob for retinee ¢
QAT EIND aal ou ook Call Mike 248-393 2020
hﬂ th g,l."‘aﬂfa‘lLﬂ Eiﬂsy. N . SPECIALS
uzing (=g clas
ﬁ E ' i \r o, )
o i B o k1 | Glreat Job w/Minimum
MWartec To By’ i rex weak's & Job Dernsrl..
fpager. eSSt
—_——| ok 2 Call Today!
ime 0lnte
RENEMSER - vran sbing  Time - Castpo ADMINISTRATIVE 1,2 0r 3 Bedroomn
e s g o rhuds ot gt ASSISTANT 20r 3 Badro
= o wiicer T30  JMMEDIATE STARTH
2hrclude b i e— L T hs
b CLasstFIEDS  winer | Repar, inc in Sou hﬁeld N 11/2 Batl
S s | Fhrioe (» Saan | Dubes’ include bt no li || _Full 72 Gasemert

time, gnargy and maoned ted to: Arcounts Payahle/
DO LITTLE ADS wnmc?, classmeds'g!mnnm wacet Recehmhre, Pa mII oo
You'te readiig (his lace your classt B Wer| nes, Filing,

they mustl Place your [l ==" how easy il i3 fo b a Ortfeﬁng sunmlwmaterhs,
m!, winsort Proficient i QoickBocks Pro,

Experienced HOME FIRST AID
CAREGIVER avallable _ HOME REPAIR, LLE
. -l tamalveinhomehealth  pegENTIAL BUSINESS
Washer/Dryer Included {| Pyidey forthe ideri Fall - =5 mbing - Electrical,

i , | et B R and +

J LEGALNOTICES " : "~ | LEGAL NOTICES B st fay et HEED G o Full care, cooklng, ete. Quar Drywall, Fainting,
CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE T e phednt a R i
KGTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING Hours: Man, - Fri. 7:30 am.

1 T i
COMMUMITY DEVELOPMENT BELOCK GRANT FUNDS || - %30 pm. Serlous Inauiries i
only! sen fesume to: AUTO AUCTION i I Me E%S'.Eﬁ? HLN'E}.“J.?'
NOTICE IS HERERY GIVEN that the City of Lathrup Village d @ sbeglobal net ﬂaﬂﬂ“ggﬁ@;ﬂ?mﬁce l'c e cal Anthoery @ 510-533- 0568

will hoid a puhlle hearing on the vse of Community De—

sntopment Sk b Hﬂdasl T b il el o m;‘ﬂ,}; o ke e cakiandbedttzom o SODBISMLAKCVILIE, CREDIT EARDS ATREPTED
- I.EON_ ingle female Eb
Enz’!g&:a afza?ﬂgélgzm‘/mssseslmpwd:mspvzlmsmma e s st Clssiess, T, e mam of small fiatin %ﬂmﬁé
! I :
or Senfar cang

Passcode: 515634 CHARTER mggggwu%ilwzc Hs'r Eﬂﬁ‘ OOMFIELD Marilyrme 2482106921 'Tﬂﬁ"s'?;vm 2
Webinar ID: 954 85365372 nuMMum'rv DEUELDP M ELOCR SRANT FUNDS T DHLY TAKES 2 fou i Eﬁg&%ﬂﬁgﬁg%
Telephane; §45.850.8656 or 312, 5265798 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Charter Township of | Sy Sma S 15 ™ WALLPARER REMOVAL
Webind 10984 B596 6372 West Bloormiield will hold a public hearing on the Lse of CLASSIRED

o T o S e st
Fur me nmse of h'eaan F%‘Tmmﬁfs on the Cnm' b 05 of heanny'publll: RrRents ar the Conmtl.
ey alpplillmlmn in the aonaimate amourt ¥ oFSro0s 1 e B T e
fund el ",‘f Pﬁﬂi‘m‘s' MM' uz‘g’“mm +linlyie prolects. The maetina will be virtual meetlng, pur-

i, coa g, Soromients il osa Le i suark 1o ublic et 220 of 2020, Directiuns to partcpale Beauhfull ali !
W"'f h emall ctyderklathrgretligeord of i ge remotely are o the homa page of (e TN’ wedsle Al
I MI 76 “ m’ m""' Arrn st hpurg AT Inerested elizans are o a-Allergenic
ﬂ“hl “m‘ M., reeds, 1 d d qulsled lnnarl ieipate in the Hearlng. Comments will also -.Heme Raised ~ Shots
[remss [0 rassananly accommodate fb@ﬁﬂ”gg ol meeives in wiking o in porse  the € Plaming bepart, . S
o nokeay Eeotaet ey 2y | | T ogated Wl |¢E-'r s L e U '313-999-6447

loomneld Tovwns ury 136 D .
285! Emm.zzs far specia| servicas. Febriiary 22, 3021, Comments gan w0 b anailed 16 Patn: :
[ lakealplakewhh\\nsh\purg - -
Yuetie Talloy, City Clork The Townsip of West Sloomfield wil proside necessary,
reasonale awdliary sids and services Upon

Publistied - February 10, 2621 calian to the ann"s"up Clerk or the FfamEinn o Devslop-

mant Sarylces Departmant ak 4550 Wainut |ake Road, Waet
Eloonifield, M) 48323, clerk (248) 351 3849 0 Flanniid and
Develapment Services Depariment (238 451-4318,

Chcy of
Hetice ofPuhlle H la
Community Development Block Funds. my T, NearT,M:F
Planning ang Deve\uumant Sew Tlrector
KOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Clty of Sauth Lyon will
hold a public hoaring regarding fho use of Community De-

s e % WANTTED
Sl Stisln Byor ity Caucl iEeuos which sl o | | Sehal Distct of the City of Pontiar Adverfsement to Bid RUNNING OR NOT
el electiprically for the purpase of fiering publia cum: | | watice Is herehy diven that sealed bids wil be resieat,
p':’gm?edm'i 26z. apphcation mé‘umz elicibie proleciz Al e B e e D o e T
interested citizens ceiront, meetng, Come

a0 o Miomod In wiiting Montay Fobiary Bide stk "“”"“‘“‘“ onlinat:

s.f itdmaconnected.com/
22 mzl 500 Arrant (5] fy - OTHERS BOAST WE PAY THE MOST
2 a0l cfom, & wesmsﬂ.,:nd.gggﬁm.:ﬁeﬂs, BELEHE

GUARANTEED SAME DAY PICK-UP

infamreler, Wil be made UpG receiving 12 four a0vance | idsshal be submitied gn 3/24/2621 st 2:00 pm, lacal time,
easurer at (248)
S 17253t ity Han- forspenlal sewlcas. gﬂdg will be opened yia fivestream on Fehmary 24 2001 at
Members of tho pablic may contact members of the public | | 194 i
hody Dﬂ?l’ ‘% }he electronclmeeﬁri]g b?‘uenr“ 5‘ %Il Ind]cated due thrie and date nhe m\low‘\ng work:
geses for City govemnment may be found on the City's | | gid packaga 008: Pontiac High School Athtetic Upgrades
website atwwisouthlyonmi.org Contract docurments wl\{'be availzble digitally on Bullding

Flease click the link betow ko [oin the slectronle wehinar! Connect (see link ko

Bld OBEFIEHQ Ligestraam LInk:
R onson o pipaitems sl et
US: +13017138552, 1422240052 oot b
Rt Bttt e,
U;‘ﬁfﬁﬁn“ % ity 222027 01 %622%3a %224 e LIAFD3-F6S-4cdal-aed6-

cuent | | efifedticcel 2 tdcazhBooarcslee ag 233aint

pcation

Bl cnees e
T or If you have any questions please contact Bryoe Shanaman

ST 853 7 (Tall Erze) or 883 785 0038 (Toll Free) of Bartan Malow by emal bryee, shanaman@hartonmalaory,

Webinar 10: B‘l 22249052 eom o by phone 2484178570

Lisa Deatan, City Clerk/Treasurer We appreciate your business!

February 16, 2021 9:40 am {(GMT -5:00) Powered by TECNAVIA



MediaNews Group

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
2135 Butterfisld Dr, Sulte 102N « Troy MI 28084

CITY OF SOUTH LYON

255 5 WARREN STREET

SOUTH LYON, Ml 48178
Attention: Liza Deaton

STATE OF MICHIGAN,
COUNTY OF CAKLAND

gl éﬁm
Gh:rr[rﬁﬁﬂi' Elﬂdmzmmi Doeh Gl Pumsis
SETCE 15 FIEESTY GIVEM il e l;llp‘ni Faith A4 Wil
nﬁiﬁ's and u‘:t&ll @ﬁ;n'a:e of 3 generalur;hara::ter which & dufg.r quaﬂlﬂ-@ﬂ n@ma;ﬁem. aid Sl el ey o ﬁmﬁn
ifve ammened hereto 15 8 copy of cerain crder, notice, publization or advertisement of; ﬁ*ﬁ?ﬁé’&%&é iﬂ%‘*‘ 2;1“ fliily
e i &%%Eﬂ;ﬂa%ﬁzm
hm'meﬂ SR AR Ain ik ﬁm 7 -

PR
) ! - W - [ Frairdate et TR, ek walunai
EIW 'EF SEWH Wf*ﬂﬂz htﬁ“&‘;ﬂ tgﬂm mnaélmmﬂ
_ ' e AET-BFLS &k Cir il | N dsaegi] ﬁnm.-[.
Fublizhed in the following edition(z): m"’*“'&}“&'ﬁ&“&"’% st mmmm&& oF e gt
] E mi
Dzkiand Pesss D201 drecus iy iy g@yﬁ%‘? [Ty o2 AT B0 K2 Cs |
thﬁeklardpmmm !IJS_",-"J_EH%}; Mlawse cBei B Grls badony 1 jzin i abedvans woebinay !
iyl Ok Tribyre 02/10721 hnpﬁ;ﬂ‘iummrmmmm %

Flﬂ[!i: Fﬂﬁftr ma!”!r AL & iR e T Wl i R E

I ARG 1 1 201 7 s
VIGE 4RZEMALILT | T s @ aonpees "'Eq%%m;
MUTAHY PUBLD - BTATE OF MISHGAN | AR S
COUNTY DF OnKLAKD LA (et R Dok Treiines

Wy CTitEan By
o Aonag o e Cagsly of

i =

e folF 13 l|

r.....

Motsry Fmbll& Eiaia ﬁ! ﬁnﬁﬂgah“ |
Acting in Dakiand County

Clairt | u,” 1153769 sdld: 2137734 FO: Sales Person: 200308



AGENDA NOTE

Old Business ltem # 4.

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2021
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager

AGENDA TOPIC: Consider CDBG Application projects for the City of South Lyoh.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The 2021 CDBG application deadline is Friday, March
5,2012. On February 22, 2021 at the regularly scheduled City Council Meeting the City
held a Public Hearing relating to the CDBG Funds allocated to the City of South Lyon.
The City’s tentative funding allocation for 2021 is $ 29,552. The suggestion is that the
City will continue to use the allocation for 2021 to support the projects that we have
funded in recent years. (Senior Center and Haven)

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 2021 CDBG
Application and supporting documents.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve the selected projects as identified or
choose different projects or choose not to submit the application for funds.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to approve the selected projects as identified.




0202716 U0 paieal,
e,

{sav) Aeaing a_HLEEou UBILISUY §10Z-} 10T
ay3 sjoapal dew dnoag 3j90|g SNSULS SRL

sofw g0 = Ul |

SOIPOCURIBAL |
pEOiEy +|T
JOUIA e -
oep ——

BIBLS v

8N ——

Q)Bjslo| ——

sdnoig yoolg elaBiz-uon .~
sdnous) ¥oolg weausg lw..l.lw
opipm-eary 9|qiBIIg § = -

0107 1oB1L snsuen |

Guaselpy) |

1epiog Aunog k

L >

UBAT UINoS Jo AID
de Jjouag apip-ealy

A0 A 0B RO MMM
£GF0'R5E BYE
PLEG-LPEBD [N "DENUOg
0061 ‘215 ‘PEOY M YIIGRINT 082
auhog puepen
LINIWIAOUC I SEACH F ALINMTWINOD
ALNMGD ANYTHVO

snfinosxg fjuned Yene piaeg
IRy AQIUNWILOD) 7§ JUSWIGORASY JIWLOLDYS
NYOITHIIW ALNNOD

=AO\VDIVQjg

—F
Ry

]t
1
}

SponALLE,

A

4
waipd

o,

3

(e

s

e g
g
K3
=

--paaii—

e (L]

SOTU=Uapyy el
1-ToreEL

A

w3 & © diysumog
Ml_a f LRy

EJ'EDEQ./-
U, A

SOAC R P —aseg_

56 N -
I-Galte —

n‘\m:_;n::wg.}\

Vel

]

BULDPENEE—

S0ATETL

e
NGy

vqieag

dejuag
o 5i520—

/ = N
gl T
T%m»_ éh!lli_an»._mzl\\u\um_.l
mv_zs_a_
I . sbpygwing,
- s, £ gy B :ﬂ
T b I

i, Brupoing—B3:

UL T T

#

tog, Coq L o
oS o

5t “M,:s _l -
o Ex S -
g 5 E LS S
£ - g B [
3 BE T E
8T 7 Tl E
X2
B

Pesanioo;
2.
)

K

.
&
Sadoyy

W8d ey,

e

/}oua@_,..

L_uu
°
5

*“A..A\j!/w

ypog
4G Ao

Wu_@aso\ P - .

I W o [ MUSBIE~FELTD
w L% M | TE Y
& s 5

s

jhis

y
"
H

13a19U3]S.

|
gl




i

ommunity:

City of South Lyon

PY 2021 CDBG Planning Allocation:

$29,552

Contact Person:

Paul C. Zelenak

Telephone: 248-437-1735

Best time to contact: M-F 8:30 — 5:00

DUNS #: 02-184-2117

Copy of current SAMS attached: Yes If No, Explain:X — On File at OC
Is community subject to Single Audit? |Yes No X

Example Project# 1 Name: Code Enforcement Allocation: $80,834
Project#1  Name: Senior Center Allocation: $24,552

Project#2 Name: PS Battered & Abused Allocation; $5,000

Project # Name: Allocation: $

Project # Name: Allocation: $
Total # of Projects: 2

# of Public Service Projects:

Public Service %:

The undersigned certifies that the information in this application is true and correct. In applying for
CDBG funds, the applicant has read, understands and agrees to comply with all the provisions of
all federal regulations issued thereto by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD), state and local regulations and laws.

Name of Highest Elected Official or Designee:

Dan Pelchat

Title of Highest Elected or Designee:

Mayor

Signature:




Code of Federal Regulations Title 24, Volume 3 Revised as of April 1, 2004 CITE: 24CFR570.611

TITLE 24--HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CHAPTER V--OFFICE OF ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF HUD
Part 570 Community Development Block Grants
Subpart K Other Program Requirements
Sec. 570.611 Conflict of interest

(@)  Applicability. (1) In the procurement of supplies, equipment, construction, and services by recipients and
by subrecipients, the conflict of interest provisions in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR 84.42, respectively, shall apply. (2)
In all cases not governed by 24 CFR 85.36 and 84.42, the provisions of this section shall apply. Such cases
include the acquisition and disposition of real property and the provision of assistance by the recipient or by its
subrecipients to individuals, businesses, and other private entities under eligible activities that authorize such
assistance (e.g., rehabilitation, preservation, and other impravements of private properties or facilities pursuant to Sec.
570.202; or grants, loans, and other assistance to businesses, individuals, and other private entities pursuant to
Sec. 570.203, 570.204, 570.455, or 570.703(i)).

(b} Conflicts prohibited. The general rule is that no persons described in paragraph (c) of this section
who exercise or have exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to CDBG activities assisted
under this part, or who are in a position to participate in a decision making process or gain inside information
with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from a CDBG-assisted activity, or
have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect to a CDBG-assisted activity,
or with respect to the proceeds of the CDBG-assisted activity, either for themselves or those with whom
they have business or immediate family ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.

(c) Persons covered. The conflict of interest provisions of paragraph (b) of this section apply to any person who
is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of the recipient, or of any designated
public agencies, or of subrecipients that are receiving funds under this part.

(d} Exceptions. Upon the written request of the recipient, HUD may grant an exception to the provisions of paragraph
(b) of this section on a case-by-case basis when it has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements of (d)(1) of this
section, taking into account the cumulative effects of paragraph (d)(2) of this section.

(1)  Threshold requirements. HUD will consider an exception only after the recipient has provided the following
documentation: (i} A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has been public
disclosure of the conflict and a description of how the public disclosure was made; and (i) An opinion of the recipient's
attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought would not violate State or local law.

(2) Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception after the
recipient has satisfactorily met the requirements of paragraph (d)(1) of this section, HUD shall conclude that such an
exception will serve to further the purposes of the Act and the effective and efficient administration of the recipient's
program or project, taking into account the cumulative effect of the following factors, as applicable:(i) Whether the
exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree of expertise to the program or project
that would otherwise not be available;(ii) Whether an cpportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or
negotiation;(iii}y Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low-income persons intended to
be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception will permit such person to receive generally the same
interests or benefits as are being made available or provided to the group or class;(iv) Whether the affected person
has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, or the decision making process with respect to the specific
assisted activity in question;{v) Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a position
as described in paragraph (b) of this section;(vi) Whether undue hardship will result either o the recipient or the person
affected when weighed againstthe public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and (vii) Any other relevant
considerations. By applying for CDBG funds, the Participating Community certifies that they have read the above:

Community Name: City of South Lyon
Name of Highest Elected Official or Designee: Dan Pelchat
Title of Highest Elected or Designee:; Mayor

Signature:




G18lel-0L8EL)

slUBLUSSassY [Blnads

619LEL-0L8TLL

SIALIEG [RIMODYIIY SACLITY

Aigeuieisng

550008 paacdulymau YIm HH (I 40 #

saunwwoy uayibuang

JuswuoAug Buta 2jqe)nNg

8e¥1EL-0L1240

LE0-YE0 U1 PaISIT 10N SIUSWSA0IdW[ 21gnd JBUO

Angeueisng

$59008 panoldwiymau Uum HH (N1 J0 #

salunwwos uayibuang

JuswuaAug Butal S10e3INgG

(81505 Buneiado jou) suaned SdlyY o) sanjoed

Auqeuielsng

$S800E posolduwy/mau Yum HH [INT 0 #

saunwuoy uayibuang

uawUcIAUT BUIAIT @qe)INS

[BAOLIDY SOISaSY

Anpgeuvieisng

$39008 panoldyMau UNM HH [INT 10 #

salunNWwWog uayibuang

Walwuonaug Bula sigenns

uaipjiyD paos(BeN pue pasnqy Joj saoe

Anngeurelsng

$S300B pasoiduuymay yim HH (N1 1o #

saliUnWwWos uayibuang

Juswuolaug BUlAr] Sigeung

soped yesH

Aypeurelsng

$38008 pasoldwyma Upm HH [INT 10 #

saunWwWog usyibuang

WswuoAug Buia s|qeINg

€eL0eL-0L1EL1

sLwidnbI/suoneig an4

Aiqeureisng

$58508 pasosdwymau Uunm HH (INT 50 #

saljunwwed uayibuang

Juswiuoliaug Buia sigeIng

LZ0gel-0LLeL)

Bunueld sa1|

Ayiiceuwreisng

$59001 pasolduuymau UM HH (N1 10 #

sauNWWoD uayibusng

WBWUoIAUT Buia s[qeung

gI8lUa7) alen P9

Apeureisng

SS200E PaA0IdLLI/MaL YIM HH [N 10 #

senuNWWoD uaybusng

usuolAug BulAl] S[gEENS

SPLLEL-0LLELL

SH[BMBPIS

Ageueisng

$$000. paaoldulmau UnMm HM [INT 10 #

sallunWog uaybusig

JUSWILAIAUT BulAlT a[geung

FO81EL-0L1EL1

sjuswaaoldw) 19838

Aupgeureisng

$S8008 PaAoIdW/MeU URM HH [N 10 #

sapunwwe? uayibusng

JuSLIUoIAUT Buia 8|qeRNS

vLiZeL0LLELL

sjuaLWSAcIdW| JOMIG/IBIEAN

Aiqeuelsng

ssa00e pasodLmaU UM HH [N 40 #

sanunwe) usyibuang

Jaswugiaug Buial S[qeENS

¥PL0€L-0LLEL)

sjuswanolduw| ebeureig pooid

Aliqeureisng

$$900 PEAQJALLMaU UM HH [INT 10 #

sapunwwen) usyibueng

juswuonaug Buian s|gerng

PrLOEL-0LLELL

sjusweacidi| [gsodsiq S1seps pIoS

Ajqeureisng

$58008 panoduiymay yim HH (N7 40 #

sanunLwes uayibuang

Juswuoaug BUIA] B|QBUNS

senoey Bupped

Kigeureisng

$$3008 paaosdwiymau Yim HH || 40 #

sanunwwes uayibuang

JusLuoAUg Buial 9|qBUNS

gegles0lLell

SoNlIDE [BUDIERISY ‘Syed

fuqeureisng

559008 pasoldlll/mau UIEM HH [N 10 #

sonunwwos uaybuayg

JuUUiAug Bularg a|geung

sal|Ioe pooyioqyBiaN

Alligeuieisng

$59008 PoACILUMBU YIIM MK |1 10 #

sapunwwo ) uayibuang

wsluoaug Buia sjgeung

SIBIUSD) YINO A

Aigeureisng

$59998 PAACLALLMBU YIM HH 1IN 40 #

sajunwwey uayibuang

uisluuoNAug Buiar 8|geung

(1502 Buyesado Jou) sonIoe SSaISWOH

Ageuelsng

s58008 pasoldllmaU YIm HH [N 40 #

saNUNWWOo?) usLIbuang

wisluosAug BuiA s|geIng

Sell|IqesIa Yim SUoSISd Jo} sanlide

AlllgeuRISNS

$59008 PaAcIdLU/MBU YIM HH [N 10 #

sapunwwo g usyibuals

wswiuoAug Bula ajgeuns

9691€2-0L12L)

18lUan Jouag

SLNIWIAOULINI ANV S3ILIMIOYS o1lgnd

Sl

Aulgeuelsng

§55008 pascsdul/mau YEm HH I 40 #

seniunwwon usyibusig

wawuodiaug Bula 9|geung

uoRedo|ey

Aligeuigisng

$82008 PAACIAWI/MBU UIIM HH TN 40 #

sagiunwwo uayibuang

uswuodiaug Buia s|genng

SoNg pajeuILIEIu0 o dnues|o

AljigeUE)SNS

whig wnis

sapunwwon ualibuang

wawuodiAug Buia 8|geIRS

Sre0e-0LLeL)

uoioWsJ pUe SoUBIE3|D

Allgeulesng

S52008 PAA0IAL/MEU UIM HH [T 10 #

sapiunwiLon usyibuens

waswuogaug Buia ejgenng

9es0eL-0L1EL)

Apadold jeay Jo uonisodsi(

Ageurelsng

S33008 PIAOIALU/MBU UIM M [T 10 #

sagiunwiwo) usyibuang

Wawuoaaug Buia e|qeung

c000gL-0L1EL1L

Auadold [esy Jo uonisinboy

NOLLISOdSIA ANV NOLLISINDDV

awoanQ

1071e21pu|

2SS 7¢$ ‘uoneO||y

1#309loud

[eco

# 1UNoJAIYy

JUNoo2aYy




Project#1 Allocation: $24 552

bj

. ~ Codel/Desc .
Benefits low- and moderate-income persons
For the National Objective that principally benefits low- and moderate-income
selected, describe how the activity will address ONE of the subcategories listed below:

persons is

1) Area Benefit Activity - Those projects camied out in a neighborhood consisting
predominantly of LMI persons and providing services for such persons yet could be available
to other non-income eligible persons in the area. This information can be documented by
documenting that the area is primarily residential (e.g., zoning map); and that the income
characteristics of households in the service area (i.e., Census data)

2) Limited Clientele Activity - Those that benefit a specific group of people (rather than all
the residents in a particular area) who are, or presumed to be, income eligible. In order to meet
the LMI Limited Clientele criteria, the activity must: serve at least 51% LMI, as evidenced by
documentation and data concerning beneficiary family size and income; have income eligibility
requirements which limit the service to persons meeting the LMI income requirements, as
evidenced by procedures, intake/application forms, income Iimits and other sources of
documentation; serve a specific group presumed by HUD to be income-eligible include:
abused children, battered persons, elderly persons, handicapped adults, homeless persons,
illiterate persons, migrant farm workers and persons living with AIDS; and be of such a nature
and in a location that it may be concluded that the activity's clientele are LMI.

3) Income Eligible Housing Activity - These projects add or improve a permanent residential
structure wherein, upon completion, income eligible persons will occupy 51% or more of the
housing units.

4) Job Creation or Retention Activity - A project which creates or retains permanent jobs, of
which at least 51% are either taken by or available to income eligible persons.

570.208(a))

JUSTIFICATION:

Aids in

the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

For the National Objective that principally aids in the prevention of elimination of slums or blight
is selected, describe how the activity will address ONE of the subcategories listed below:

1) At least 25% of the properties throughout the area exhibit the following:
a. Physical deterioration of buildings/improvements;
h. Abandonment of properties;
¢. Chronic high occupancy turnover rates or chronic high vacancy rates in commercial or
industrial buildings;
d. Significant declines in property values or abnormally low property values relative to other
areas in the community; or
e. Known or suspected environmental contamination

2) Public improvements throughout the area are in a general state of deterioration.

Documentation must be maintained by the grantee on the boundaries of the area and the
conditions that qualified the area at the time of its designation. The designation of an area as
slum or blighted must be re-determined every 10 years for continued gualifications.

570.208(b))

JUSTIFICATION:




Project #1

Allocation: $24,552

S b BEP [ DESCRIPTIO s
rovide a detailed description of the proposed activity including how the activity will address the
needs of the community: Access Fee for Building Space

Identify who will benefit from the proposed activity (ex: homeless, abused children, seniors, etc). If
your program was designed to benefit persons on L/M income, describe the process you will use to
identify these persons (process for income verification if persons are not members of HUD’s
presumed L/M clientele): City contracts with Center for Active Aging to provide resident access fees




A gisseayyAlngeeny

$$2998 MaU Yim suosiad |1 4o #

ay jo Anenp aacidw)

wsuoiaug Buin sjgenng

sysodaQ Ajinoes

Annaisseooy/Alioeeay

s$ea0e mall Ylim suosiad |IN7 10 #

aJI7 40 ANjenp ascadwy

WwaluoaAug Buial s|gelng

salpisqng BuisnoH |eluay

AHIISS300YANIGB BAY

SSS00E MU YIm suosiad | Jo #

gJ17 40 Anjeny aacsdwy)

WwawuonAug BuiaIg 9|geIng

001°'S 947 $Z Jepun bulesunos BUISNOH BUlpnoXs -
aouesIssy uawiedumoq JeAngawoH

AuqIssa00y/ANIgR BAY

SSS00E M3U M suosiad [T Jo #

ay17 40 Ayeny anoidw|

eluuonaug Bula s|geung

TLS0€L-09T2LT

suowAed 9oUs)SISgNS

AynqissanoyyAliqe| ey

$58008 Mau yum suosiad W1 Jo #

aJIT Jo Ajen sacadw

wewiuonaug BuiaT s|geIng

Buiuosiod pean 4o} Bupssiog

Auligisssooy/AlIge|BAY

$50008 Mol UM suosiad JT 40 #

alI7 40 ANjeny ancidu)

wswuolAug Buar s|qeing

SO0IABS YHESH [BIUSIN

Ayngisseooy/Allgeiesy

§59208 MU yum suosiad (N7 40 #

3l Jo Ajeny aaoudw

JuswuolAug Bua1 s|geIng

usap|iysy pelos|BaN pue pasnay 1o} Se0IAeg

Aulqrss=00y/AYIgeIEAY

$s8008 MeU Lym suosiad || 40 #

i 40 AenD anosduy

Juswuoiiaug Bula sjgeINg

SOIBS YleaH

ANqissaoayAloe|eny

$59098 Mau YIm suosiad T Jo #

8l Jo ANenDd anoldw|

usWuoALg Buia eigeINg

S0IARS e PIYD

Alliqiess0oy/AlIgEIRAY

$S9008 MU LM suosiad JAT 10 #

a4 Jo Ajeny saoldu

suolauLg Bulal sigeung

Sullesunos pJojpuEAUBRLS |

AnigisseooyyAiige) eny

S5200B MAU UIm suosiad [N 40 #

3y Jo ANEeny aaosduw)

uswuolAug Buia ejgenng

0T0Z0L-0TCCET

{deo gd 01 1oalgns) seluAloy Buisnoy Jied

Alilqisseaoy/Alge|RAY

$S800B MBU LM suosiad [|NT 40 #

a7 Jo AjjenD saodduw|

WwalluolAug BulAr] S|geINg

LONUBABIJ/SSaUaIBMY ST

AqisseooyAlqeery

SSI00B MaU ypm suosiad N7 40 #

3ji7 jo Ajenty saoadw|

juswuoliAug Buini sigeUNS

TFETEL-DITTLT

Buiuiesy juswiojdwg

fliIssa0oy /Al Iqe BAY

SSa00E MaU yIm suosiad [ JO #

a7 Jo Aend aaoiduw)

sLuuolaug Bula s|genns

LETOEL-09TZLT

BUE)SINESSE |BNXes/a0Us|0iA bUlep
/S0US|OIA DISBLUOP JC SWHOIA 10} SBOIASS

AYliqISSa00YANIGE|IBAY

$S200B MaU ypm suosiad || Jo #

aJ17 Jo Ajlent anosduw

JBLIUONAUZ BUIAI S|geING

S90S SNy SoUBIsqnS

Anliaissa0avsAL el AY

$SO00E Mol LIm suossad ||y 1o #

aJ17 Jo AjllEND sacldw)

uswuciaug Buia s|geyng

TTOZEL-COTTLT

s290KUBg uoeuodsuel |

AIqisse0oyAYIqe|BAY

S58008 Mal yum suosiad |7 10 #

417 Jo Ajljen aaolduw)

wawuolaug Bulan sigeuns

SBTZEL-09TZLT

SO0IAIBS YINOA

Ajnqissesy/AlIge ey

$$HI08 MBU LI Suosied |1 40 &

a7 40 Allleny aaolduy

wawuoliaug Buta s|geyng

ELOTEL-QSTTLT

saoineg [eba

AlnqissacayAniqee sy

£59008 MaU Uim suosiad |10 #

2417 Jo Ajend aaoudud|

juswiuosiaug Bura sjgeung

SES0EL-0STZLT

saMgEsIq Yim SU0sIad 1o} Sa0Inag

CLLTEL-0STTLT

$80IAISG 10IUSS

ARilqISS200Y/ANNgElRAY

SS900E M3l Uim suoslad [T 40 #

a7 0 Ajenp saoidw

JuBuIUoNAUS BUIAIT 3|gBENS

swielbold siuaned Salv/ssalawoH

SADIAYIS 21Nand . ¢

ssa908 panosdWMau yIm HH 1IN 40 4 seiiunwiwos) uayiBuang

syled oo a)qoy ajeald BUIAQS Sis)eys opello

Rngeuieisng weluonAuT Bul 2|qBYNS
fgeuresng WBNg wnig senunWWog uayibuays |uswuoiaug BuINT ageung | 08Z1E-0412.L uolenlasald SLOISIH [eiUSpISEY-UON
fupgeuresng 555998 parcsduwmau yum HH AT 0 # senunwwen uayibusig |uewuonaug Buian s|geuns san paumQ Aleald

Aynqeuieisng

558008 panosdilmau yum HH |IAT 30 #

sanunwwos uaybusis

wswuoaug BuinT a|geIng

20UR)SISSY LI

Q3INNILNOD SINIWIAONMdWI ANY SAILINIDVYL 21T7and

awoRny

lojeoipu|

E:ooo<

B




| Beneflts low- and moderate-income persons
For the National Objective that principally benefits low- and moderate-income
selected, describe how the activity will address ONE of the subcategories listed below:

persons is

1) Area Benefit Activity - Those projects carried out in a neighborhood consisting
predominantly of LMI persons and providing services for such persons yet could be available
to other non-income eligible persons in the area. This information can be documented by
documenting that the area is primarily residential (e.g., zoning map); and that the income
characteristics of households in the service area (i.e., Census data)

2) Limited Clientele Activity - Those that benefit a specmc group of people {rather than all
the residents in a particular area) who are, or presumed to be, income eligible. In order to meet
the LMI Limited Clientele criteria, the actwlty must: serve at least 51% LMI, as evidenced by
documentation and data concerning beneficiary family size and income; have income eligibility
requirements which limit the service to persons meeting the LMl income requirements, as
evidenced by procedures, intake/application forms, income Iimits and other sources of
documentation; serve a specific group presumed by HUD to be income-eligible include:
abused children, battered persons, elderly persons, handicapped adults, homeless persons,
illiterate persons, migrant farm workers and persons living with AIDS; and be of such a nature
and in a location that it may be concluded that the activity’s clientele are LMI.

3) Income Eligible Housing Activity - These projects add or improve a permanent residential
structure wherein, upon completion, income eligible persons will occupy 51% or more of the
housing units.

4) Job Creation or Retention Activity - A project which creates or retains permanent jobs, of
which at least 51% are either taken by or available to income eligible persons.

570.208(a))

JUSTIFICATION:

Aids in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight

For the National Objective that principally aids in the prevention of elimination of slums or blight
is selected, describe how the activity will address ONE of the subcategories listed below:

1) At least 25% of the properties throughout the area exhibit the following:
a. Physical detericration of buildings/improvements;
b. Abandonment of properties;
c. Chronic high oceupancy turnover rates or chronic high vacancy rates in commercial or
industrial buildings;
d. Significant declines in property values or abnormally low property values relative to other
areas in the community; or
e. Known or suspected environmental contamination

2) Public improvements throughout the area are in a general state of deterioration.

Documentation must be maintained by the grantee on the boundaries of the area and the
conditions that qualified the area at the time of its designation. The designation of an area as
slum or blighted must be re-determined every 10 years for continued gualifications.

570.208(b))

JUSTIFICATION:




Project#2 Allocation: $5,000

Provide a detailed ‘désé'r:ptlorﬁ]méf theproposed activity |r‘|E:lud|ng how tﬁ'éwactlwty will address the
needs of the community: Services for abused spouses / children — part of county contract w/Haven

|dentify who will benefit from the proposed activity (ex: homeless, abused children, seniors, etc). If
your program was designed to benefit persons on L/M income, describe the process you will use to
identify these persons (process for income verification if persons are not members of HUD's
presumed L/M clientele): City CDBG Funds will pay for South Lyons Contribution to support Haven




AGENDA NOTE

New Business # 1.

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2021
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Attorney

AGENDA TOPIC:  Consider approval of Revised Resolution Establishing Policies and Guidelines for
Granting Poverty Exemption from Payment of Property Taxes

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:

Due to recent changes to the General Property Tax Act, specifically MCL 211.7u, the provision commonly
referred to as the Poverty Exemption, the Resolution Establishing Policies and Guidelines for Granting
Poverty Exemption from Payment of Property Taxes needs revision. The attached revised Resolution
Establishing Policies and Guidelines for Granting Poverty Exemption from Payment of Property Taxes
removes the City application requirement and specifies the exemption amounts of 25%, 50% or 100%. The
Resolution will remain in effect without having to approve a revised resolution each year after the annual
income levels is updated.

This revised Resolution is acceptable to Oakland County Equalization. If approved now, the Resolution
would be effective for the March Board of Review.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Resolution Establishing Policies
and Guidelines for Granting Poverty Exemption from Payment of Property Taxes.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve/No Action/Postpone

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion to approve the revised resolution establishing policies and
guidelines for granting poverty exemption from payment of property taxes.



RESOLUTION No.

CITY OF SOUTH LYON
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICIES AND
GUIDELINES
FOR GRANTING POVERTY EXEMPTION FROM
PAYMENT OF PROPERTY TAXES

WHEREAS, the adoption of guidelines for poverty exemptions is required of the City
Council; and

WHEREAS, the principal residence of persons, who the Board of Review determines by reason
of poverty to be unable to contribute to the public charge, is eligible for exemption in whole or in
part from taxation under Public Act 390 of 1994 (MCL 211.7u); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Act 390 of 1994, the City of South Lyon, Oakland County,
adopts the following policies and guidelines for the Board of Review to implement. The policies
and guidelines shall be applied to the information provided in a sworn to Michigan Department
of Treasury Form 5737, Application for MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption, which application
includes, but is not limited to, the disclosure of the specific income and asset levels of the claimant
and all persons residing in the household, including any property tax credit returns filed in the
current or immediately preceding year;

AND WHEREAS, P.A. 253 0f 2020 also amended Section 7u of Act No. 206 of the Public Act of
1893, as amended by Act No. 313 of the Public Acts of 1993, being sections 211.7u of the
Michigan Compiled Laws, and required the use of state prescribed forms and limited to certain
percentages the exemption amount which could be granted.

WHEREAS, to be eligible, a person shall do all the following on an annual basis:

1} Bethe “sole” owner(s) of and occupy, as a principal residence, the property for which
an exemption is requested, and have no ownership interest in any other real estate,
including being the beneficiary of a trust which owns real estate.

2) The subject property must be classified as an “improved single family residential” or
“residential condominium” property with a valid Homeowner’s Principal Residence
Exemption currently in effect.

3) File the Michigan Department of Treasury Form 5737, Application for MCL 211.7u



4)

5)

6)

7

8

9

Poverty Exemption with the Board of Review by returning it to the City Assessor’s
office, accompanied by all documents required by the form. If the applicant or the
other household members have not filed tax returns, a Form 4988 — Poverty
Exemption Affidavit and a statement from the Social Security Administration
and/or Michigan Social Services as to monies paid to applicant(s) during the
previous year must be completed and submitted. Disabled applicanis may call
the Assessor’s office to make arrangements for assistance with filing the
application.

File an application reporting that the assets of all persons in the houschold do not
exceed two times the federal poverty income guidelines amount for the effective
household size. Assets generally include: other real estate, motor vehicles,
recreational vehicles and equipment, insurance, retirement funds, trust assets,
checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit, cash, stocks, bonds, time
share units, artworks, antiques, coins, precious metals or stones, jewelry, guns,
equipment, tax refunds, gifts, loans, other investments or personal property value.
Applicants must meet the federal poverty income guidelines as defined and
determined annually by the United States Department of Health and Human Services
established by the State Tax Commission to be updated annually. All applicants must
own and occupy the property as a homestead on the property for which the exemption

s being requested. All applicants may be asked to verify ownership of the property

and provide personal identification upon request of the Board of Review.

Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification, if requested.

Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the
property for which an exemption is requested.

All property taxes must be paid and current.

The application for an exemption shall be filed after J anuary 1, and at least one day
prior to the last day of the Board of Review. The filing of the application constitutes
an appearance before the Board of Review for the purpose of preserving the right of
appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.

Applicants need not appear before the Board of Review, but are encouraged to do so
to be available to provide further information or clarification to the Board of Review.
Applicants who do not initially appear may be required to appear at the Board of
Review to respond to questions. Applicants should understand that the failure to
appear at the Board of Review, if requested by the Board of Review, may result in
the denial of the Application. If the applicant is disabled, alternate procedures may

be allowed pursuant to the City’s obligation in the application of the Americans with
Disabilities Act,

10} The Board of Review shall in no instance require an applicant to have less household



income than the applicable poverty income level for the household size.

11)The Board of Review may award full and/or partial exemptions in the amounts of
25%, 50% or 100% .

WHEREAS, the federal poverty income guidelines are updated annually by the United States
Depariment of Health and Human Services, and the annual allowable income guidelines include
income for all persons residing in the principal residence.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Review shall follow the
above stated policies guidelines in granting or denying an exemption. The same standards shall
apply to each taxpayer within the city claiming the poverty exemption for the assessment year.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that in order to ease the burden on taxpayers, the assessor and
the Board of Review and to ensure that all taxpayers have an equal opportunity to be heard by
the Board of Review, the City of South Lyon hereby resolves, according to provisions of MCL
211.30(8) of the General Property Tax Act, that the Board of Review shall receive letters of protest
regarding assessments from resident taxpayers from the first Tuesday in March until it adjourns
from the public hearings for which it meets to hear such protests. All motices of assessment change
and all advertisements of Board of Review meetings are to include a statement that the resident
taxpayers may protest by letter to the Board be it further resolved that this resolution is hereby
given immediate effect and will stay in effect for subsequent years until amended or voided.

'The foregoing resolution was offered by, and supported by

Upon roll call vote, the following voted:
Roll call vote: Yes-
No-

The City Clerk declared the resolution,

Lisa Deaton



OFFICE USE ONLY {Date Stamp)

City of South Lyon

2021
Poverty/Hardship
Exemption Application

NAME: PARCEL NUMBER:

CITY OF SOUTH LYON
BOARD OF REVIEW




City of South Lyon Board Policy for Applicants Requesting Consideration Under SECTION 211.7u of the
GENERAL PROPERTY TAX ACT OF 1893: THE MICHIGAN HOMESTEAD POVERTY EXEMPTION.

To be eligible, a person shall do all of the following on an annual basis:

1.

10.

11.

Be the “sole” owner(s) of and occupy, as a principal residence, the property for which an exemption is
requested, and have no ownership interest in any other real estate, including being the beneficiary of a trust
which owns real estate.

The subject property must be classified as an “improved single family residential” or “residential
condominium” property with a valid Homeowner’s Principal Residence Exemption currently in effect.

File the Michigan Department of Treasury Form 5737, Application for MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption with
the Board of Review by returning it to the City Assessor’s office, accompanied by all documents required by
the form. If the applicant or the other household members have not filed tax returns, a Form 4988 — Poverty
Exemption Affidavit and a statement from the Social Security Administration and/or Michigan Social
Services as to monies paid to applicant(s) during the previous year must be completed and submitted.
Disabled applicants may call the Assessor’s office to make arrangements for assistance with filing the
application.

File an application with the Board of Review by returning it to the City Assessor’s office or Oakland County
Equalization, accompanied by federal and state income tax returns for all persons residing in the
prineipal residence, including any property tax credit returns filed in the immediately preceding year and
the current year. If the applicant or the other houschold members have not filed tax returns, a Form
4988 — Poverty Exemption Affidavit and a statement from the Social Security Administration and/or
Michigan Social Services as to monies paid to applicani(s) during the previous year must be
completed and submitted. Disabled applicants may call the Assessor’s office to make arrangements
for assistance with filing the application.

File an application reporting that the combined assets of all persons in the household do not exceed two
times the federal poverty income guidelines amount for the effective household size. Assets generally
include: other real estate, motor vehicles, recreational vehicles and equipment, life insurance, retirement
funds, trust assets, checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit, cash, stocks, bonds, time-
share units, artworks, antiques, coins, precious metals or stones, jewelry, guns, equipment, tax refunds, gifts
loans, other investments or personal property of value.

B

Meet the federal poverty income guidelines for the prior tax year as defined and determined annually by
the United States Department of Health and Human Services as established by the State Tax Commission-
to be updated annually.

Produce a valid driver’s license or other form of identification, if requested.

Produce, if requested, a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property for which an
exemption is requested.

All propetty taxes must be paid and cutrent.

The application for an exemption shall be filed after January 1, and at least one day prior to the last day of
the Board of Review. The filing of the application constitutes an appearance before the Board of Review for
the purpose of preserving the right of appeal to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.

Applicants need not appear before the Board of Review but are encouraged to do so to be available to
provide further information or clarification to the Board of Review. Applicants who do not initially appear
may be required to appear at the Board of Review to respond to questions. Applicants should understand
that the failure to appear at the Board of Review, if requested by the Board of Review, may result in the

2



denial of the Application. If the applicant is disabled, alternate procedures may be allowed pursuant to the
City’s obligation in the application of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

12. The Board of Review shall in no instance require an applicant to have less household income than the
applicable poverty income level for the household size.

13. The Board of Review may award full and/or partial exemptions in the amounts of 25%, 50% or 100%.

2021 FEDERAL POVERTY GUIDELINES

US Department of Health & Human Services
STC Bulletin 17 of 2020

Size of Family Unit Poverty Guidelines Asset Limit
1 $12,760 $25.520
2 $17,240 $34,480
3 $21,720 $43,440
4 $26,200 $52,400
5 $30,680 $61,360
6 $35,160 $70,320
7 $39,640 $79,280
8 $44,120 $88,240
For each additional
person 34,480 $8,960




POVERTY APPLICATION CHECK LIST

Applications may be filed w/ this office beginning January 1, but in no event later than the day
prior to the last day of the Board of review

Applicants must submit most recent year’s copies of the following for all persons
residing in the homestead:

o Completed Signed Poverty Exemption Application

o Federal Income Tax Return — 1040 or 1040A for all persons residing in the
home. (Please include supporting documents i.e. W-2 Forms, 1099 Forms)

o State of Michigan Income Tax Returns for all persons residing in the home.

o MI-1040-CR.

o Ifapplicant did not file Michigan State Income Tax Return, they MUST provide
an annual statement of benefits paid from the Social Security Administration or
Michigan Department of Social Services and must sign State of Michigan Form
4988 Poverty Exemption Affidavit (attached).

o W-2 Forms (Do not need if on Social Security)

o The applicant must supply a copy of current driver's license or other form of
valid identification.

* All requested information must be included with Poverty Exemption Application.
Without the above information the Board will not consider your application.

Michigan Department of Treasury
5737 (01-21)



Application for MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption

This form is issued under the authority of the General Property Tax Act, Public Act 206 of 1 893, MCL 211.7u.

MCL 211.7u of the General Property Tax Act, Public Act 206 of 1893, provides a property tax exemption for the principal residence of
persons who, by reason of poverty, are unable to contribute toward the public charges. This application is to be used to apply for the
exemption and must be filed with the Board of Review where the property is located. This application may be submitted to the city or
township the property is located in each year on or after January 1.

To be considered complete, this application must: 1) be completed in its entirety, 2) include information regarding all members
residing within the household, and 3) include all required documentation as listed within the application. Please write legibly and attach
additional pages as necessary.

PART 1: PERSONAL INFORMATION: Petitioner must list all required personal information.

Petitioner’s Name: Daytime Phene Number:
Age of Petitioner: Marital Status: Age of Spouse: Number of Legal Dependents:
Properly Address of Principal Residence: City: State: ZIP Code:

Amount of H tead P Tax Credit:
] Checkif applied for Homestead Property Tax Credit omestead Property red

PART 2: REAL ESTATE INFORMATION: List the real estate information related to your principal residence. Be prepared to
rovide a deed, land contract or other evidence of ownership of the property at the Board of Review meeting,

Property Parcel Code Number: Name of Mortgage Company:
Unpaid Balance Owed on Principal Residence: Monthly Payment: Length of Time at this Residence:
Property Description:

PART 3: ADDITIONAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: List information related to any other property owned by you or any
member residing in the household.

. . Amount of T Earned from Other P :
[0 Check if you own, or are buying, other property. If checked, QUIL O Income Barne or Froperty
complete the information below
Property Address: City: State: ZIP Code:
i
Name of Owner(s): Assessed Value: Date of Last Taxes Paid: | Amount of Taxes Paid:
Property Address: City: State: ZIP code:
2
Name of Owner(s): Assessed Value: Date of Last Taxes Paid: | Amount of Taxes Paid:

PART 4: EMPLOYMENT INFORMATION: List your current employment information.



Name of Employer:

Address of Employer:

City:

State: ZIP Code:

Contact Person:

Employer Telephone Number:

PART 5: INCOME SOURCES: List all income sources, including but not limited to: salaries, Social Security, rents, pensions, IRAs
(individual retirement accounts), unemployment compensation, disability, government pensions, worker’s compensation, dividends,
clairns and judgments from lawsuits, alimony, child support, friend or family contribution, reverse mortgage, or any other source of

income, for all persons regiding at the property.

Source of Income

Monthly or Annual Income
(indicate which)

PART 6: CHECKING, SAVINGS AND INVESTMENT INFORMATION: List any and all savings owned by all household
members, including but not limited to: checking accounts, savings accounts, postal savings, credit union shares, certificates of deposit,

cash, stocks, bonds, or similar investments, for all persons residing at the property.

Name of Financial Institution or Investments| Amount of Deposit Current Name on Account Value of
Interest Rate Investment
PART 7: LIFE INSURANCE: List all policies keld by all household members.
Name of Insured Amount of Policy Monthly Policy Paid in Name of Beneficiary Relationship to
Payments Full Insured

PART 8: MOTOR VEHICLE INFORMATION: All motor vehicles (including motorcycles, motor homes, camper trailers, etc.)
held or owned by any person residing within the household must be listed.

Make

Year

Monthly Payment Balance Owed

PART 9: HOUSEHOLD OCCUPANTS: List all persons living in the household.

6




First and Last Name

Relationship to
Applicant

Place of Employment $ Contribution to Family

Income

PART 10: PERSONAL DEBT: List all personal debt for all household members.

Creditor

Purpose of Debt

Date of Debt | Original Balance | Monthly Payment

Balance Owed

PART 11: MONTHLY EXPENSE INFORMATION: The amount of monthly expenses related to the principal residence for each
category must be listed. Indicate N/A as necessary.

Heating Electric Waler Phone

Cable Food Clothing _ Health Insurance
Garbage Daycare Car Expenses (gas, repair, etc.)
Other (type and amount) Other (type and amount) Other (type and amount)

Other (type and amount) Other (type and amount) Other (type and amount)




NOTICE: Per MCL 211.7u(2)(b), federal and state income tax returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including any property tax
credit returns, filed in the immediately preceding year or in the current year must be submitted with this application. Federal and state income tax
returns are not required for a person residing in the principal residence if that person was not required to fil a federal or state income tax return in the
tax year in which the exemption under this section is claimed or in the immediately preceding tax year.

PART 12: POLICY AND GUIDELINES ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

The governing body of the local assessing unit shall determine and make available to the public the policy and guidelines used for the
granting of exemptions under MCL 211.7u. In order to be eligible for the exemption, the applicant must meet the federal poverty
guidelines published in the prior calendar year in the Federal Register by the United States Department of Health and Human Services
under its authority to revise the poverty line under 42 USC 9902, or alternative guidelines adopted by the governing body of the local
assessing unit so long as the alternative guidelines do not provide income eligibility requirements less than the federal guidelines. The
policy and guidelines must include, but are not limited to, the specific income and asset levels of the claimant and total household
income and assets. The combined assets of all persons must not exceed the limits set forth in the guidelines adopted by the local
assessing umit.

(] The applicant has reviewed the applicable policy and guidelines adopted by the city or township, including the specific income and asset
levels of the claimant and total household incorne and assets.

PART 13: CERTIFICATION:

I'hereby certify to the best of my knowledge that the information provided in this form is complete, accurate and I am eligible for
the exemption from the property taxes pursuant to Michigan Compiled Law, Section 211.7u.

Printed Name Signature Date

This application shall be filed after January 1, but before the day prior to the last day of the local unit’s December Board of
Review,

Decision of the March Board of Review may be appealed by petition to the Michigan Tax Tribunal by July 31 of the current
year. A July or December Board of Review decision may be appealed to the Michigan Tax Tribunal by petition within 35 days
of decision. A copy of the Board of Review decision must be included with the petition.

Michigan Tax Tribunal
PO Box 30232
Lansing MI 48909

Phone: 517-335-9760
E-mail: taxtrib@michigan.gov



Michigan Department of Treasury
4988 (05-12)

Poverty Exemption Affidavit
This form is issued under authority of Public Act 206 of 1893; MCL 211.7u.

INSTRUCTIONS: When completed, this document must accompany a taxpayer’s Application for Poverty
Exemption filed with the supervisor or the board of review of the local unit where the property is located.
MCL 211.7u provides for a whole or partial property tax exemption on the principal residence of an owner of
the property by reason of poverty and the inability to contribute toward the public charges. MCL 211.7u(2)(b)
requires proof of eligibility for the exemption be provided to the board of review by supplying copies of federal
and state income tax returns for all persons residing in the principal residence, including property tax credit
returns, or by filing an affidavit for all persons residing in the residence who were not required to file federal or
state income tax returns for the current or preceding tax year.

l, , swear and affirm by my signature below that |
reside in the principal residence that is the subject of this Application for Poverty Exemption and that
for the current tax year and the preceding tax year, | was not required to file a federal or state income

tax return.

Address of Principal Residence:

Signature of Person Making Affidavit Date



AGENDA NOTE

New Business # &
MEETING DATE: February 22, 2021
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: City Manager
AGENDA TOPIC: Investment Policy

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The City of South Lyon has engaged with ANDCO
Consulting Group to create an updated investment policy for the City of South Lyon.
The previous policy was last updated in 1998. Attached is the agreement with ANDCO
Consulting Group, and the copy of the Investment Policy.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Agreement with
ANDCOQ Consulting Group, Investment Policy.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve or not approve the Agreement with
ANDCO Consulting Group to provide an Investment Policy for the City of South Lyon.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by

to approve the Agreement with ANDCO
Consulting Group to provide an Investment Policy for the City of South Lyon.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve or not approve the Investment Policy
for the City of South Lyon.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to approve the Investment Policy for the City of

South Lyon.



AGREEMENT FOR INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND
ADVISORY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT effective as of the day of , 2021 between ANDCO
CONSULTING, LLC (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant” or “AndCo”) and CITY OF
SOUTH LYON (hereinafter referred to as “Client”).

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, Consultant 1s in the business of providing investment performance monitoring and
advisory services; and
WHEREAS, Client is vested with the authority and responsibility for the investment and
administration of the assets of the City of South Lyon (hereinafter referred to as the “Plan’), and;
WHEREAS, Client desires Consultant to provide investment performance monitoring and
advisory services with respect to the Plan;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises herein contained,
the parties agree as follows:

A. SERVICES OF CONSULTANT
Consultant shall provide the following services to Client:
1. Review and update current Investment Policy Statement to reflect current best practices.
2. Update Investment Policy Statement specific to the Municipal Employees Retirement
System of Michigan Retiree Health Funding Vehicle.
3. Update Investment Policy to reflect utilization of Oakland County Local Government
Investment Pool.
4. Coordinate with City Manager, Treasurer and Finance and Benefit Administrator on review
of draft language as needed.
5. Review final edits following City Attorney review of proposed Investment Policy
Statement.

6. Attend City Council meeting to answer any questions related to final draft of document.

B. FEES TO CONSULTANT
In consideration of the services rendered by Consultant, the Client shall pay a one-time fec of
$3,000, to be billed upon the conclusion of the project.

C. MISCELLANEOUS

1. Consultant covenants and agrees that it is an independent contractor and not an officer, agent
or employee of Client.

2. Consultant shall, at its sole expense, maintain Professional Liability Insurance coverage in the
amount of $15,000,000.

3. All information and advice furnished by either party to the other, including their authorized
representatives, agents and employees, shall be treated as confidential and not disclosed to
third parties except as agreed upon in writing or required by law.

Page | 1



4. Neither party hereto may assign, convey, or otherwise transfer any of its rights, obligations, or
interest herein without the prior consent of the other party.

5. This Agreement may be amended or revised only by an instrument in writing signed by Client
and Consultant.

6. The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and
duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.

7. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original.

8. This Agreement shall become effective upon the date recorded in the preamble of this
Agreement.

9. Client acknowledges receipt of Consultant’s ADV Part 2 and Privacy Notice and authorizes
Consultant to deliver all future required disclosures electronically.

10. No provision of this Agreement which shall be deemed unenforceable shall in any way
invalidate any other provision of this Agreement, all of which shall remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Client has signed duplicates hercof, and Consultant had caused
its corporate name to be signed to said duplicates by its proper officers thereunder duly authorized
on the day and in the year first above written.

ANDCO CONSULTING, LL.C CITY OF SOUTH LYON
Signed: Signed:

Name: Name:

Title: ' Title:

Date: Date:

Page | 2



CITY OF SOUTH LYON

Draft Investment Policy Statement

Scope

This policy applies to the investment of funds for the City of South Lyon. Longer term funds,
including investments of employees’ investment retirement fund and proceeds from certain

bond issues, are covered by a separate policy. Investment guidelines specific to each asset poo!
are included as appendices to this policy.

Purpose

This statement of Investment Policies is set forth to:

a.
b.

f.

Define and assign the responsibilities of all involved parties.

Establish a clear understanding for all involved parties of the investment goals and
objectives of the asset pools.

Offer guidance and limitations to all Investment Managers regarding the investment
of assets.

Establish a basis for evaluating investment results.

Manage assets according to prudent standards as described herein under the
“Standards of Care.”

Establish the relevant investment horizon for which the assets will be managed.

This document will identify and present a set of Investment Policies which will serve to
provide guidance to the Investment Manager(s). It is intended to be sufficiently specific to be
meaningful, yet flexible enough to be practical.

1.

Pooling of Funds — Except for cash in certain restricted and special funds, the City of South
Lyon may consolidate cash balances when practicable from all funds to try to maximize
investment earnings while still maintaining short term cash flow. Investment income wil}
be allocated to the various funds based on their respective participation and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Standards of Care

Prudence — The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the
“prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing procedures
and this investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal
responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes provided
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the liquidity and the
sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy.

Investments shall be made with the judgment and care, under circumstances then
prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the

February 2021 Page 1




Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

2. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest — Officers and employees involved in the investment
process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper
execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability
to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any
material interest in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They shall
further disclose any personal financial / investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on behalf of the City. Officers, employees, and service providers
are expected to follow the City's Ordinances and Ethics Policy.

3. Delegation of Authority — Authaority to manage the investment program is granted to the
Investment Team, which shall be comprised of the City Manager, Finance & Benefits
Administrator, and Treasurer. Responsibility for the operation of the investment program
is hereby delegated to the investment team, who shall act in accordance with established
written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the investment program
consistent with this investment policy. Procedures should include references to
safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire
transfer agreements, and collateral / depository agreements. No person may engage in
an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy and the
procedures established by the investment team. The investment team shall be
responsible for alt transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to
regulate the activities of subordinate officials. The Investment Manager for each
investment fund shall be the firm or individual hired by the City to work with the
Investment Team in managing that investment fund.

A concurrence of a majority of the members of the Investment Team is required to
authorize a transaction.

V. Safekeeping and Custody

1. Authorized Financial Dealer and Institutions — A list will be maintained of financial
institutions authorized to provide investment services. In addition, a list also will be
maintained of approved security brokers / dealers selected by credit worthiness (e.g. a
minimum capital requirement of $10,000,000 and at least five years of operation). These
may include “primary” dealers of regional dealers that quality under Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital rule).

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become qualified for
investment transactions must supply the following as appropriate:

a. Audited financial statements
b. Proof of National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) Certification
¢. Proof of state registration

d. Completed broker/dealer questionnaire

February 2021 Page 2




Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

e. Certification of having read and understood and agreeing to comply with the
City of South Lyon’s investment policy. Itis understoed that commingled funds
such as Oakland County LGIP or MERS RHFV are governed by prospectus and
would not require certification of compliance with these investment policies.

An annual review of the financial condition and registration of qualified financial
institutions and broker/dealers will be conducted by the investment team.

Internal Controls — The investment team is responsible for establishing and maintaining
an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are protected
from loss, theft, or misuses. The internal control structure shall be designed to provide
reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Accordingly, the investment team shall establish a process for an annual independent
review by an external auditor to assure compliance with policies and procedures. The
internal controls shall address the following points:

a. Control of collusion

b. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and recordkeeping
c. Custodial safekeeping

d. Avoidance of physical delivery securities

e. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members

f.  Written confirmation of transactions for investment and wire transfers.

g. Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party
custodian.

Delivery vs. Payment — All trades where applicable will be executed by delivery vs.
payment (DVP) to ensure that securities are deposited in an eligible financial institution
prior to the release of funds. Securities will be held by a third-party custodian as
evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

VII. Reporting

1.

Methods — The investment team shall prepare an investment report at least annually,
including a management summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current
investment portfolio and transactions made over the trailing 12 month period. This
management summary will be prepared in a manner which will allow the City to ascertain
whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the
investment policy. The report should be provided to the investment team, the City
Council, and any pool participants. The report will include the following, as applicable:

a. Listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period.
b. Listing of investment by maturity date.

c. Percentage of the total portfolio which each type of investment represents.

February 2021 Page 3




Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

d. Each investment manager's adherence to policy guidelines.

2. Performance Standards - The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with
the parameters specified within this policy.

3. Marking to Market — The market value of the portfolio shall be calculated at least
quarterly and a statement of the market value of the portfolio shall be issued at least
quarterly. This will ensure that review of the investment portfolio, in terms of value and
price volatility, has been performed consistent with the GFOA Recommended Practice on
“Mark to Market Practices for State and Local Government Investment Portfolios and
Investment Pools.” In defining market value, considerations should be given to the GASB
Statement 31 pronouncement.

VIII. Policy Considerations

1. Exemption — Any investment currently held that does not meet the guidelines of this
policy shall be exempted from the requirements of this policy. At maturity or liquidation,
such monies shall be reinvested only as provided by this policy.

2. Amendments — This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis. Any changes must be
approved by the investment team and any other appropriate authority, as will the
individuals charged with maintaining internal controls.

The foregoing is a complete copy of the Investment Policy of the City of South Lyon as adopted
by the South Lyon City Council on February 8, 2021,

Fehruary 2021 Page 4




Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

Appendix A — Short Term Cash

L. General Objectives

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity and
yield.

1. Safety — Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest
rate risk.

a. Credit Risk — The City will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of
the security issuer or backer, by:

i. Limiting investments to the safest types of securities.

ii. Pre-gualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries,
and advisers with which they City will do business.

iii. Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized.

b. Interest Rate Risk — The City will minimize the risk that the market value of
securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in general interest rates, by:

i. Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity.

ii. Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money
market mutual funds, or similar investment pools.

2. Liquidity — The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating
requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by structuring
the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated
demands (static liquidity). Furthermore, since all possible cash demands cannot be
anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or
resale markets {dynamic liquidity). A portion of the portfolio also may be placed in money
market mutual funds or local government investment pools which offer same day liquidity
for shorter term funds.

3. Yield ~The investment portfolio shall be desighed with the objective of attaining a market
rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, considering the investment risk
constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary importance
compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. The core of investments
are limited to relatively Yow risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative
to the risk being assumed. Securities shall not be sold prior to maturity with the following
exceptions:

a. A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal.

February 2021 Page 5




Draft City of South Lyon ~ Investment Policy Statement
b. A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the
portfolio.

¢. Liguidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold.

. Suitable and Authorized Investments

1. Investment Types— Consistent with the GFOA Policy Statement on State and Local Laws
Concerning Investment Practices, the following investment will be permitted by this
policy and are those defined by state and local law where applicable:

a. US government obligations, US government agency obligations, and US
government instrumentality obligations, which have a liquid market with a readily
determinable market value.

b. Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions,
bankers’ acceptances, and commercial paper, rate in the highest tier (e.g. A-1, P-
1, F-1 or D-1 or higher} by a nationally recognize rating agency.

c. Investment grade obligations state, provincial and local governments, and public
authorities.

d. Repurchase agreements whose underlying purchased securities consisting of the
foregoing.

e. Moneymarket mutual funds regulated by the SEC and whose portfolio consist only
of dollar denominated securities.

f. Local government investment pools, either state administered or through joint
powers statutes and other intergovernmental agreement legislation. This
includes Local Government [nvestment Pools organized under Section 4 of Public
Act 121 of 1985, the Local Government Investment Pool Act.

Investment in derivatives of the above instruments shall require authorization by the City Council.

2. Collateralization — Where allowed by state law and in accordance with the GFOA
Recommended Practices on the Collateralization of Public Deposits, full collateralization
will be required on non-negotiable certificates of deposit.

3. Repurchase Agreements — Repurchase agreements shall be consistent with GFOA
Recommended Practices on Repurchase Agreements.

Investment Parameters
1. Diversification — The investments shall be diversified by:

a. Limiting investments to avoid overconcentration in securities from a specific
issuer or business sector (excluding US Treasury securities)

b. Limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks

¢. Investing in securities with varying maturities

February 2021 Page 6




Draft City of South Lyon — lnvestment Policy Statement

d. Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as
local government investment pools (LGIPS), money market funds or overnight
purchase agreements to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet
ongoing obligations.

2. Maximum Maturities — to the extent possible, the City shall attempt to match its
investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash
flow, the City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than five (5) years from
the date of purchase or in accordance with state and local statutes and ordinances. The
City shall adopt weighted average maturity limitations {which often range from 90 days
to 3 years), consistent with the investment objectives.

Reserve funds and other funds with longer-term investment horizons may be invested in
securities exceeding five (5) years if the maturity of such investments are made to
coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of funds. The intent to invest in
securities with longer maturities shall be disclosed in writing to the City Council.

Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a
portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available funds such as
LGIPS, money market funds, or overnight repurchase agreements to ensure that
appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.

February 2021 Page 7




Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

Appendix B — MERS Retiree Health Fund Vehicle

General Objectives

The MERS Retiree Health Fund Vehicle was established to provide for the retirement health
care benefits for covered employees, retirees, and their beneficiaries. It is funded by the City
of South Lyon.

The priority listing of investment objectives is as follows:

1. Preservation of Capital - Consistent with their respective investment styles and
philosophies, make reasonable efforts to preserve capital, understanding that losses
may occur in individual securities.

2. Risk Aversion - Understanding that risk is present in all types of securities and
investment styles, recognize that some risk is necessary to produce long-term
investment results that are sufficient to meet the pool’s objectives. However,
reasonable efforts are to be made to control risk, and will be evaluated regularly to
ensure that the risk assumed is commensurate with the given investment style and
objectives.

3. Diversification of Assets — Investments of the pool shall be so diversified as to
endeavor to minimize the risk of large losses, unless under the circumstances it is
clearly prudent not to do so.

4, Liguidity of Assets — Cash is to be employed productively at all times, by investment of
short-term cash equivalents to provide safety, liquidity, return, and restructuring of
the portfolio to meet the pool’s changing needs over time.

To meet its obligations, the investment objective of the pool is to emphasize total return:
that is, the aggregate return from capital appreciation and dividend and interest income.

The primary investment return objective shall be:

Long-Term Growth of Capital — To emphasize long-term growth of principal
while avoiding excessive risk. Short-term volatility will be tolerated inasmuch as
it is consistent with the volatility of a comparable market index.

The secondary investment return objective shall be:

Income and Growth - To achieve a balanced return of current income and
modest growth of Principal

Suitable and Authorized Investments

1. Investment Types — Consistent with the MERS Retiree Health Funding Vehicle offering,
funds shall be allocated into one or more of the following vehicles.

a. MERS Total Market Portfolio
b. MERS Global Stock Portfolio

February 2021 Page 8




-

= m

k.

Draft City of South Lyon — Investment Policy Statement

MERS Capital Appreciation Portfolio
MERS Established Market Portfolio
MERS Balanced Income Portfolio
MERS Capital Preservation Portfolio
MERS Diversified Bond Portfolio
Large Cap Stock Index

Mid Cap Stock Index

Small Cap Stock Index

International Stock Index

Emerging Market Stock

m. Short-Term Income

2. Investments made may include pooled funds. For purposes of this policy pooled funds
may include, but are not limited to, mutual funds, commingled funds, exchange-traded
funds, limited partnerships, and limited liability corporations. Pooled funds may be
governed by separate documents which may include investments not expressly
permitted in this IPS.

SPECIFIC INVESTMENT GOALS

Over a given market cycle, (typically defined as 3 to 5 years), thetime weighted total rate of
investment return should exceed, for the pool and its underlying investment strategies, an
appropriately designed custom benchmark.

Performance comparison for the overall pool shall be compared against a readily available
public fund universe.

The goal of each Investment Manager, over the investment horizon, shall be to:

1. Meet or exceed the market index, or blended market index, that most closely
corresponds to the style of investmentmanagement.

2. Display an overall level of risk in the portfolio, which is consistent with the risk
associatedwith the benchmark specified above. Risk will be measured by the standard
deviation of quarterly returns.

February 2021

Page 9




AGENDA NOTE

New Business Item #3

MEETING DATE: February 22, 2021
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: Recommendation from Planning Commission

AGENDA TOPIC: First Reading of Ordinance to Amend the Official Zoning Map of the City of South
Lyon Conditionally Rezoning 34.42 acres Parcel No. 21-30-126-003, from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-3
(Single-Family Residential), using the Open Space Preservation Option,

EXPLANATION GF TOPIC: In October 2020, applicant Thomas Schroder, of Cornerstone Residential
Group, with permission from the property owner, Charles L. Smith, requested that the City rezone Parcel
No. 21-30-126~03 from I-1 (Light Industrial) to R-3 (Single Family Residential), using the Open Space
Preservation Option, with conditions that the development and use of the property be fimited to single-
tamily development project consisting of no more than 59 single family residential units. The owner's

request is submitted pursuant to MCL 125:3405 which authorizes rezoning with conditions voluntarily
offered by the owner of the property. ‘ :

BACKGROUND: The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on November 12, 2020, and tabled
the application for to obtain additional information from the applicant. Atthe January 11, 2021; Planning
Cornraission meeting, the Commission recormmended approval of the owner's request for conditional
rezoning based on the conditions voluntarily offered in writing by the owner: ‘

1. Installation ofa sidewalk along West Liake Street/Ten Mile Road, from subject's east property line
to 3. Hagadorn Sireet; This is 650+ lineal feet offsite walk along West further extend walkability
to the downtown area for a benefii to downtown businesses. ' S _

2. Developer to provide more sound deadening windows (triple pane) in all residential homes in the

proposed developrient to help mitigate noise concerns from the tube factory.
Developer to provide 2x6 walls and additional insulation on all proposed homes in the
development to mitigate noise concerns from:the tube factory.

[S5]

This property has been before the City’s Plamming Commission and City Council several times over the past
thirty (30) years. : o
1. OnMarch 13, 1989, at the request of the property owner, -the City approved a rezoning of the property
from R-2 (Single Family Residential) to I-1 (Light Industrial). o
2. In 1999 the property owner received site plan approval for a light industrial park, consisting of 11
units, commonly known as “West End.” . S
3. In 2003 utilities (water and sewer) and the road for the West End Industrial Park were -started. The
property was not further developed. ‘ - :
4. Tn 2016 the property owner requested rezoning of the property from I-1 (Light Industrial) to RM-1
(Mivltiple Family Residential). The request was denied by the Planning Commission and City Council.
5. On Sepiember 24, 2020, the property owner requested the property be rezoned to RT (Two-Family
Residential), however withdrew the application at the meeting.
6. Anapplication was submitted on November 11,2020 to rezone the property fromI-1 (Light Industrial)
to R-3 (Single-Family Residential) using the Open Space Preservation Option. :

Following the Planning Commission's recommendation, a draft Conditional Rezoning Agreement was
prepared. If the first reading is approved, Council will be asked to consider the second reading,

Conditional Rezoning Agreement, and Preliminary Open Space Preservation Site Plan approval at a future
meeting, _ '

CIB Planning's review letter dated J anuary 6, 2021 sets forth the details regarding the property and the
surrounding area, its zoning, and provides an analysis of the zoning amendment criteria, ‘



The conditions voluntarily offered by the owner are contained on page 3, Part 2, of the draft Conditional
Rezoning Agreement.

The drati Conditional Rezoring Agreement contains time limits, as authorized under MCL 125.3405(2),
which the owner must meet or the zoning of the parcel will revert back to R-IA:

6] Final site plan approval within six (6) months of the approval ofthe Agreement;

(i) A building permit for the project, or first phase, if applicable, obtained within
eighteen (18) months from the date of'the approval of this Agreement; and

(i) A final certificate of occupancy for the project or the first phase thereof, if

applicable, obtained within thirty (30) months from the date of the approval of
this Agreement.

The time limits can be extended by the City on written request of the owner, but the City is not requirad
to grant such requests for extension.

Once the use is established, it must be maintained in compliance with the conditions approved inthe
rezoning and agreement.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:

Ordinance to amend the official zoning map of the City of South Lyon conditionally rezoning
Parcel No. 21-30-126-003, from I-1 (Light Indusirial) to R-3 (Single Family Res1dent1a1) using
the Open Space Preservation Option.

Planning Commission minutes dated January 14, 2021 and November 12, 2021

CIB Review letter dated January 6, 2021

HRC Review letter dated January 13, 2021 and applicant response to HRC letter dated January 26,

2021

Application for Conditional Rezoning, dated October 2020
Property Owner letter authorizing Cornerstone to apply for the Conditional Rezoning dated July
11,2020

Apphcant’s Rezomng request Ietter dated October 27, 2020

Public Benefit letter dated February 10, 2021

Conditional Rezoning Fact Sheet

CIB Information on Vacani/Available Industrial Properiies
Applicant’s letter to Council Members, dated February 11, 2021
Letter and information from Mark Szerlag, dated December 1, 2020
Applicant’s “Other Property Information”

Public Hearing Notification

Rezoning Preliminary Site Plan, dated January 26, 2021

R-3 Parallel Plan

Conditional Zoning Agreement Draft

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve/Deny/Table/Postpone

SUGGESTED MOTIONS:

a. Motion to approve the first reading of the Ordinance to amend the official zoning map of the
City of South Lyen conditionally rezoning Parcel No. 21-30-126-003, from I-1 (Light Industrial) to
R-3 (Single-Family Residential) using the Open Space Preservation option as presented.



OR

Motion to deny conditionally rezoning of Parcel No. 21-30-126-003, fromI-1 (Light Industrial) to R-

3 (Single-Family Residential) using the Open Space Preservation option for the following reasons:

1. The Single-Family Residential designation is not consistent with the City’s Master Plan. The
parcel is planned for Industrial;

2. Single-Family Residential land use in the City is akmost 60% of the land. Less than five
percent (5%) of the City’s land is zoned and Master Planned for Industrial; therefore.
rezoning the property to Single-Family Residential does not meet a land use need/goal of the
Master Plan. ‘

3. Evidence has not been provided that demonstrates that the property can’t be used for any of
the permitted andspecial land uses in the current I-1, Light Industrial zoning district; and

4. The proposed use is not compatible with surrounding uses to the east and south.

OR

Motion to table/postpone the conditional rezoning request of Parcel No. 21-30-126-003, from I-1
(Light Industrial) to R-3 (Single-Family Residential) using the Open Space Preservation.



SRESE COMMUNITY
Dl T2)IMAGE BUILDERS

PLAMMIMG | MARKETING | ECOMOMIC DEVELOPIMENT

February 15, 2021

City of South Lycn
335 South Warren Street
South Lyon, M| 48178

Subject: Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Review, Light Industrial i-1, to Single.Famin Residential, R-3,
with Open Space Preservation development. Approximately 34.42 acres Iocated on the east side
Dlxboro Road, south of West Lake Street. Parcel # 21-31-126-003.

Dear Honorab!e Mayor Pelchat and City Council Members,

At your February 22, 2021 City Council meeting, you will review a Condltlonai Rezoning application for a
34.42-acre parcel on Dixboro Road. Due to the history of this property and the number of planning and
zoning development tools proposed for use, this agenda note is being sent to you with time for you to
review and ask any questions in advance of the meeting. My hope is that the information 1 provide will

more clearly identify the items of importance and standards for this review and specn‘y whatyou are being
asked to approve

Development Tools

1. Conditional Rezoning: In late 2020, Tom Schroder of Cornerstone Development, applied to
Conditionally Rezone Parcel #21-30-126-003, from I-1, Light Industrial, to R-3, Single Family
Residential. Property owner Charles Smith ‘gave Mr. - Schroeder, prospective developer,
authorization to apply for this Conditional Rezoning request. Conditional Rezonings are allowed
under the state Zoning Enabling Act {P.A.110 of 2006). (I am including d brief Conditional Rezoning
Fact Sheet for you to review and re-familiarize yourself with the development tool.) The City has
reviewed and approved two {2) Conditional Rezoning requests in the past several years. Only one
(1) of these two {2) came té fruition; West Lake Apartments at the corner of Dixboro and Ten Mile
Road—from RA-1, Single Family Residential to RM-3, Multiple Family Residential.

A Conditional Rezoning differs from a . Traditional/Conventional Rezoning. A
Tradstional/Conventlona] Rezoning changes the zoning . district designation and allows
deve!opment/use of any of the permitted uses in the district. A Conditional Rezoning is essentially
an “agreement” between the propérty owner and the commuhity that permits the rezoning of a
.specmc parcetfor a defined use and development plan. The propérty owner may voluntarily offer
“matertal community benefits” related to the proposed rezoning in exchange for the rezoning of
the parcel. A conceptual/preliminary site plan is required for a Conditional Rezoning to illustrate
the proposed development ordinance requirements can be met. This conceptual/preliminary plan
is tied to the rezoning of the property. No othet use or development can occur on the
conditionally rezoned property; only what is presented and approved as part of the Agreement.

17185 Silver Parkway, #309 Phone: 810-734-0000
Fenton, Vii 48430 - - Email: avantini@cibolanning.com




February 15, 2021
Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
Page 2

A Conditional Rezoning is evaluated using the City’s established Rezoning Criteria.
2. Open Space Preservaiion Development Option. In addition to the rezoning request, the

applicant is proposing to use the Open Space Preservation Option, Section 102-459 of the City’s
Zoning Ordinance, to develop the property. The Open Space Preservation Option is authorized

by the state Zoning Enabling Act (PA 110 of 2006). In exchange for the perpetual preservation of

a for a minimum of twenty percent (20%) open space area, tha same number of dwelling units
are permitied on a smaller portion of land than specified in the Zoning Ordinance, This provision
encourages the preservation of tracts of land with unique and sensitive natural features by
permitting the “transfer” of undeveloped land to developed areas. This is accomplished through
the smaller lot sizes in exchange for areas of preservation.

As the Cdnceptual/PreIiminary Site Plan is tied to the Rezaning request, a Preliminary Site Plan
review using the Open Space Preservation option was performed.

Background _
In September 2020, the applicant requested to rezone the subject property from I-1, Industrial to RT, Two
Family Residential. After discussion with the Planning Commission at the meeting, the request was
withdrawn by the applicant. The applicant subsequently applied for a Conditiona! Rezoning, from I-1,
Light Industrial to R-3, Single Family Residential, and to use the Open Space Preservation option. The
request and concept/preliminary site plan were presented to the Planning Commission on November 12,
2020. The application was tabled by the Commission so that the applicant could provide:

1. A market study or information {in writing) providing evidence that the property is not

marketable as Industrial and can’t be developed as Industrial;

2. Revised open space calculatlons and

3. New elevztions.
The applicant revised the open space calcula’uons submitted three (3) new elevations and floorplans,
and provided industrial property information (completed by Thomas Duke). The industrial property
llstlngs/lnformatlon provided does not constitute a study as no analysis is given. The information
contains many industrial parcels of land with praperty on the market for several years. This in an
indication that the subject property is not unique and the market for industrial property is soft. As
presented, | do not believe the Planning Commission’s request for a market study was satisfied.

On January 11, 2021, the Planning Commission reviewed the additional information provided and made
a recommendation to City Council to approve the Conditional Rezoning request and accompanying
Preliminary Open Space Preservation Site Plan with a 4-2 vote.

Cl1B Recommendation

My review letter dated January 6, 2021, contains the criteria in which the Conditional Rezoning is
evaluated as weil as the standards for the Preliminary Open Space Preservation Development. Based
upon my review of the Rezoning criteria, consistency with the City’s Master Plan, and the proposed use
as it relates to the surrounding zoning districts, { recommended denial of the Conditional Rézoning, as
the rezoning is not consistent with the Master Plan, the proposed use is not compatible with adjacent
land uses, and the rezonihg does not support the Master Plan goal of fully developing Industriat



February 15, 2021
Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
Page 3

properties in the City. The Preliminary Open Space Preservation Site Plan meets the criteria of the
ordinance, therefore, f recommended approval of the plan, should the Commission be inclined to approve
the Rezoning request. The January 6, 2021 letter comprehensively Iays out the request review criteria,
and my comments.

Processes
The precess for a Conditional Review is as follows:

*  Public Hearing at Planning Commission- November 12, 2020

*  Review of Conditional Rezoning “Offerings” and prehmmary Site Plan by P!annmg Comm;ss:on
Recommendation to Council- January 11, 2021

*  City Council Review of Rezoning, Preliminary Site Plan, and First Ordinance Reading-
Februgry 22, 2021

* Second Reading by City Council and approval of Rezoning Development Agreement

»  Final Site Plan Review and approval by Planning Commission
The Process for the Open Space Preservation is as fdllo’_ws:
*  Public Hearing at Planning Commission - November 12, 2020

*  Preliminary Site Plan by Planning Commission - Janugry 11, 2021
* Final Site Plan Review and approval by Planning Cornmission.

At the February 22, 2021 City Council Meeting, you are asked to approve or deny. the Condltlona]
Rezoning Request

1 know this is a lot of information and am happy to answer any questions you may have. Please do not
hesitate to reach out to me. | WI“ provide a response and answer to ail Council members.

ly,

Kelly Melrtyre
Pariner, Director of Plann’ihg



ORDINANCE NO. _-21

CITY OF SOUTH LYON
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE
CITY OF SOUTH LYON CONDITIONALLY REZONING PARCEL
NO. 21-30-126-003, FROM THE I-1 DISTRICT (LGHT

INDUSTRIAL) TO THE R-3 DISTRICT (SINGLE- FAMILY
" RESIDENTIAL)

THE CITY OF SOUTH LYON ORDAINS:

BARTL men ing Mayp. The Official Zoning Map of the
City of South Lyon incorporated into the South Lyon Zoning Ordinance by Section 102-
182 is hereby amended to conditionally rezone the vacant real property locaied on

Dixboro Road, South Lyon, Ml 48178, Tax ID: 21-30-124-003, which is more fully described
Cis:

endment of Official Zoni

That part of the southwest 14 of Section 19 lying south of Ten Mile
road and norih 32 acres of the northwest fractional 14 of Section
30. Except: Beginning at a point in the west line of Section 30,
distant north 679.5 feet from the southwest corner of the north 32
acres of the northwest fractional 14 of said Section 30, also distant
south 448.5 feet from the center line of Ten Mile road: thence north
70 feet; thence south 8% degrees 46 minutes east 223 feet: thence
south 70 feel; thence n89°4é6'w 223.00 feet to the point of
beginning; except alsc a part of the southwest fractional 14.
section 19 and a part of the northwest fractionat 14 of Section 30.
Beginning at intersection of the cenierline of said road and the
north and south fine on curve to right, radius 1535.89 feet distant
418.03 feet; thence s00°24'e, 532.45 feet: thence n89°13'47"w
198.47 feet; thence n00°55'e, 70.00 feet; Thence n89°13'47"w,
223.00 feet; thence n00°55'e along county line to beginning.

from the |1 District (Light Industial Distict) to the R-3 District (Single-Family Residential)
subject o the conditions which were voluntarily offered by the Owner.

71, Severablliiv. Should any division, section, subsection, clause, or phrase of this
Ordinance be declared by the courts to be invalid, the validity of the Ordinance as a
whole, or in part, shall not be affected ofher than the partinvalidated.

PART 1. Savings Clause. The amendment of the City of South Lyon Code of
Ordinances set forth-in this Ordinance does not affect or impair any act done, offense
commitfed, or right accruing, accrued, of acquired or liability, penally, forfeiture or

punishment, pending or incurred prior 1o the amendment of the City of South Lyon Code
of Ordinances set forth in this Ordinance.



PARTIV. Repedler. All oiher Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect.

PARTV, Effective Date; Publication. This ordinance shall fake effect upon the later of
ten {10) days after adoption or upon publication therecf as provided by the Charter of
the City of Souih Lyon.

Made, passed and adopted by the South Lyon City Council this day of
. 2021,

Daniel L. Pelchat, Mayar

Lisa Deaton, City Clerk
Certificate of Adoption

| hereby certily that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the ordinance
adopted at the regular meeting of the South Lyon City Council held on the day of
, 2021. -

Lisa Deaton, City Clerk



City of South Lyon
Planning Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes

January 14, 2021

Approved:

Roll Call:

Commissioner Michael Josep
Commissioner Eri

Motion by Mosier, Second by Joseph

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved



Motion to approve Agenda - as amended
Motion by Mosier, Second by Chubb

Voice Vote: Ayes: Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved

Motion to approve Minutes from 12/10/202 <2
Motion by Mosier, Second by Chubb '

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Miotion Approved

for 34, 42 — acre parcel of land on Dixboro Road.
ally rezone the property from Light Industrial I-1 to
3'and to use an Open Space Preservation
Development Option “The'applicant is proposing with the conditional rezoning to
allow 59 detached smgle -family units. The parcel in question is surrounded to the

south and to the east by industrial property, residential to the west in the
Township and to the north residential as well.

She states, with the conditional rezoning, a site plan is proposed as part of the
rezoning and is fied to it. The applicant can offer material benefits to the city as
part of the rezoning request. As you will note from last time, one of the material



benefits that the applicant is proposing has to do with the continuation of a
sidewalk along 10 Mile, tied in from their property to Hagadorn.

This property was previously zoned residential, R2. In 19889, the current property
owner requested to have the property rezoned to Light Industrial, which it is

today. Thirty some years later, the property owner is seeking to re-zone this to
back to Residential.

Mclntyre goes on to explain that when they look inta'a"
there is certain criteria that they must adhere
established and laid out by standards from tha.i
Mcintyre states that she is not recommendin,

: Conditional Rezoning,
criteria has been
gan Zoning Enabling Act.

1.

Rezoning the property sing
need or goal oftheMaster
4. Also, evid '

can be used

the event th&.G issionrécommands approval of the rezoning,

use the Open Space Preservation Option to
development the s gle family homes. She goes on to say, in order to
find the density for t -operty under the Open Space, the applicant is required
to do a conventional plan which establishes the number of units that could be
placed on the site. The applicant has done sot; the conventional plan shows that
they can have 72 lots and the applicant is proposing 59.

Meclntyre states that she reviewed the criteria based on the standards of Zoning
Ordinance and she found that the Preliminary Site Plan does demonstrate that
the site can be developed meeting the R3 and Open Space Preservation



standards. She states that there are a number of engineering issues that need to

be addressed and these will need to be resolved before taking them to City
Council for review.

At the last meeting, the Planning Commission had a lengthy discussion and tabled
the request in order for the applicant to come back to the city with additional
information. The applicant provided information in writing stating that the
property is not marketable as Industrial, revised open space calculations, and new
evaluations: the applicant has provided market information from Thomas Duke,
they provided 3 new elevations for the Planning: i

fid did some adjusting to

MeclIntyre states that the applicant did go a.liti :
density. They also changed their

the property and removed 6 lots to low

of properttes in the ¢
Mill Street, a pro

Again, she atl(
pointed out.

Michelle Spencer, Powe
Michigan.

Spencer states that she is here on behalf of Thomas Schroder with Cornerstone
Development who is the central developer of this property. She states that while
she appreciates the very thorough report done by Kelly, the reason that she is not
recommending approval for this is because this came before you 4 years ago with
a request to re-zone to multiple and the 4 points that Kelly is using to not

ngineering, 4700 Cornerstone, White Lake Township,



recommend the approval of this re-zoning is the exact reasons that were given 4
years ago to not rezone this.

Spencer states that client has gone back and made revisions, and has kept the
proposed single-family further from that southern property line. He has “bent” on
everything he was asked to “bend” on. He has more than doubled the amount of
open space and that did not even include any of the wetland area.

Spencer states that she does disagree that mdustna] N

urrounding this property to
the west there is single-family, to the north ther ngle-family and multiple, to

the east there is actually only single famlly eve thoug he report shows that itis

to the east because it is 100% wetlands

Spencer states that this propert
to the city by a petitioner to re
decades ago. It was then sat on al
bites. After a numb !
to try to develop it

y the city. This was brought
residential a couple of

ck up or‘the market, as industrial,
rm water, water mains ready to go

len manhole covers, it is in disarray.

have dumped old tires ,4

Spencer advises the Commission that this is coming before them now as a
conditional rezoning is that the only thing that can be built on this property is
what is before you today. Spencer states that since the last time they met, they
went back to the drawing board and they have removed the lots that were
encroaching on the south property and they have added additional open space.
She states that they do meet letter of the ordinance for a single-family cluster




home. Spencer goes on to say that her request and the petitioners request is that
the Commission would approve this site so that they ¢can go on to City Council.
She states that the items that are on the engineering letter are absolutely
engineering items, construction items that include video camera existing storm
sewer to verify that it is clean and will meet the requirements, it is meeting the
required ordinance for the width of the roadway and the sidewalks that are being
proposed have to meet the ordinance. She goes on to say that the items on Mr.
Darga’s letter are exactly what they would expect to requ;re construction plans
for this piece of property.

Spencer states that they do believe th]S is the bvst optlo{n and a benefit for the

Mark Szerlag, Thomas Duke Comp
Mr. Szerlag goes on t

ton p perties w1thin a 7-mile
e are offering this property at a
.being marketed Tor.

Again, Mclntyre clari zonmg of this property (sharing her screen with the
Commission) and states that the property to the east is zoned industrial. Spencer
states that along 10 Mile, on the east side of the property, this is all wetlands.
Mclintyre states that she agrees, however, it is zoned industrial. Spencer states
that she understands that, but as wetlands, this could not be developed as
industrial.




Chair Lanam states that under mitigation, it could be, so you can’t really say that
it could never be done. But it depends how bad you need it.

Chair Lanam asks if anyone else has any questions,
Commissioner Joseph — No
Commissioner Kopkowski — No

Commissioner Chubb verifies with Mcintyre that the recognizable material benefit
that is being proposed is the open space concept as- vell as pathway along 10
Mile. Mcintyre states that any frontage on a str st have a sidewalk.That is
required by the ordinance. The benefit offered is'to continue the sidewalk to
Hagadorn, which is not their frontage.

ng on. He adds thatitis a
th down Dixboro. Spencer

the corner has give
Commissioner M

/ious blighted looking industrial area that was
he put up “beautiful little houses,” which the

nd anything that is developed will be an
improvement over what is'there. Schroder states that we know that we have
been trying industrial for 18 years, so if we can go with the conditional re-zoning
with pretty little houses and new residents in the area. He goes on to say that the
first thing he did when he went to the property was get a dumpster and begin
cleaning up the area, This has looked bad for a long time. A nice pretty
community of new homes and the extension of the sidewalk and all the people in

the apartments will be walking and riding bikes and making the downtown much
more vibrant.




There is a clarification on the 650 Linear feet of off-site path, which is in addition
to the on-site sidewalk, which is required.

Chubb questions if there has been any communication with the Tube Mill.
Mcintyre states that she is not aware of any phone calis that were received by the

city. The public hearing notices were mailed out advising that the property is
being proposed for a re-zoning.

Suzann Martin, 602 W. Lake Street, remotely from S:é‘ﬁ*ih Lyon, Michigan,

Ms. Martin states that she is still in opposition tol ‘ing the homes on West
Lake Street that are still on the plans. She i is alsd pposed to building over any
wetlands It is the entry point to the <:|ty and: >

the market ability of this prope _

Chair Lanam states

missing out on is hug ass on that would be a shame for the city.

Motion to deny approval of the rezoning of parcel #21-31-126-003 based on the
Planners reasons that were stated at the beginning of the meeting

Motion by Kopkowski, Second by Mosier



Commissioner Mosier —Yes

Commissioner Kopkowski - Yes

Commissioner Chubb — No

Commissioner Joseph — No

Commissioner Ferguson — guestions if he can obstain due to being new to the

Commission and not having the history as the others do. Chair Lanam states
that he cannot,

Commissioner Ferguson — No
Chair Lanam — Yes

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: 3
Nayes: 3

Commissioner Chubb asks Commissioner Ké
her explanation besides the Mgg

ce that we have left in the city. She
idential is going to be the best thing for
lousiy on Council, she knows how many of the
ut the Tube Mill and you just can’t block that

Commissioner Mosig; hat they talk about how they tried to develop this. He
states that the original:oWner has a successful industrial park just a mile west of
this location and the only thing that was done differently was that he had put up
buildings and rented and sold the buildings. Not sure why this was not done for
this property. He adds that all the work that was done on the Master Plan over
the years and he does not want to go against the Master Plan.

This is very close to 10 Mile, and there is an Apartment Complex that we just
approved and to him, it just makes more sense. It seems like we are trying to be a
stick in the mud because we zoned this at one point and forever more that shall



be. But this makes more sense. He adds that he doesn’{ see this as a draw when
you have large pieces of land in the Township that is starting to be developed.
This is better for the community,

Commissioner Chubb states that he agrees. He is withing spitting distance of this
development and he is struggling with this becoming Industrial for the reasons
that Commissioner Joseph mentioned. He states that he is not putting forward a .
motion right now because he is not excited by the p]an

Chair Lanam questions if there is something that can be revised or done that
could increase the value and possibly help with the,f}oase that is going to come
from the Mill. He adds that he is over a mil from there and at times he can hear
the noise.

Commissioner Chubb states that he is g0
just for a second and adds that at one timé
and went a train went by, he ¢
to live there. Chubb states that”
houses with noise in their back

to argue the point bout the noise

hat he chose
that he can sell $300,000.00
m. Otherwise, those are

like that is what you are-trymg to sell us on.

Spencer states that the houses are very nice but less expensive to build. They had
lesser expensive houses from the last presentation, but the Commissioners said
that they looked too cheap. The developer then went a little nicer on the houses,
made the lots a little bit bigger and went with less density. She states that this is
their third time in front of the Commissioners, each time they have come back

10



adding additional cost to the developer based on what the Commissioners
wanted. They need a decision tonight so that they can move forward.

Commissioner Finnegan guestions if the triple pane and thicker walls are all
standard in every home. Spencer states that she would assume that this would be
standard on every home as this is a benefit to the sale. Schroder agrees and states
that they would put that down. He states that they would make the triple pane

standard to the homes that back up to the South and add the additional thickness
to the walls. :

Deputy Pieper asks Schroder for a ciariﬂca‘tion_f )
the homes or just the homes that back to the Ty
pane windows and the thicker walls. Schroi

minutes and asks if it is all
Y, i that will have the triple
r advises thatit is for all the homes

another tube mill in their back ya
residents, happy downtown resid

re going to have happy
*—n‘ethere is an industrial

Commissioner Fin an state hat it would be to his expectations if they were all
built consi i

WhErs. He goes on to confirm that this
sement) 2 x 6 and packed the walls with

that a lot of the co in the City is the noise from the Tube Mill and that
Tube Mill has been in the'City probably before the city became a City, and a lot of
the folks in the city came from the Tube Mill. So to help further insulate these
homes, he again states that he would be happy to do so to make the homeowners
happy, and to make the Commission happy.

Commissioner Joseph states that Mr. Schroder is still not stating to using 2x 6
walls for all your exterior walls. Mr. Schroder states that he is saying that, and
again states that he would be using 2 x 6 walls in all the homes, packed full of

11



insulation and sound deadening triple pane windows to make things quieter for
the homeowners. He does add that in the summer some of these will have their
air conditioning on and in the winter their heat and it will be quiet and cozy.

Chair Lanam asks if anyone has anything further to ask.
Commissioner Kopkowski— No

Commissioner Chubh — No

- Commissioner Joseph states that the applicant has 'sf,i;'bﬁﬁitted some house designs
that are better than what was originally presented He states to Spencer that it
scares him when you say low income home s

states that he haste e lots, he has very pretty/nice homes which have to
be saleable. He goes ay, he has been building homes in the area for about
40 years and has built over 350 homes and developed over 500 residential lots in
the South Lyon area. He believes these are very nice homes with attractive floor
plans and believes this will be a very nice addition to the South Lyon Community.
He states he would like a win/win situation and asks the Commission if there is

anything else that they can think of that would help to make a positive
recommendation,

City Attorney Hamemeh states that the Commission can’t really ask for anything.

12



Chair Lanam adds that because a Conditional was brought to them, they can only
vote on what was brought.

The discussion continues about the value of the homes and Schroder states that
we are possibly looking at mid to upper $200,000’s and with options, people may
end up bumping it up a bit higher. Schroder goes on to discuss the tax base and
compares it to the Township. It’s a fact that if people are comparing homes in the
city to the Township, they could get a much higher home and still have the same
payment. They are all about the payment. He wants the homes to be more
obtainable, and again, if they work in South Lyon,: ould nice for them to also

live in the city. These are not large custom hom they are nice attractive
homes.

Schroder states that this has been sittir
nothing but blight at this time.

over 20 years, not.one bite and it is

Commissioner Finnegan questigi
elevations and avoiding the sa
states that she believes that is in"
to be different colors or. different
ordinance, but it is:§

if there is al ng on diversity*regarding the

tion would also fail. However, there was quite a bit
of discussion, so min ave changed. If the motion fails, they can bring it
back because there action taken by the Planning Commission. The only
question is that if the mo’uon fails can the applicant go to the City Council with no
recommendation? Mclntyre states that she does not know the answer to that, as
she has never been in that situation.

Spencer states that it has been 4 years since this came before the Planning
Commission last time. Last time it was a unanimous denial, it sat for 4 years and
they made it very clear that they did not want Multiple-family here. Multiple

i3



family has since been approved at the corner. This is less dense than a multiple is
and we are requesting something different than what was turned down last time.
She goes on to say that just because the Commission may recommend this for
approval, it still has to go before City Council. Spencer goes on to say that she just
wants to remind the Commission that this was zoned industrial because a
petitioner came in and requested it to be re-zoned. This was not zoned because
the city saw the need for additional industrial. Spencer asks, how many more
decades do we want to let this property to sit vacant waiting for someone to
come in and state that they want to develop this industfial, 15 minutes from the

plan. If you just re-zone it, they
words, it has to be tied to a site pl

are tied to that pla
applicant why thg

Mclintyre states t tted to again remind the Commission the uses that
are permitted in this district. We are talking about industrial. This does not have
to bealarge manufacturmg facility. Some of the uses: greenhouses, commercial
kennels, trade or industrial schools. Some of the uses for a special land use: auto
engine and body repair, under coating shop. It does not have to be a very large
industrial complex or building and when you evaluate this, you have to ascertain

whether the site is not appropriate for any of the uses and can’t be used for any
of these.

14




Spencer states that she is fairly certain that in the last 18 years of trying to sell
this, they did not say we are only excepting it for these five uses. They have been
trying to sell this for the last 2 decades now and they have not received one single

call. How many decades do you want to sit on a piece of property hoping that
someone will come in to develop it?

Commissioner Finnegan states that he is not a home builder, but in his
observation, Charleston Park that is across the street has taken ages to move
through and add more homes and sell out. How do we know that we are not

and that's why | am investing a lot of ti
make it successful.

Hamameh states that if Plann
failed motion, the applicant can'g
an alternate motion, or make a rﬁq
there really isn’t anyi} :

Commissioner Mosiers
Commissioner Kopkowski —
Commissioner Chubb - Yes
Commissioner Finnegan — Yes
Commissioner Joseph - Yes
Chair Lanam - Yes

Roll Call Vote: Ayes: 4

15




Nayes: 2

Motion Passes

Motion amended to approve the Open Space Preservation Development

Condifional Re-zoning of the 34.32 - acres and the accompanymg Site Plan paris
1 and 2 - File #20-01 :

Motion by Joseph, Second by Chubb

Commissioner Mosier - No
Commissioner Kopkowski -
Commissioner Chubb - Yes
Commissioner Finnegan — Yes
Commissioner Joseph — Yes
Chair Lanam - Yes

Roll Call Vote: Avyes

states that at the last meeting the Commission

discussed training o es. She provided some information on potential

workshops.

Hamameh states that she has offered a number of presentations and has a power
point presentation that she can forward on to the Commission. It is the most
commonly used motions and how to use them.

Chair Lanam asks about the windows at the RCA building. Mcintyre states that she
had a conversation with the Building Official and they have not been presented

16



with anything else, we don’t have any reason to believe that they are going with
anything else other than what was originally presented.

Mcintyre states that the BP has completed their stonework. it appears that they
are finishad.

Commissioner Mosier questions the work being done on Draft Street, Mcintyre
confirms that they have pulled permits for interior work. Lanam questions if they
need to come to Planning. Mclntyre states that they are not changing the use of
something that is not allowed in the downtown. Thatwould be the only reason
that they would have to come before Planning. &i y exceed the threshold for
parking or if they are doing facade work. Lana
medical office, but she is unsure of what the

L

Staff Report — None

Adjournment:

Motion to Adjourn - 8:52 p.m

iMotion Apoproved

ng Adjourned

Judy L. Pieper - Deputy Clerk

17



City of South Lyon
Planning Commission
Regular Meeting Minutes
November 12, 2020

Approved:

The meeting was called to order by Chairman, Scott Lanam at 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call: Scott Lanam, Chair
Steve Mosier, Commissioner
Erin Kopkowski, Commissioner
Michael Joseph, Commissioner
Wayne Chubb, Commissioner

Absent: Jason Rose, Commissioner
Also in attendance: Kelly Mclntyre — CIB Planning
Lisa Hamemeh — City Attorney.

Judy Pieper — Deputy Clerk

Miotion to excuse Commissioner Rose
Motion by Mosier, Second by Chubb

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous :
Nayes: None

Motion Approved

Motion to approve Agenda
Motion by Mosier, Second by Kopkowski

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved



Motion to approve minutes from 9-24-2020, as amended
Motion by Mosier, Second by Chubb

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Commissioner Kopkowski abstains from vote, as she was not present for the
9-24-2020 Meeting

Motion Approved

Public Comments: None

New Business:

a. PUBLIC HEARING

REZ#20-01: Vacant Property, parcel number 21- 30-126-003. The applicant
is proposing to conditionally rezone a 34.32-acre parcel on the east side of
Dixboro Road, south of Ten Mile, from I-1, Light Industrial, to R-3, Single
Family Residential and develop the property using the Open Space
Preservation Option.

Kelly McIntyre, CIB Planning, states that she will first be discussing the conditional
rezoning, and with this conditional rezoning, she will also be discussingthe
attached site ptan which will be using an open space preservation option.
Mclintyre states that the Commissioners first heard from the applicant on 9-24-
2020, with a rezoning proposal requesting the property be changed from 11, Light
Industrial to RT, 2 Family. After some discussion with the Planning Commission,
the applicant decided to withdraw their application.

The applicant has returned with a revised request, which is a Conditional
Rezoning from 11, Light Industrial, to R3, Single Family Residential.

She goes on to say that the Michigan Zoning Enabling law permits the land owner
to offer certain uses and development of the land as a condition to a rezoning.
The Conditional Rezoning is reviewed by the Planning Commission after a public
hearing. After that, a recommendation is made to City Council. City Council
reviews the application, and if they are inclined to rezone the property they do so



during the reading of the 1% Ordinance. The 2 reading will follow in a
subsequent meeting, along with the approval of the Conditional Rezoning
Agreement.

Mclntyre gives a brief background on this property. She states that this property
was rezoned Residential to Industrial in 1989. Ten years later, the property owner
submitted a site plan for a light industrial park with 11 units, which we now call
West End Industrial. This was approved and construction began in 2003. The
utilities were installed and the road constructed but there has been no other
activity since. Then in 2016, the property owner requested that the property be
rezoned back to residential. The Planning Commission recommended denial of
the request. The City Council also unanimously denied the application.

She states that this is now a rezoning request, but instead of multi-family, it is a
request for single family homes. .

As part of this conditional rezoning, the petitioner is offering to include sidewalk
construction. The construction and completion of a sidewalk path, filling gaps
from the corner of West Lake Street and Dixboro Road to downtown.

Mclntyre goes on to review Conditional Zoning and states that consideration is
given to surrounding land uses, the existing infrastructure and consistency with
the Master Plan. This site is surrounded by varied uses: to the north and to the
west are residential; industrial is to the south and to the east. This includes an
active industrial site — Michigan Seamless Tube.

Mclntyre explains that in reviewing this application, the Planning Commission
should consider additional comments from the applicant, relevant factual new
information presented at the public hearing, and the following criteria, among

other factors they may deem appropriate, in making their findings, decision and
corresponding recommendation:

Thre first criteria is whether the requested zone is consistent with the goals,
policies and future land use map of the Master Plan, including any location-
specific or corridor studies. Also, If conditions have changed since the Master
Plan was adopted and whether the proposal is consistent with recent
development trends in the site's area.



Mclntyre notes that there has been some development activity in this vicinity.
The parcel at the southeast corner of Ten Mile and Dixboro Road was recently
annexed into the City in 2017. The property was conditionally rezoned in 2018 to
permit multiple family, Westlake Apartments. '

This is a unique situation as the property was brought into the City after the
Master Plan had been completed, therefore, there was not a designated future
land use category assigned to the property. (The history on the conditional
rezoning is that in our ordinance, when something is annexed into the city, it
comes in at the lowest zoning district, which is R1A - large lot, single family
homes. It comes in as that until it can be zoned to a more appropriate
classification. In this instance this property was then zoned to multiple family
apartment, which is a good transition between industrial that surrounds it and
single family homes — Charleston Park. This situation is not like the conditional
rezoning request tonight.

She explains that a Conditional Re-zoning limits the use of the property to what is
presented. In this case it is single family. The City does have the ability to permit
use that does not match the future land use plan if the conditions proposed as
part of the zoning makes the use compatible to the surrounding land. Mcintyre
states, that at this point they do not feel this has been demonstrated.

Another consideration is the site’s physical, geological and environmental
features. This site contains over 9 acres of wetlands, however, it is large enough
to accommodate the uses permitted in the R-3 District.

She then states that another criteria is that the applicant provide evidence that a
reasonable return on investment through one of the permitted uses, under the
current zoning, cannot be obtained. At this point they do not feel that this
evidence has been provided. She acknowledges that certain industrial use may
hot be desirable, but it could be used for business centers with small offices that
may need industrial spaces. '

Mclntyre goes on to say, that the greatest concern is the adjacent use of the
industrial. Concerns over the noise, as well as light, dust and dirt from the existing
operations, and a possible expansion. Future residents would have no recourse
and would have to live with the situation.



She states that the demand needs to be evaluated. The City of South Lyon land
use inventory is rich in residential development. 65% of the land within the City is
zoned residential, 4.3% is currently used for industrial and less than 4% remain
undeveloped.
Given this analysis, they do not recommend the Conditional Re-zoning on this
parcel based on the following:
1. The single-family residential designation is not consistent with the City’s
Master Plan. The parcel is planned for Industrial;
2. Single family residential land use in the City exceeds 65% of the land. Less
than 5% of the City’s land is zoned and master planned for industrial;
rezoning the property to single family residential does not meet a land use
need/goal of the Master Plan.
3. Evidence has not been provided that demonstrates that the property
can’t be used for any of the permitted and special Iand uses in the current
I-1 zoning district; and '
4. The proposed use is not compatible with surrounding uses to the east
and south.

Mclntyre goes on to explain that because the Conditional Re-zoning ties a Site
Plan to the Conditional Re-zoning, she went ahead and reviewed the Preliminary
Site Plan and is going to go through this now so that in the event the
Commissioners are going to recommend approval, we have covered this
information. ' :
She states that the applicant, in addition to re-zoning it to R3,-Would like to use -
the Open Space Preservation option. This is an alternative to conventional
development that allows a reduction in the lot size and setbacks in exchange for
preserving open space. |
She states that in order to detérmine the number of units that are allowed, the
applicant has to provide a parallel plan using the R3 standards. With this plan the
applicant shows that 73 units can be developed; 62 units on the south-west
portion of the property and 3 units along Lake Street. They have provided a
comprehensive preliminary plan that demonstrates the property can be
developed using the standards. The Open Space Option permits a reduction in lot
size. Currently the R3 Zoning would allow 8,750 square feet for a iot, with the
Open Space Option, the lot size can be reduced to 7,000 square feet. Lot width in
R3 is 70 feet and with the Open Space, it is reduced to 60 feet. Any Rear Yard
Setback can be reduced from 35 feet to 25 feet.



The proposed plan that has been submitted does meet all these requirements.
The overall layout uses the existing road with two access points off of Dixboro
Road. Mclntyre states that the Open Space area does not include the Wetlands.
The Wetlands will not be touched, they will be preserved. The Open Space area is
approximately 2 acres centered around lots 37 to 65.

Mcintyre goes on to reference the review from the city engineers, HRC, and states
that they have some concerns with the water main, sanitary. sewer.and storm
sewer that need to be addressed. If these issues can be addressed, they'd be in a
better position to recommend approval. But at this time, they cannot.

Mclntyre goes on to say that based on the Site Plan alone, should the Planning
Commission approve the re-zoning to R3, we would recommend approval of the
Site Plan. We would recommend that based on a final approved Site Plan being
submitted to the City. Acceptance and approval of the Conditional Re-zoning and
the accompanying agreement; and that resolution of the water main, sanitary
sewer, storm sewer issues and any other issues from agencies, departments and
consultants be addressed.

Chair Lanam begins public hearing and gives each member of the Commission a
chance to speak.

Commissioner Kopkowski asks Mcintyre what else we have that is vacant and
zoned Light Industrial. McIntyre states that there may be one or two vacant lots
scattered around the city. Mclntyre also confirms that the percentage of Light
Industrial currently being used (not including this piece of property) in the city is
4.3%. Adding this property would add an additional 1or2%. ==
Commissioner Kopkowski questions what the property was zoned when it was
residential before. Mclintyre states that our Zoning Ordinance has changed and
she would have to go back and look at the records.

Commissioner Joseph confirms that the lot size is 7,500 Sq. Ft. because they are
proposing Open Space R3.

Commissioner Chubb — Nothing at this time.

Commissioner Mosier confirms with Mclintyre that there are a couple of vacant
lots on Mill Street that are vacant.

Chair Lanam confirms that when calculating the Open Space it not only includes
the piece of open land, but the ribbon of land around the South as well. Lanam
adds that it appears that the'Open Space has limited access.

Chair Lanam adds that all the trees had not been cut when the development had
begun as Industrial, so this will have to be included in the calculations for tree



removal and replacement. McIntyre agrees and said that they can go back to see
how many trees were removed and what needs to be replaced.

Motion to open Public Hearing — 7:39 p.m.
Motion by Mosier, Second by Joseph

Voice Vote: Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved

Chair Lanam questions one of the items on Mclntyre’s list showing that we did
not receive from the developer any type of proof or documentation that the
property cannot be sold or developed. Lanam states that in his opinion, this needs
to be provided and we really shouldn’t move forward without it. Lanam goes on
to question that in the event that Seamless Tube should expand, or perhaps even

if they don’t, would there be some type of buffering done, especially down at the
East end.

Chair Lanam refers to the Site Plan questioning how the calculations came to be.

Michelle Spencer, Powell Engineering & Associates, Inc., 4700 Cornerstone
Drive, White Lake, Michigan |

To explain how she got the open space calculations, Spencer states that she took
the net area and divided it by the open space to give the percentage of open
space. She did not use the 20% allowed Wetland area as part of that though
ordinance does permit it. She states that she took the percent open space
between the park open space and the ribbons outside of the wetlands and added

them together which gave her the open space number. She did not include the
wetlands or right-a-ways.

Lanam then states that she is including the open space around the perimeter of

the lots, but this is not accessible by everyone in the development, so it can’t be
used as open space.



Mark Szerlag, Thomas Duke Company, 37000 Grand River, Farmington Hills, Mi

Szerlag states that he has been in Commercial Property Development for over 30
years. He adds that he respectfully disagrees with Kelly’s opinion. He states that in
the last 20 years, the owners have had 4 different agents marketing this property
and there has been zero interest.

Chair Lanam states that we trust-your opinion but they-would -need some - -
information in writing stating that this property is not marketable as Industrial.

Spencer states that this property was actually petitioned to the Planning
Commission to change this property from residential to be industrial. She does
confirm that there has been no interest and states that she has spoken with many
of her clients and the reasons she received is that it is 15 minutes from the
expressway, driving through a downtown to get there, and the overall market
value competition between here and surrounding areas (Wixom, Lyon Township
and Milford) is a negative from their perspective.

She goes on to discuss the environmental effects of an Industrial development on
the land. We would be seeing contaminates from this industrial site running in to
the wetlands, and this particular site has 9.3 acres of wetlands. That is a concern
and feels that would be a concern to the city as well.

Spencer reminds the Commission that they are looking for a Conditional Re-
zoning. If this site is not developed it will then revert back to Industrial and there
will be a whole other option of moving forward in a different way. She states that:
this is an open space, which allows them to make the parcels smaller and leave
the vegetation all the way around the South property line to screen and buffer
this residential neighborhood. Spencer states that she feels this is the best option
for this site. She states that we are looking for recommendation and references
the city engineer’s letter stating that these are standard things that are required
on any lot.

Commissioner Kopkowski states that she lives about a half a mile from the Tube
Mill and she can hear it at night, so she is not sure how much the buffering is
going to help. She states that the applicant is setting themselves up for failure,
she sat on Council for 10 years and they had complaints from the adjacent homes
that are there, knowing that they moved in next to a Tube Mill and being
surprised how much noise there is. She adds that the Tube Mill is a good



neighbor, but what they do creates noise and you will not be able to buffer that
with trees.

Thomas Schroder, Cornerstone Residential Group, 8555 Boulder Shores Drive,
South Lyon, MI

Schroder states that he has been building homes in this area for over 38 years.
The housing demand in this area, especially within walking distance of the
downtown, is very desirable. He goes on to discuss the noise issue. He states as
far as the Tube Mill, people are buying the house knowing it’s there. But adding
thicker walls, more insulation, triple pain windows, there are ways to reduce the
noise in the home, He adds that having a home that backs to an Open Space is a
benefit, enjoying the wetlands, birds and trees.

Chair Lanam states he would like to see what the number of homes would be
without the Open Space. Without seeing these different calculations he is not
comfortable voting one way or the other.

Mcintyre states that they did submit a parallel plan and the nhumber of homes is

73. She states that it is important to know that the Open Space area has to be
accessible by all.

Spencer states that they would be happy to add trails to the Open Space.

Mclntyre states that the ordinance specifically talks about p'rohibiting industrial
areas adjacent to new residential development. Because we do know that this can
be a problem and they are not necessarily compatible with each other. Also,
Mclntyre goes on to say again that with Light Industrial it does not necessarily
mean contamination. It can be small offices with a place to house equipment or

trucks. The applicant needs to provide us information that those types of uses are
not obtainable on this property.

Chair Lanam adds that whether you are residential or industrial, it is still illegal to
contaminate the ground.

Commissioner Chubb to Mclntyre, they are applying for a Conditional Re-zoning,
but when they come back for a Preliminary are they required to take this plan and
come back with it or is this the worst case scenario and they will finalize it and
submit it as a Preliminary. Mcintyre states that this is the Preliminary and what
they would come back with would be the Final. A lot of details, engineering and
landscaping, are not there, but this is Preliminary and this is what you get.



Chubb to Lanam then requests to hear from Public Comment.
Suzan Martin, 602 W. Lake Street, South Lyon, Michigan

Martin states that the preservation of the Wetlands sounds great. But right now,
she does not think that the 3 homes on W. Lake Street fit with the rest of the
property and the homes, No one is very happy about that and that is the entry
way in to the City. The Wetlands are a unique echo system, according to the - - -
Michigan State University water schoo! 90% of Michigan’s Wetlands are gone. She
thinks it is great for you to save the 9.3 acres of Wetlands, but she would not
recommend the 3 homes on Lake Street.

No other comments.

Mclntyre states that if there is a recommendation to Council, it needs to be tied
back to specific criteria that are evaluated as part of the Conditional Re-zoning.

Motion to close the Public Hearing — 8:10 p.m.
Motion by Chubb, Second by Kopkowski

Roll Call:
Commissioner Chubb Yes
Commissioner Kopkowski Yes
Commissioner Mosier Yes
Commissioner Joseph Yes
Chair Lanam . ... Yes

Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved

Commissioner Chubb states that after listening to everyone, as a Conditional Re-
zoning the petitioner needs to offer a material benefit. He states that he does not
consider a sidewalk a material benefit to the City. He adds anyone that develops a
parcel would provide that. He appreciates that, but there needs to be something
more. He is not a fan of the architecture that is being presented. We need
something fresh and new. It's just a sea of garage doors when you drive down the

10



street. He adds that he does respect that the owner came to re-zone it. He is not
in favor of the plans that are in front of him.

Schroder clarifies that he didn’t have an adequate amount of time to come up
with plans. The plans he used are plans with 40 foot lots that he used and got
approved a couple years ago on 11 Mile in the City of South Lyon. He is using
them as representatives of what he can do. With a 60 foot Iots, he would come up
with similar homes. He states based on Chubhb’s comment, the reason you see
these homes all over, is because these are the homes that people want to buy.

Commissioner Chubb states that he disagrees with that statement and says that
people buy what you show them.

Schroder adds that most that live and work in South Lyon need an affordable
home.

Chair Lanam states that none of these have any windows on the front of these
homes. Schroder again says that these are a representation of what they can do.
Lanam to Mclntyre confirming the lot width is 70 feet, but with the Open Space it

is reduced to 60 feet. Lanam states he is not comfortable moving forward without
~ the real calculations of the Open Space. He adds that we can talk about the
Elevations all day, but He doesn’i feel they will get anywhere.

Commissioner Kopkowski — no other comments

Commissioner Joseph states that he is not against residential, however the
density concerns him and the Elevations need to be looked at.

Commissioner Mosier states that they did a |ot of work on the Master Plan and he
is really against changing it. He states that as far as trucks, the City’s Water
Treatment Plant is there on Dixboro and they have no problems getting their
trucks out there. He adds that he is against this.

Spencer states that she would like to table this so that she can go back and look at
the calculations and the architecture to make sure she gets the Commissioners
what they are fooking for.

Mike Powell, Powell Engineering & Associates, Inc., 4700 Cornerstone Drive,
White Lake, Michigan

11



Powell states he would like to point out to Commissioner Mosier that the Master
Plan is a holding pattern and is meant to be a guide line to the community and
assuming all the estimates, and all the guesses and all the crystal balls are right
when you first adopted the Master Plan. It's meant to be looked at. Things change
over the years. This property has laid dormant for over 20 years and is looked at
as a blight on the community and no community wants that. He adds, as a trustee
for White Lake Township, we would do anything we could to prevent our .
community from having a dormant project for this long. Powell adds that other
options for Industrial uses can be used, yet it didn’t entice any users what so ever
and this needs to be taken in to account.

Viotion to table to 12-10-2020
Motion by Chubb, Second by Kopkowski

Roll Call:
Commissioner Chubb Yes
Commissioner Kopkowski Yes
Commissioner Joseph Yes
Commissioner Mosier Yes
Chair Lanam Yes

Ayes:  Unanimous
Nayes: None

‘Motion Approved

Old Business — None

Consultant Report -

Chair Lanam guestions if we have heard anything on the RCA building regarding

the windows. Mclintyre states that she has not, but she did notice some activity

there when driving by. She will reach out to them.

Chair Lanam questions the status on the BP station. Mclntyre states that she will
reach out to the Building Department as she has not heard anything at this time.

12



Chair Lanam questions the status of Alexander’s legal issue. Mclntyre states that

she does not.

Staff Report— None

Adjournment:

Motion to Adjourn — 8:33 p.m.
Motion by Mosier, Second by Kopkowski

Voice Vote: Ayes: Unanimous
Nayes: None

Motion Approved

Meeting Adjourned

Respectiully submitted,

",

Judy L. Pieger(— Deputy Clerk

i3






e,

N4 ‘*E P‘“‘YJ COMMUNITY
W LB IMAGE BUILDERS

PLARINING | MARKETING | ECOMOMIC DEVELOPMENT

January 6, 2021

Planning Commission

City of South Lyon

335 South Warren Street
Scuth Lyon, Michigan 48178

Attention: Scott Lanam, Planning Commission Chair

Subject: REVISED Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Review, Light Industrial I-1, to Single Family
Residential, R-3, with Open Space Preservation development. Approximately 34.42 acres located
on the east side Dixboro Road, south of West Lake Street. Parcel # 21-30-126-003.

Dear Commissioners:

Cornerstone Residential Group has petitioned the City and requested a Conditional Rezoning of a
34.42-acre parcel of land on Dixboro Road, parcel # 21-31-126-003, 1o allow fifty-nine (59) detached
singte farnily residential units. The request is pursuant to M.C.L. 125.3405,

In 2005 the Michigan Zoning Enabling statute was amended to allow for conditional rezoning of land.
The amendment to allow conditional rezoning provided another tool for property owners seeking the
ability to use their property in a way other than what is allowed by current zoning. If approved, a

conditional rezoning ties the use and any development of a property to specific conditions offered hy
the property owner/applicant.

M.C.L 125.3405 Use and development of land as condition to rezoning.
Sec. 405. (1) An owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing, and the local unit of

government may approve, certain use and development of the land as a condition to a
rezoning of the land or an amendment to a zoning map.

In approving the conditions under subsection (1), the local unit of government may establish
a time period during which the conditions apply to the land. Except for an extension under
subsection (4), if the conditions are not satisfied within the time specified under this
subsection, the land shall revert to its former zoning classification.

The local government shall not add to or alter the conditions approved under subsection (1)
during the time period specified under subsection (2} of this section.



City of South Lyon PC
Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 2

The time period specified under subsection (2} may be extended upon the application of the
landowner and approval of the local unit of government.

Alocal unit of government shzali not require a landowner to offer conditions as a requirement
for rezoning. The lack of an offer under subsection (1) shall not otherwise affeci a landowner's

rights under this act, the ordinances of the local unit of government, or any other laws of this
state.

| S'tepﬂr PC revnew
!" and Eiral Sité Plan- |
[ " .
i

© . approval*
Step 1: Public Hearing, Rezoning Review, and Preliminary Site Plan Approval
recommendation from the Planning Commission to the City Council
Step 2: Council’s first reading of the Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan apporoval
Step 3: Council’s secand reading of the Conditional Rezoning and approval of Conditional
Rezoning Agreement.
Siep & Final Site plan review and approval by the Planning Commission. *COpen Space

Preservation Option requires that Planning Commission review a final site plan.

This review letter will first address the rezoning portion of the request and then the site plan that
accompanies the rezoning.

Background

The applicant is requesting to rezone a 34.42-acre parcel, parcel # 21-30-126-003, from Light industrial,
I-1, to Single Family Residential, R-3. The application submittal for the Conditional Rezoning has an
accompanying Preliminary/Conceptua!l Site Plan that utilizes the Open Space Preservation Option



City of South Lyen PC

Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 3

from our Zoning Ordinance.

This property was rezoned from Residential to Industrial in 1889 at the request of the (current)
property owner. Asite plan for a light industrial park with 11 units, commonly known as West End,
was approved in 1999 and construction on the park started in 2003. The utilities were installed and
the road constructed, however, ne further development occurred, and the site sits dormant. In
2016 the property owner requested that the property be rezoned back to a residential use, from I-
1, Light Industrial, to RM-1, Multiple Family Residential. The Planning Commission recommended
denial of the request, based on the following: the proposed rezoning is not consistent with the
Master Plan; there is a need to retain the City’s limited industrial land; rezoning to residential does
not address a community need; the site Is capable of accommodating the range of uses permitted
in the I-1 District; and residential use at this location is not an appropriate use due to existing
industrial operations. The City Council unanimously denied the application in 2017. The property

owner has now requested a Conditional Rezoning to permit single farnily detached residential units
on the property.

Ehiies Feaivor

.'|i Batmaps
]
] 204 Aznd image

| 2015 Accmt Iz gy

»J; B 2000eix) Imagery

’l 12 Aenal Imagery

@ 2FoolCantass
B 5FootGoentows
g . ’T"t:—’—




City of South Lyen PC
Holly Hilis Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 4

Part 1:

Based upon our review of the zoning ordinance and master plan, discussions with City Staff, and a
visit to the site, we offer the following comments for your consideration.

The applicant is proposing to change the zoning of this parcel from Light Industrial, I-1, to Single
Family Residential, R-3, as a conditional rezoning under Section 405 of tha Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act (Act 110 of 2006). A preliminary site plan (conceptual plan) is required to illustrate the proposed
development and show that ordinance requirements can be met. Under Section 405 of the Zoning
Enabling Act, a petitioner may voluntarily offer in writing, and the City may approve, certain uses and
development of property as a condition to rezoning land. The conditions proposed by a petitioner, as
part of a conditional rezoning, are supposed 1o result in recognizable and material benefits to the City
that would unlikely be achieved otherwise under the site’s existing zoning.

As part of this conditional rezoning request, the petitioner is offering the following condition:

1. Sidewalk construction: the construction boardwalk/sidewalk along 10 Mile frontage
plus an additional 650 lineal feet of sidewalk (off-site) from this property to tie into the
existing sidewalk at Ten Mile and Hagadorn Street.

Note: Section 82-72 requires any Improved property that abuts.or runs along a city street
or right-of-way must construct a sidewalk along that frontage. The portion of boardwalk
along Ten Mile that the applicant is offering is required by ordinance and not an
“offering”/material benefit that is linked to the conditional rezoning.

The propoesed single-family use cannot be obiained under the current industrial zoning designation.
The City must determine if the condition offered is a recognizable and material henafit to the City.

In approving a Conditional Rezoning, the City may establish a time period during which the
conditions apply. If the conditions are not satisfied within the time specified, then the land reverts
to its formar zoning classification. During the approved time period, the City can neither add to nor
alter the conditions. The time period can be extended by mutual agreement between the City and
petitioner.

As part of a conditional rezoning, the City may also waive required standards of the Zoning
Ordinance if they feel the conditions proposed by the petitioner and the benefits that would result
from them outweigh the need to meet such standards. Converszaly, compliance with some or all
Zoning Ordinance standards may he required by the City.



Chty of South Lyon PC
Holly Hifls Conditional Rezoning Request

January g, 2021
Page 5

The site is surrounded by varied uses: to the north is single-family residence and a multiple-family
residential apartment complex; to the west are single-family residential homes (in Green Oak
Township); industrial to the south (Michigan Seamless Tune and the City's Wastewater Treatment
Facility} and east (Michigan Seamlass Tube). The property has frontage on both Dixboro Road and
Lake Street (Ten Mile Road). Dixboro Road divides the City and Green Oak Township. Dixboro Road
is not paved, and while many discussions have indicated that it will be paved, the timing of that
construction is unknown. A portion of this parcel was cleared and nrepared for an industrial
deveiopment, including installation of utilities and a road. A significant portion of the parcel
contains wettands with topography falling to the north and east.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning
. Future Land Use /
Existing Use Zoning Master Plan
Subject Industrial Industrial | .
! Industrial
Property ;
I
Multiple Family Muitiple Family )
North Residential Residential Industrial
South Vacant industrial Industrial
Industrial l
East tndustrial E Industrial
West Single Family Township Township
Rasidential j




City of

South Lyen PC

Hally Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
lanuary 6, 2021

Page 6

The fellowing summarizes the permitted and special land uses in both the existing and proposed
zoning districts:

I-1, Light Indusiria]
Uses Permitied by Right

Warehousing and wholesale establishmants, and trucking facilities;

The manufacture, compounding, processing, packaging or treatment of products such as,
but not limited to: bakery goods, candy, cosmetics, pharmaceuticals, toiletries, food
preducts, hardware and cutlery, tool, dig, gauge and machine shops;

The manufacture, compounding, assembling, or treatment of articles or merchandise from
previously prepared materials: bone, canvas, cellophane, cloth, cork, elastomers, feathers,
felt, fiber, fur, glass, hair, horn, feather, paper, plastics, rubber, precious or semi-precious
metals or stones, sheet metal, shell, textiles, tobacco, wax, wire, wood and yarns;

The manufacture of pottery and figurines or other similar ceramic products using only
previously pulverized clay, and kilns fired only by electricity or gas;

Manufacture of musical instruments, foys, novelties, and metal or rulber stamps, or other
meolded rubber products;

Manufacture or assembly of electrical appliances, electronic instrurnents and devices, radios
and phonographs;

Laboratories—experimenial, film or testing;

Manufacturing and repair of electric or neon signs, light sheet metal products, including
heating and ventilating equipmeant, cornices, eaves and the like;



City of South Lyon PC
Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request

January 6, 2021
Page7

*  Central dry-cleaning plants or laundries provided that such plants shali not deal directly with
consumers at retail;

¢ All public utilities, including buildings, necessary structures, storage yards and other refated
uses; .

*  Warehouse, storage and transfer and electric or gas service buildings and yards. Public
utiiity buildings, telephone exchange buildings, electrical transformer stations and
substations, and gas regulator stations. Water supply and sewage disposal plants. Water
and gas tank holders. Railroad transfer and storage tracks, railroad rights-of-way. Freight
terminals;

*  Municipal uses such as water treatment plants, and reservoirs, sewage treatment plants
and alt other municipal buildings and uses, including outdoor storage;

*  Commercial kennels;

*  Greenhouses;

* Trade orindustrial schools;

* Lumber yards with associated retail space;

* Freestanding nonaccessory signs;

*  Other uses of a similar and no more objectionable character to the above uses; and
Accessory structures and uses customarily incident to the above uses provided such
structures and uses are located on the same zoning lot as a permitted use.

}

Uses permitted by Special Land Use approval

«  Auto engine and body repair, and undercoating shops;

*  Lumber and planing mills;

= Metal plating, buffing and polishing;

*  Uses which serve the convenience needs of the industrial district {such as, but not limited
to: bank, savings and loan association, credit union, automobile service station, trade or
industrial school or industrial clinic;

*  Indoor tennis courts, roller skating rinks, ice skating rinks and bowling alleys;

*  Other uses of a similar character to the above uses; and

* Accessory structures and uses customatily incident to the above uses.

RM-3 One Eamily Residenﬁal
Uses Permitted by Right

*  One-family detached dwellings;

*  Publicly owned and operated libraries, parks, parkways and recreational facilities;

*  Cemeteries which lawfully occupied land at the time of adoption of this chapter;

¢ Public, parochial and other private elementary schools offering courses in general
education, and not operated for profit;

*  Home occupation; and

* Accessory Structures and Uses.

Uses Permitted with Specia! Land Use approval
* Farms;
*  Apiaries;
* Private stable as an accessory use;
> Public stables and riding academies;



City of South Lyon FC
Holly Hills Cenditional Rezoning Request

lanuary 6, 2021
Page 8

»  Places of assembly;

»  Public, parochial and private intermediate or secondary schools;

+ Utility and public service buiidings and uses (without storage yards);

»  State licensed day care home (group) all in accord with Act 116 of 1973;

*  Private noncommercial recreational areas, institutional or community recreation centers;
nonprofit swimming pool clubs;

»  Golf courses;

»  Colleges, universities and other such institutions of higher learning, public and private;

= Cemeteries;

*  Bed and breakfast operations;

*  Accessory buildings customarily incident to any of the above permitted uses; and

> Landscaping and snow removal vehicle storage.

As this is a rezoning request, consideration should be given to the proposed use as it relates to the

surrounding zoning and land uses, existing infrastructure, and most importantly consistency with the
Master Plan.

In reviewing this application, the Planning Commission should consider additional comments from
the applicant, relevant factuz| new information presented at the public hearing, and the following

criteria, among other factors they may deem appropriate, in making their findings, decision and
corresponding recommendation:

A. The requested zone should be consistent with the goals, policies and future land use map
of the Master Plan, including any location-specific or corridor studies. If conditions have
changed since the Master Plan was adopted, as determined by the Planning Commission

or City Council, the consistency with recent development trends in the site's ared shall be
considered:



City of South Lyon PC
Helly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request

January 6, 2021
Page 9

Graen Dak Twe

Tkt

a0 Lo s

The subject is zoned [-1, Light Industrial and master planned as Industrial on the Future Land
Use Map.

1.

[~

Future Land Use. The Master Plan designates this site as Industria! on the Future Land Use
Map, along with abutting parcels to the south and east. The corresponding Land Use and
Policy Goals text desires “to strengthen the environment-for-light industrial uses and farge -
employers, the City should strive for full occupancy within the City’s Industrial Parks.”

The utilities and roads that exist on this parcel are part of a site development for an Industrial
park. The parcel received site plan approval in 1999 with construction of the roads and utilities

occurring in 2003, Due to economic downturn in Michigan at the time, the site was not built
beyond the basic infrastructure.

Changing conditions. In 2018 the parcel at the southeast corner of West Lake Street and
Dixboro Road. was conditionally rezoned for the deveiopment of an apartment complex,
Westlake Apartments. This property was formerly located in Green Oak Township and
annexed into the City, with a single-family residential zoning designation, and later
conditionally rezoned to multiple-family residential. As the parcel was only recently brought
into the City, it was not included in the Master Plan and the Future Land Use Miap designation.
The Planning Commission should discuss if this proposed rezoning and development of single-

family units is considered consistent with, and an extension of, the new multiple famity
residential development o the north.




City of South Lyen PC
Helly Hilis Conditional Rezoning Request

January 6, 2021
Page 10

3. Compatible Use. This canditional rezoning limits the property to be developed as detached
single-family residential condominium units and excludes all other permitted uses. The City
has the ability to permit z use that does not match the Future Land Use designation when it
determines that the conditions proposed as part of the rezening make the requestad use

compatible with surrounding land uses. The conditions offered by the applicant does not
affect the land use compatibility.

B. The site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features should be
compntible with the host of principal permitted and special land uses in the proposed zone.

The parcel is located adjacent to existing industrial sites as well as in close proximity to
residential. The site contains over 9 acres of wetlands, however, is large enough to
accommodate the uses permitted in the R-3 District. The wooded and wet area in the north
east area of the property should not limit the ability to develop the site.

As a condition of rezoning, this property cannot deveiop into any other permitted or special
land uses.permitied in the Single-Family Residential zoning district.

C. Evidenceshould document the applicant cannot recelve o reasonable return on investment

through developing the property with one or more of the principles permitted and special
land uses under the current zoning.

" The applicant has provided market information on 19 industrial properties in Livingston and
Oakland Counties. An analysis of the current real estate trends (based on the market
information provided) should be submitted to the City. The analysis should show projections
to support or refute a reasonable return on investment as an industrial property.

From the time period the property obtained site plan review until recently, the community,
State, and Country endured an economic downturn. Michigan was especially affected by rising
unemployment, property value decline and foreclosures, and population loss. While
information on currently listed industrial properties in the area is provided, an analysis to show
that the property cannot receive a reascnable return on invesiment through developing the
property with one (1} of the uses permitted under the current zoning is not included with the
listings. Utilizing the existing road configuration and utilities already in place, the parcel may be
appropriate for business centers combining small scale office and industrial space.

D. The compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with
surrounding uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment,
density, nature of use, traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure, and potential influence on
property values.



City of South Lyon PC

Holly Hilts Conditionzl Rezoning Request
January &, 2021

Page 11

The residential uses allowed in the R-3, Single Family Residential Zoning District are consistent
with parcels in the vicinity (west of Dixboro Road in Green Cak Township and north of Ten
Mile Road at Westiake Apartments and Charleston Park). Of greatest concern is the proximity
of the proposed residential to existing and operating industrial uses. The adjacent
properties—Wastewater Treatment Plant and Michigan Seamless Tube are zoned 1-2, General
Industrial District, and intended for manufacturing, assembling, and fabrication activities that
include spacialized industrial operations, whose external physical effects will ba felt to some
degree by surrounding properties. Noise from the existing operations (and future) as well as
light, dust, and dirt are not compatible with residential uses.

The intent of the Industrial Zoning Districts (Section 102-351) is:

1. To provide sufficient space, in appropriate locations, to meet the needs of the
municipality’s expected future economy for ali types of manufacturing and relatad
uses;

2. To protect abutting residential districts by separating them from manufacturing
activities and by prohibiting of such industrial arez for new residential development;

3. To protect the most desirable use of land in accord with a well-considered plan; and

4. Toprotectthe character and established pattern of adjacent development and in each

area to conserve the value of land and buildings and other structures and to protect
the municipalities tax revenue.

By rezoning this property from I-1 to R-3, neither the manufacturing nor residential uses are
protected. The General Industrial property owned by Michigan Seamless wraps around the
applicant’s eastern property line and abuts the southern property line. Should Michigan
Seamless want to expand their operations to the west and south of their existing facilities,
these industrial operations will be directly adjacent to the residential neighborhood.
Concerns over nolse, light, and dust may be considerable from the existing operations.
Expansion will only magnify the discord between the two uses and because the industrial
operations are permitted by right, the residences will have no recourse for protection.

E. The capacity of city infrastructure and services sufficient to accommodate the uses

permitted in the requested district without compromising the "health, safety and walfare”
- of the City.

The proposed rezoning should not increase demand for public services bayond what can
reasonably be provided to the site,

F. Theapparent demand for the types of uses permiiied in the reguested zoning district in the

City in relation to the amount of land in the City currently zonad to accommodate the
demand.

The City of South Lyon land use inventory is rich in residentia! development. Sixty- three
percent (63%) of the land within the City is zoned and/or used for residential purposes;



City of South Lyon PC

Hotliy Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 12

however, industrially zoned and utilized land in the City accounts for 4.3%. Industrial land is
a critical component of the City’s land use system and is an important source of jobs, income,
and services. Industrial uses, despite perceived chzllenges of noise, air quality, and truck
traffic, are critical to the health and growth of the City. They boost the tax base and provide
jobs that enable residents to stay in South Lyon area. Given the lack of developabie land in

the City, the City must actively protect its remaining industrial districts.

Existing Land Use Mix

Single-family residential 1186 54 59.19%
Multiple-family residential @ 87 40 43%
mememial_(_in_;lucﬁes ddiévntcwh:):. o w 87 4.3%'
Industrial | 87 4.3%
Government/institutional 056 12s%
Parks, Recreation,and Open Space | 154 7%
Transportation/{_ﬁp_mm_unircati‘ons/Uti_l:.ities 56| 2.8%
 Undeveloped - 93 4.7%

City of South Lyen Master Plan 2016

**The City’s undeveloped land use data is updated with the rezoning and site plan approval
for 11 acres of single family residential on Eleven Mile (from multiple family residential) and 7
acres of land rezoned from single family to multiple residential on Stryker. The updated figures
are shown in red.

. Where a rezoning Is reasonable given the above criteria, a determination shall be made that
the requested zoning disirict is more appropriate than another district or amending the list

of permitted or special land uses within a district.

The Master Plan does not designate this site for Residential use so other zoning districts
would therefore not be appropriate.

RO B AT R B VIV I RHI T B

Given the above analysis, we do not recommend approval of the rezoning for parcel # 21-31-126-
003, from I-1, Light Industriai to R-3, Single Family Residential, to allow the construction of fifty-nine
(59) singie family homes, based upon the following reasons:



Chiy of South Lyon PC
Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January &, 2021

Page 13
1 The single-family residential designation is not consistent with the City's Master Plan.
The parcel is planned for industrial;
2 Residential land use in the City exceeds 63% of the land. Less than 5% of the City’s

land is zoned and master planned for industrial; Rezoning the property tosingle family
residential does not meet a land use need/goal of the Master Plan.
3. Evidence has not been provided that demonsirates that the property can't be used
for any of the permitied andspecial land uses in the current -1 zoning district; and
4 The proposed use is not compatible with surrounding uses to the east and south.



City of South Lyon PC

Helly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
lanuary &, 2021

Page 14

Part 2:

A Conditional Rezoning ties a specific site plan to the rezoning of the property. No other use or site
vlan development may occur on a conditionzlly rezoned parcel other than the site plan approved as
part of the conditional rezoning agreement.

Section 102-455(6) of the City of South Lyon Zoning Crdinance lists the submittal requirements for
Preliminary Open Space Preservation site plan review, Based on our review of the proposal,
discussions with the applicant, we offer the following for your consideration:

1. Eligibility. Section 102-459, Open Spece Preservation Option, is offered as an alternative
means of single-family residential development in all of the City's residential districts. The
intent of this option is to provide for the creation and preservation of recreation open space
areas within residential development as mandated in Michigan Public Act 179 of 2001.

This may be achieved by allowing a reduction in the minimum lot area and lot width
requirements by residential district, without any attendant increase in number of dwelling

units were the property to be developed in a conventional manner.

This parcelis eligible to use the Open Space Preservaiion Option.

2. Conventional Plan. To determine the number of home sites allowed using the Open Space
Preservation option, the applicant is required to provide a “Conventional” plan for the
applicadle lot area, using the lot width and dwelling density limitations of the residential
zoning district in which the property is located (R-3 standards). This conceptual
“conventional” layout will serve as the basis for establishing dwelling density for the property
under the open space preservation aption.

The applicant is proposing the develop the property under the R-3 Single Family Residentia!
Zoning requirements.

Minimum lot size 8,750 square feet

Minimum lot width 70 feet

Frontyard sethacks 25 feet

Side Yard Setbacks 6 feet/16 feet total of both sides
Rear Yard Setbacks 35 feet

Building Coverage 25%




City of South Lyon PC

Hally Hilis Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 15

Using these R-3 requirements, Sheet P-1 of the site plan application package shows 73 units
may be developad on this property. Lots 30 and 31 should be excluded from this count as the

lots appear to be very limited in building area.

Seventy-three {73) units may be built under conventional R-3 zonine.

3. Dwelling Density. Dwelling density under this Open Space Preservation Option may be no
greater than set forth by the zoning district or dwelling density that couid be achieved on

the property, were it developed as a conventional residential development, whichever
results in the lesser number of units.

The number of single-family dwellings by zoning district is set forth as follows:

Total acres BNumber of Dwellings | Density or Dwellings
per acre
Conventional (R-3) 15.5 acres 72 4.7 d.u. per acre
DOpen Space i5.5 62 4.0 d.u. per acre

Per the ordinance, the proposed open space preservation option may be built with no more
than 4.0 dwelling units per acre {the lesser the dwelling density).

The proposed residential site plan meets the required density limttations.

4. Open Space Preservation Plan. A Preliminary Site Plan/Concept Plan must be submitted
showing how the property could be developed under the Open Space Preservation Option

with no more dwellings than were generated on the conceptual “Conventional” site plan (73
dwellings).

A Preliminary Site Plan/Conceptual plan was submitted showing the required site plan
information including:

a. the natural features on the site, including any streams, ponds, wetlands (8.3 acres of
wetlands);

b. trees: the site development area was clear cut for the development of West End Park in
2003;

topography at two (2) foot intervals;

utility easements and other easements;

all streets and driveways.

proposed lot line dimensions;

building footprint for each lot;

a typical detail drawing showing minimum required setback dimensions;

the area to be set aside as open space along with the area of the open space in sguare
feet or acres; and

j. the percent the open space makes up of the net usable property acreage.

Mo o Tthp 000



City of South Lyon PC

Holly Hilis Conditionsl Rezoning Request

January 6, 2021
Page 16

Open Space: Approximately two (2) acres of “park open space” is centered and to rear of Lots
31 through 56. The total open space shown is 18 acres, with approximateiy nine {9} acres
wetlands and nine (9) acres dry open space. The applicant has provided a woodchip path

from Dixboro into the park open space. The park can also be accessed between lots 44 and
45/46.

The applicant has provided a comprehensive Preliminary Site Plan/Concent Plan that
demonstrates thai the site can be developed meeting the R-3 and Open Space Preservation
Option standards.

Area and Bulk. The proposed Preliminary Site Plan/Concept Plan was reviewed in accordance
with the standards for the R-3, One-Family Residential District in Section 18.03.050, Height
and Placement Requirements, as described in the following tahle. The Open Space
Preservation Option, Section 102-459(9) allows the minimum area and width of each unit be
reduced as shown:

R-3 Required Open Space Provided
Lot/Unit Area 8750 SF minimum 7.000SF In compliance
Lot/Unit Width 70-ft, minimum 60-ft, minimum In compliance
Front Yard . .
Sethack 25-ft. min. 25-ft. In compliance
, 6-ft. min. with a total of | &6-ft. min. with a total of .
Side Yard Setback 16 ft. on both sides 16 ft. on both sides In compliance
Rear vyards may be
Rear Yard Setback | 35-ft. min. reduged to 25 feet when In compliance
a unit borders on land
dedicated to open space

The proposed site plan is in compliance with the area and bulk requirements.




City of South Lyon PC

Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 17

6. Overall Site Layout/Design. The proposed site layout includes use of the existing 35-foot wide
private road in a 60-foot right-of-way easement that has two (2) access points along Dixboro
Drive, Section 86-65(a) requires streets to have pavement 33 feet in width from back of curb
to back of curb, within a 60 foot right-of-way. The proposed usa of the existing road would
require a waiver by the Planning Commission.

Fifty-six (56) homes are proposed to be constructed as part of a cohesive development,
accessed from Dixboro. The applicant is proposing three (3) single family detached units
along Lake Street/Ten Mile, west of the wet/wooded area. Since the applicant is using this

area to calculate the number of allowed lots, it must be included as part of the development.
If the applicant wishes to develop these lots individually, lots splits will need to occur. An
existing detention pond along Dixboro Road will be reformatted for use. Two (2) acres of park
open space will be centered between Units 31 to 56.

We defer to the City’s engineer to comment on the existing utilities and suitability for use in
a residential capacity.

The preliminary overall site [ayout and design demonstrates that the site may he developed
as residential without the need for waivers or variances.




City of South Lyon PC

Holly Hills Conditional Rezoning Request
January 6, 2021

Page 18

Based upon the comments, the applicant has demonstrated through the Preliminary Site
Plan/Concept Plar, that a detached single-family residential development may be developed on this
parcel. Final Site Plan review will address engineering details, including utilitias, rights-of-way,
easements, drive width, and wetland permits, and planning and zoning issues including landscaping,
unit floor plans/architecture/ and open space requirements.

This site planis part of the Conditional Rezoning and the rezoning and site plan are reviewed together.
Should the Planning Commission feel that this property be conditionally rezoned from I-1,
Industrial, to R-3, Single-Family Residential, we recommend approval of the Preliminary Site
Plan/Concept Plan conditioned upon:

1. Final Site Plan review and approval; and
2. Acceptance and approval of the Conditional Rezoning Agreement.

If you have any further guestions, please contact us at 810-335-3800. Sincerely,

CIB PLANNING

Wb

Kelly Mcliniyre
Director of Planning



STREET: 105 W. Grand River

Ty

% RN Howsll, MI 48843
HUSBELL, ROTH & CLARK, IHC 3221\15;;;%552-9199
CONSULTING EMGINEERS SINCE 1915~ SITE: hreengr.com

January 13, 2021

City of Séuth Lyon

335 South Warren

South Lyon, MI 48178

Afin:  Ms. Kelly Mcintyre

Re:  Holly Hills

HRC Job No. 20200868.02
Second Preliminary Site Plan Review

Dear Ms. Mclntyre:

We have reviewed the revised prelhnihmy site plan for the proposed Holly Hills project as prepared by Powell Engineering

{dated November 30, 2020). This sife was previously developed as an industrial park and the roadway and utilities were

instelled. Since that time, the site has been siting dormant and the utilities have not been used or maintained. Based on

our review of the revised preliminary site plan, we offer the following comments: -

Water Supp' Iy

1. The proposed water supﬁJIy improvements will be required to be designed in accordance with the City 6f South Lyon’s
Engineering Design Standards, = - - o s S : IR B

o2 _Fﬁe hydrant coverage".'arill need to be prdvided in accordance with City of South Lybn Engirieering Design Standérds.

)

The existing water mains, valves and hydrants will need to be tested and the developer must provide evidence that the
existing system is adequate to service the proposed development. ‘

Sanitary Sewer

1. The proposed sanitary sewer improvements will be required to be designed in accordance with the City of South
- Lyon’s Engineering Design Standards. - : Co co

2. Thethree (3) units along Lake Street will need to be serviced by gravity.

3

The plans show the homes being served by individual grinder piumps qo'n'rlle.cting to the eﬁsﬁng d-inch force'mém that
leaves the site. Design calculations for this system will need to be submitted for review. The proposed grinder pumps

and force main will be considered private and not public. This may require a private sewer agreement.

Storm Water Management

1. The proposed storm sewer impfovements will be required to be designed in accordance with the City of South Lyon’s
Engineering Design Standards. =~ : ' ‘

2. The existing storm sewer system will need to be cleaned and telovised by the Dev_elbper to confirm its existing

condition.
Bloomfisld Hills Dathi Tewnship Datroit Grand Rapids lackson Kelamazoo Lansing
555 Hulet Driva . . 2107 Aurelius Rd. 535 Griswald'51, 4 1925 Bréton Road SE 4015, Machanic 5t.  § 834 King Highway 215 5. Washington SQ
Bloorifield Hills, M| 48302 Suite 2A Buhl Bullding, Ste 1650 | Suite 100 | 7 Suite B Suite 107 Suite D
243-454-6300 Holt, MI 28842 Detroit, M| 48226 Grand Rapids, MI 49506 § fackscn, M| 48201 Kalamazoo, M 45001 Lansing, Ml 48933
. 517-684-7760 313-965-3330 i 616-454-4285 517-292-1295 269-665-2005 517-292-1488

¥A202008\20300858\06_Corrs\Desigr\2020_12 33 HofiyHills_Revised_PrelimsiteBlan_Review.dacx



Ms. Kelly Mcintyre
@, } %] { : lanuary 13, 2021
HUBBELL ROTH & CLARE, INC HRC Job Number 20200868
CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 Page 2 of 2

Pavement and Grading

1. Proposed grading and paving improvements will need to be shown and detailed on the plans as required in the City of
South Lyon’s Engineering Design Standards.

2. Thenew roadway width shall be 33" from back of curb to back of curb.

)

Sidewalks shall be 6" thick in the driveway crossings.

4. The subgrade aggregate material for the roads shall be 21AA limestone in 10” thickness.

5. Curb details o match City of South Lyon standards,

6. Verify the pavement section detail reference in the typical road cross-section on sheet C-1.0.

7. Underdrain is required behind the curbs. Please show and label this on the typical road cross-section.

Summary

A revised site plan which addresses the above ftems, especially the water main, sanitary sewer, and storm SEWer, should
be resubmitied to this office for review prior to our recommendation for preliminary site plan approval. It is our
recommendation that the applicant, their engineer, the City, and HRC schedule a meeting to discuss the water and sewer
design and required testing. The applicant should address the comments noted above and resubmit one (1) set of the
Preliminary Site Plan to the City of South Lyon Building Depariment for our review

Tf you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact the undersigned at 517-292-1485.

Very truly jours, :

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC.

Michael P. Darga, PE.

MPD/mpd

pe: City of South Liyon; P. Zelenak, D. Varney
CIB Planning; C. Avantini
HRC; R. Alix, file

¥A202008\20200868\05_Corrs\Desigr\2020_12_13_HoliyHills_Revised_PrelimSitaPlan_Review,docx

e



4700 Cofnerstone Drive

. White Lake, M] 48363
S S " Phone: {248)714-9895

eermg Phone: (248)714-989

& Associates, LLC Fas (agjesa 9z
Email: info@piovelléng.net

January 26, 2021

Mr. Mike Darga, P.E.

Consulting Engineer for City of South Lyon
105 W. Grand River

Howell, MI 48843

RE: Holly Hills Rezoning revisions per eﬁgineer’s letter dated January 13, 2021

Dear Mr. Darga:

Thank you for your review letter as gpecified above. We have rev1sed the dramng based on our
discussion Wlth you and the letter from you as tollowing:

Water Supply

1 We uinderstand that the u:nprovements to the e>as1:mg water supply system will be reqm:red to

meet the City of South Lyon, Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner as well as the
Michigan EGLE. : :

2. We are proposing the addition of soime fire hydrants to meet the requlremen’cs of the Clty of

South Lyon Engineering Design Standards. Detailed engmeermg will be prov1ded on the more

- detailed preliminary site plans and the final site plans.- :

3. Weunderstand that all utilities will need to be tested and operated to prov1de that the existing

system is adequate to meet the required service to the devélopment. We would request that the

detailed testing and maintenance not be required for conceptual conditional rezoning. approval.

Samtarv Sewer

1. Weunderstand that a pubhc 8" gravity sanitary sewer is reqmred for the 3 homes frontmg West
- Lake Street and we have made this change to the site plans to show the extension of said pubhc
sewer lifes to the revised site plans as required.
2. Weunderstand that the existing 4”forcemain sewer which exists in the abandoned development
Wﬂl be required to remain private and will be required to have an operation and maintenance
- contract with a certified opération and mainteriance contractor for the perpetuity of the use of
the system. We have provided a letter in this submittal from the developer stating this.

- 3. Wehave revised the plans to specify that the existing forcemam is proposed to be maintained as
pnvate and is required to have operation and. mamtenance in perpetuity of system. In'addition,
as part of the standard lot configuration of each of the proposed lot types we have shown a plot
plan for how each home is proposed o be connected to the existing 4” sanitary forcemain. -

4. We understand that all utilities will need to be tested and operated to provide that the existing
system is adequate to meet the required service to the development. We would request that the
detailed testing and maintenance not be reqmred for conceptual conditional rezoning approval.

‘Engineeriig A BetterMichigan"



January 26, 2021

Page2 of2

Storm Water Management

1.

We understand that the storm sewer system will be required to be designed and constructed in
accordance with the City of South Lyon’s Engineering Design Standards. We have provided the
conceptual design and storm water calculations for the proposed development. Detailed storm
sewer calculations and details will be provided to meet the requirements of the City for final
engineered site plan. We believe the provided information is enough to show that the storm
system will work for the site overall and enough for conceptual conditional rezoning approval.
We understand that the existing storm sewer will need to be cleaned and televised to determine
the existing condition and repair any concerns which may arise, we request that this be
provided concurrently with the final engineered site plans. We would request that this not be
requited prior to the knowledge that the project will be allowed by the City to move forward.

Pavement and Grading

1.

We have provided all proposed grading for the site to match the emsﬁng road. We believe that -

all proposed site grading as shown meets the reqmrements of the city of South Lyon’s
Engineering Design Standards. .

We have removed all proposed new roadways and are orlly using existing roadways

We have revised the sidewalk detail oon sheet 53 to show fo:r a 4" concrete sidewalk or a 6” in
areas of proposed driveways as requlred ‘

No new roads are proposed, any and all repairs to the emshng pavement and curbs will meet
the requirements of the City of South Lyon Engineering Design Standards as required.

" We have verified that the pavement cross section meets the requirements of the City of South

Lyon and will be used in all requ1red repavmg We have Iemoved the cross section as no new
road is bemg proposed on the site.

We believe the changes made to the plan will meet your approval for the conceptual conditional
~ rezoning plans. We will be providing much more detail for preliminary site plan approval. Please let
us know if you have any further questions or would like further information.

Sincerely,

POWELL ENGINEERING & ASSOCTATES, INC.
Consulting Engineers

Miche]le C.-Spéncer
Vice President



Janvary 26, 2021

Mr. Mike Darga, P.F,
Consulting Engineer for City of South Lyon

105 W. Grand River
Howell, MI 48843

RE:  Private Saﬁifaly Sewer on Property at the Southeast corner of Dixqb‘oro and 10 Mile
Road with Tax 1D, #21-30-126-003 :

Dear Mr. Darga:

1.understand that the above referenced property has an eXisting 4” sanitaly sewer forcemain as

approved and developed a number of years ago fof an indusirial site. I understand that this

sanitary is proposed to rémsin private and must be maintained by a licensed and bonded certified

operator and maintenance provider, first by the developer, and ultimately by the Homeowner’s -
- Association for-the perpetiity of the syster. I : o

Said requiréments stated will be specified in the Master Déed and By Laws, as agteed to above
- and as required by the City of South Lyon if the project is approved to move forward by the City

Coupel. 7. o - : o

Sincerely,
o - = -

[ NSIZ-

M. ﬁbﬁta_'s Schioder
Developer and Applicant




CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION

Project Representative: Michelle Spencer/ Michael Powell of Powsll Engineering

Address: 4700 Cornerstone Drive

City/Siata/?.ip: White Lake, MI 48383

Phona/Fax: Phone: (248)714-9895 Fax: {248)694-9223

Emnail: michellé@powelleng .net mike@powelleng.net

Properiy Owner Mr. Charles L Smith

Address:

 City/State/Zip:

- Phong/Fax

Email:

APPLICATION SIGNATURE:. - | . o
The applicant indicated above must sign this application. All correspondence and notices regarding the
proposal will be transmitted to the applicant. By signing this application, the applicant is indicating that
all information contained in this application, all accompanying plans and all attachments are complete

and accurate to the best of his/her knowledge. This application is not valid unless it is accompanied by a
review fea. . : ‘

Appiicant’?z A/ggj& ./‘d B /7/_:,. _ Z@

{Signature / Date

Mr. Tom Schroder

{Print Name)

Properly Ownen

See Attached Authorization Letter

(Signature / Date)



Future Land Use dasignation: R-3 Open Space

Current Zoning: I-1

Proposed Zoning: R-3

pm‘j@d Nama: South Lyon Holly Hills

Location of ?fopea‘ty: " 10 MILE ROBD AND DIXBORO ROAD
Property ldentification Number: 21-~30-126-003

Brief Description of Conditional Zoning Proposal:

We are proposing an open space subdivision with a total of 62 =ingle family home

lotg within the subdivision and an additional 3 agtand alone R-3 lots along West Lake

The lots within the subdivision propose to meet the ordinance for an R-3 open space

development standards using the existing rocad and utilities, with a emall cul-de-eac

being added for Phase 2. Phase 1 will have 52 lote, Phase 2 will have 10 lots and

the 3 lote along West Take will be standard stand alone R-3 meeting the ordinance.

City of South Lyon 335 S. Warren Street  South Lyon, M1 48178 (248)437-1735

www.southlyonmi.org

R



Conditional Rezoning Checklist

CONDITIONAL ZONING CHECKLIST TO BE COMPLETED BY APPLICANT

This checklist is provided as a general guide for a conditional rezoning subrmittal. Incomplete packets or

inconsistent information may be returned to the applicant prior to the review. Only complete applications and
material may be reviewed.

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED NOT
APPLICABLE

GENERAL INFORMATION
Proof of ownership or authorization from the land owner fo submit

XX
the development proposal

The legal description of the property : XX
Written responses to conditional reézoning criteria (listed below) £X

A conditional zoning agreement which may include limitations on the
uses permitted on the property, specification of lower density or less
intensity of development and use, or may impose more resirictive xx
Imeasures on the location, size, height, or other measure for bulldmgs
structures, improvements, setbacks, landscaping,- buffers design,
architecture and other features :

The conditional zoning agreement shall include cbnditions that bear a
reasonable and rational relationship and/or benefit to the property
and may include conditions related to the use and development of

the property that are necessary to serve the intended use of the R
property; minimize the impact of the developrent on surrounding

roperties; preserve natural features and open space _
Preliminary Site Plan ' : . XX
Rezoning Submittal requirements (in table below) - o XX

1. The requnst shall bear a reasonabie and rational connection and/or benefit to the property being proposed
for rezoning.

2. The request shall be necessary to ensure that the property develops in such a way that protects the
surrounding neighborhood and minimizes any potential impacts to adjacent properties.

3. The request shall be necessary to allow the rezoning to be approved, in that the property could not or w0u!d
not be rezoned without the proposed conditional zoning agreemant.

4. The request shall lead to a development that is more compatible with abutting or surrounding uses than

would have been likely if the property had been rezoned without a conditional zoning agreement, or if the
property were left to develop under the existing zoning classification.

City of Southiyon 335 5. Warren Street South Lyon, Ml 48178 (248)437-1735 www.southlyonmi.org



REZONING SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS PROVIDED [NOT
APPLICABLE

GENERAL INFORMATION
Proof of ownership or authorization fram the landowner to submit the

XX
devalopment proposal

The legal dascription of the property XX
SITE ANALYSIS MAP

Plans drawn to an engineer’s scale, not smaller than 1”7 = 500 XX
Title indicating the nature of the request (i.e, Site Analysis Map —

Request for rezoning from District __ to District _), the applicant’s XX
name and the site address (or location if vacant)

Legend indicating the owner of record, the engineer, surveyor or xx

drafter, as applicable, the date of submission, scale and north point
A boundary survay of the subject property

Location of existing site boundary lines, buildings, structures or other
improvements, parking areas, drlveways points of ingress and egress XX
for the site and adjacent parcels.

Location, width and names of existing streets and public or prlvate
easements. adjacent to the site

Location of existing natural features, including but not hmlted to,
existing drainage courses, regulated floodplains or wetlands, Tree and
Woodlands Protection information, and other relevant information the XX
Planning Commission has deemed necessary and essential to making
an informed recommendation to the City Council

Existing and proposed zoning classification(s) of the site and adjacent
parcels ‘ XX

XX

City of South Lyon 335 5. Warren Street South Lyon, Mi 48178 (248)437-1735 www.southlyonmi.org




July 11, 2020

RE: Property Owner of Prapatty Tax D #21-30-126-003 at the SE corner of Dixbaro and 10 Mile
Road in the Clty of Seuth Lyon,

To Whom It May Concern:

As the property owner of the above referenced property | give authorization to Mr. Thomas Schroder,
President of Cornerstone Residential Group to sign as the Applicant on the site plan submittal and
rezaning application for the above referenced property, as necessary,

Sincerely, :
PATHWAY BUILDERS AND DEVELOPERS, INC.

Signatu.ra: éj//’rﬂ/ﬁé C\%, %f_‘i{fjﬁ

Printed. Name: (¥ J’\ G i~ /@ < 2\ SO}?'J / %7/

Owner of Property with tax i.d. 21-30-126-003

it e =



4700 Cofiérstone Dirive
White Lake, M) 48333
" Phone: (248)714-9895
Faks (2496949222
Eial: info@porielteng.nat

October 27, 2020

City Planning Commission Members
c/o Mis. Kelly McIntyre

City of South Lyon

335 South Warren Street

South Lyon, MI 48178

| RE:  Holly Hills Rezoning request for Condlttonal Rezomng
| Property 1D 21 30- 126—003 at West Lake/10 Mﬂe and szboro Road

Dear Ms Mclntyr_e and Pla;nmng Commissioners:

We have revised our submlttal for the property speaﬁed above to an R3 condltlonal
rezoning request rather than the prev1ous requested standard RT rezomng In addition
toi 1mprovmg the overall site, we are : proposing, as a benefit to the City and its residents,
the extension of a pathway to the ex1stmg pathway which begins at Hagadon Street
along 10 Mile Road or West Street for access into Downtown City of South Lyon. ‘We
believe this will not only be used by the residents in the . subdivision, but also the
residents of the entire C1ty and bordering municipalities. We also want to further

describe the benefits we believe this single family home condomrmum will brmg to the
City Whlch are as follows: - -

1. Environmentally, a single family home site with large setbacks from the exrs’ung
wetlands and the plckup of the entire development area into site storm sewers
- which are contained onsite, rather than the runoff of industrial sites - w1th

chemicals into the large wetlands, is much be‘rter for the City from an
environmental perspechve

2. This property is walkable to downtown C1ty of South Lyon which is Very |
degirable for a residential subdivision and would | provide support to the

downtown businesses especzally after the difficulty businesses have faced in this
year. :

3. The property at the NW corner and ad]acent to the sub]ect property, Whlch was
also master planned mdustrlal ‘has been rezoned from industrial to a mul’aple

Tengincering A Better Vichigan”



October 27, 2020

Page2of2

residential and is currently being developed. The developer and future residents
have shared their desire for our site to not to be an industrial eyesore as there is
no screening between the new multiple residential or from the main 10 Mile
Road. In addition, the neighboring Green Oak Township has a very nice
subdivision directly across the sireet with no screening to the existing industrial.

. The propbsed development will provide walkable access in a combination of

sidewalks and boardwalk along 10 Mile Road portion of the property as well as
south to the multijurisdictional pathway to further entice the area residents to
walk to the downtown City area and in turn benefit the busmesses in the
downtown area.

. The current site was developed in early 2001 and has sat without proper upkeep

for the last 19 years as it has been tried to be sold as an industrial site. The site is
currently an eye sore for not only the residents surrounding it, but also for
people driving along West Lake. Currently it is approved ‘as an industrial site
with no further requirements for screening from the approved plans.

Sincerely,

POWELL ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC.
' Consultmg Engmeers

Michelle_ C.‘.SPénc.er
Vice President



N 4700 Corneistone Drive
\ _.Ell , , White Lake, MI 48383

& Assocnates, LLC Fax: (248)694.9222
_ ' - Email: info@powelleng.net

February 11, 2021

City of South Lyon Council Members
/o Ms. Kelly McIntyre, City Planner
3335 South Warren

South Lyon, MI 48178

RE:  Conditional rezoning public benefit

Dear Soufh Lyon Council Members:
The public beneflt that the developer is offermg for the condltlonal rezoning 1s/are

1. Sidewalk along West Lake Street or 10 M11e Rd from subject proper’fy 0 8. Haggadorn Street
- including 650+ lineal feet offsite walk along West Lake, in addition to the 1000+ feet onsite along '
subject property to be installed. This will further extend Walkabﬁrfy to the downtown area for a
benefit to downtown businesses.
2. Developer will provide more sound deademng windows in all re51dent1a1 homes in the
proposed development to help mitigate noise concerns from the tube factory. :
3. Developer will provide 2x6 walls and additional insulation on- all proposed homes in the
. development to m.ﬂ:tgate noise concerns from the tube factory'

Please let us know. if you have any additional questions.
Sincerely,

POWELL ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES, INC.
Consulﬁng Ejngineers _

Mlchelle C Spencer
Vice President -

"Engineering A Better Michigan"



B

%g‘?

5 COMMUNITY
QEMAGE BUILDERS

PLANHNING ¢ MARKEING ECUNOMICDEVE.D?.‘\ g

What is a Conditional Rezoning? FACT SHEET

A Conditional Rezoning is where an applicant petitions to change the zoning of a parcel(s) and to
reduce controversy or concerns, the applicant might volunteer to condition the zoning amendment
to restrict the use of the parcel(s) to only a specific certain land use. The authorization to enter into
zoning agreements {Conditional Rezoning) was introduced in 2004 and :mplemented through
amendments to the City and Village Zoning Act. The statute makes it clear that condltlonal rezoning
is the applicant’s option and local government is not permltted to initiate use of this zoning tool.

The authorization states:

(MICHIGAN ZONING ENABLING ACT 110 bf2006} Section: 125.3405;

Use and developrnent of land as condition to rezoning.

Sec. 405 (1) An owner of land may voluntarily offer in writing, am:l the local unlt of government may
approve, certain use and development of the land as a condltion to a rezonmg of the’ lanc! or an

\ amendment 10 azoning map

(2)In approvmg the ooncimons under subsection (1), the local unit of government may establish a time
period’ during which the conditions applv to the land. Except for'an extension under subsection (4}, if

- the conditions are not satisfied within the time specified under this subsectlon the land shall revert to

its former zonlng classifi cation.

{3) The lacal government shall not add to or alter the condltsons approved under subsection {1) durmg o
thetime pafiod specmed under subsectlon (2) of this section. S '

(4} The time period spec;fled under subsect[on {2} may be extended upon the apphcatuon of the

“landowner and approval of the logal unit of government

(5) A Iocal umt of govemment ‘shafl not require ala ndowner to offer conditions as a requ:rement for .
rezoning. The lack of an offer under subsection (1) shall not otherwlse affect a landowner's raghts under
this agt, the orclmances of the lacal unit of government, or any other laws of this state

Eff. July 1, 2006.

As part of this agreement the Acts allow or requlre

Page i

Settmg a tlme frame during which the voluntary offers from the owner must be fulﬁlled _
A requirement that should the offers not be fulfllled that the zoning reverts to the previous

. classmcatlon

A provision that proh1b|ts the mun:mpallty from requiringan owner to offer cond;taons asa

condition of the rezoning.



%”@ﬁ

228 COMMUNITY
L IMAGE BUILDERS

PLAMFING § MARKETING » BCOMOMIC DEVELGRMEN

VOLUNTARY OFFERS

The Zoning Acts” amendments require that conditions be voluntarily offered in writing by a property
owner. Ideally, this offer should he provided with the initial application for rezoning.

The offered conditions must be related to the rezoning itseli.

So, what can be offered, or more importantly, what could be accepted as part of a zoning
agreement? While a complete listing is simply not possible, some examples may he useful.

= A community’s comprehensive plan notes that rezonings for high density residential uses
will not he considered until public utilities are available to the proberty. The owner oifersto
extend public utilities to the site at his expense. ' '

e Concerns about the smzll size of dwelling units allowed in the new dlstrlct are expressed by
neighboring property owners during a rezoning public hearing. The applicant offers to
restrict the siza of the homaes to be consistent with those in the area.

Some mapproprlate condxtlons

¢ The new district restricts bm]dmgs toa helght of 35 feet. The apphcant offers to increase the
_setback of the building in exchange for an increase in building height to 50 feet. (The
‘agreement cannot permit something that would otherwise be prOhlblted in the new
district.)
»  The agreement includes a clause that prohibits the community from changing the zoning of
the property at any time in the future. {The community cannot bargain away its zoning
authority or commit a future legislative body to a certain zoning.)

ZONING REVERSION

The new legislation requires that unless the conditions of rezoning approval are met within a period
specified by the local jurisdiction the land reverts to the original zoning.

CONTENTS OF THE AGREEMENT

Prior to entering into any agreement it should be thoroughly reviewed by the commumty s planner,
attorney, and other appropriate professionals, bath for content as well as legality. The agreement
should cover a broad range of situations and leave as little as possible to interpretation. .

¢ The agreemen‘t should cléariy state that it is to run with the land and bind all future owners
to its provisions. An executed copy should be recorded at the county reglster of deeds.
e When considering voluntary offers, they must be clearly stated, avoiding vague terms or
“conditions. Check to see whether terms used in the agreement are already defined in the
zoning ordinance and if they are, make sure there is agreament between those definitions;
for example does a part of the agreement preserving open space include wetlands, or storm
water management areas?

Page 2

P



= OMMUNITY
%fé?eggl‘t: FMAGE BUILDERS

PLANKING | AARKETING | SCOMONMIC DIVELOPMERT

*  Toaveid attempts by property owners to exempt future development plan changes from
complying with future code reguirements, steer clear of language that ties a rezoning to
zoning regulations or codes that exist at the time of approval. Although “locking in”
development regulations may be permissible in some states where development
agreements are permitted through state enabling legislation, Michigan currentiy lacks this
authority, .
For public improvements, such as streets and utilities, make sure the construction schedule
is clear and that it has a breakdown of costs and obligations; for example who is required to
pay for engineering drawings, inspection fees, obtain peimits and prepare as-built drawings?
If other agenclies are involved, such as a road, or drain commission, make sure the decision-
making process for final design approvals is clearly specified and get the agency invalved in
reviewing the oifer early in the process. As an additional layer of protection, include
submission of performance bonds or similar tools in the agreement to guarantee that
infrastructure and road improvements committed to by a developer will in fact be made.
Try not to re- ih\_/eht the zoning.ordinance in the agreement; rely on current ordinances for
the details and just list the items that are part of the agreement.
° Flnaiiy, attach reduced plans and supporting documents to the agreement and make sure

- they are clearly referenced by title and date. tn many instances, a site plan may be needed io

clearly show the condltlons included as'part of the agreement

. REZONING EVALUATIONS

While zoning agreements may prove a useful taol in tailoring land development to mdmdual sites and
situations, they should not be used to avoid the fundamental planning principles upon which we rely to
build strong communities. Accordingly, the ability to enter into zoning agreements should not be viewed
as a pariacea that cures all problems related to zoning. Instead, zoning agréerhents should be entered
into only after careful consideration and deliberation.

Challenges to zoning changes associated with zoning agreements tend to indicate that courts generally
use the same standards fo test these “conditional rezonings” that are used for any rezoning. Consistency
with the comprehensive plan, ensuring that the uses or activities covered by the agreement (and the

subseq uent rezoning) are compatible with the ne1ghborhood and other rezoning conSIderatlons are stili
valid. '

Similar standards should apply to test the conditions or restrictions offered by a property owner: are
they legal and reasonable; do they further general welfare; do they bear a relationship ta the activity .
that results from the zone change; and are they propertional to potential impacts?

PROTECTION FROM SUBSEQUENT REZONINGS

The Michigan legislation stipulates that a local government cannot alter the provisions of the zoning
agreement during a period specified in the agreement. Ostensibly this is meant to provide some level of
protection for a landowner or developer by lacking in the agreement provisions for at least some
specified time. However, if conditions are not met during that period a local government has two

Page 3



B COMBUNTY
Pl MAGE BUILDERS

PLANMING - h\AEK“'{ING | ECOMT UHLLD ELOFME \ll

choices; either extend the time frame, or, as noted earlier, initiate the process to return the zoning to its
previous classification.

CONCLUSION

Conditionat Rezonings add flexibility to land use decisions but should not be used as a substitute for

traditional, sound zoning prmmples and practices. Any offers made by a praperty owner to condition
rezoning must be carefully considered and:

s  The offer must be made voluntarily, it cannot bargain away a community's ability to make future
zoning decisions; :
e The agreement must bear a reasonable relationship to the potential impacts that resuli from
~ the rezoning, considering the general welfare rather than ptivate interests;
o It must be consistent with a community’s comprehenswe plan and be in harmony with the
normal zoning plan for the area, and
o |t must clearly state the restrictions that are proposed for the property.

Page 4



2/ 15/2f
AM

Vacant Industrial Properties

& ’&@?5‘1

t

1. Parcel: 21-25-129-003: .20 acres

TEBY;

B Basamiap Gallery

“
2. Parcel: 21-20-326-016: 1.52 acres

3.Parcel: 21-20-326-002: 1.99 acres



4700 Cornerstene Drive

Waite Lake, M] 48383
& Absod o eshs
& Associates, LLC ax: (248)

Email: info@pawelleng.net

February 11, 2021

City of South Lyon Council Members
c/o Ms. Kelly McIntyre, City Planner
3335 South Warren

South Lyon, MI 48178

RE: Reasons Parcel 1.D.#21-31-126-003 should be rezoned from I-1 to
Conditional R-3

Dear South Lyon Council Members:

The reasons we feel this is an important move for the City of South Lyon and of the City’s best interest
are as follows:

Planner’s Letter;

1. The single family residential designation is not consistent with the City of South Lyon’s MasterPlan
which shows the property in question planned for Industrial.

The property was originally zoned residential back in the late 1990's. The owner of the property
had success with other industrial sites within the City of South Lyon and believed this site would
be moare profitable as industrial and, therefore, THE OWNER PETETIONED for the property to
have a change in zoning from the way the City hadl it zoned Residential to Industrial. The owner
then put it up for sale as an indusirial piece. The City did not put tons of thought into Master
Planning this piece industrial it was brought in by the property owner.

2. Residential land use in the City exceeds 63% of the land, where is less than 5% of the City’s land is zoned

and master planned for industrial; rezoning the property to single family does not meet a land use/need
goal of the Master Plan.

Please see the submitted “Property Information page” which shows currently zoned Industrial
acreage, compiled by Thomas Duke, which is undeveloped in the City of South Lyon. We do not
believe this site is necessary to industrial within the city. Furthermore, because the site did not sell
after il was rezoned in the late 1990's, the owner of the property double downed and paid for the
subject property to be a fully developed industrial park extending watermain, sanitary, road and
storm infrastructure, to entice buyers . Therefore, since 2001 this site has beenn FOR SALE as a
developed 10 unit industrial park. STILL not one single call of interest in this property for
industrial, even when the area had an economic boom for many years. Five (5) vears ago an
attempt to rezone the property to multiple was made and denied “lo keep the properly as

"Engineering A Better Michigan"



February 11, 2021

Page 2 of 4

As

industrial due to the need for industrial” - since then another 5 years has gone by with the property
in disarray, being a dumping ground for trash, old cars, couches, eic. The property has been listed
for years now at ¥4 the price of other area industrial properties (see enclosed market study provided
by Thomas Duke dated December 1, 2020.

3. Evidence has not been provided that demonstrates that the property can’t be used for any of the permitted
and special land wses in the current I-1 zoning district,

The enclosed market study and the fact that twenly (20 years has gone by with the fully developed
industrial parle with not a single call when the property is listed at ¥ of the g_;mng_j rate of like
properties in the area, This is “proofl” that the property is not in demand for industrial. However,
there is a demand for housing (see enclosed Michigan need for residential study dated August 27,
2020). Inaddition, there is a need for attainable housing for people who work in South Lyon to live
within the Cily limits.

4. The proposed use is not compatible with surrounding uses to the east and south.

Please see the attached map below:

"S;(vi ‘\\\‘UJ &l«';i

I believe you can see clearly there is existing residential to the north, east and west. The i-2 to the

east is wetland and could not be developed without millions of dollars of wetland mitigation leaving,
the land directly east as R-3 residential. In addition, please notice that 10 Mile Road or West Lake

Street is the main drive into downtown — does the City of South Lyon want to look at ugle industrial on



¥

February 11, 2021
Page 3 of 4

the main drive downtown, or wani large industrial trucks driving through downtown to get to the
expressway?

The proposed R-3 development is proposed as open space cluster - meaning that we are leaving
vegetation between this site and the industrial to the south — if industrial went on this lot they would
not leave vegetation and there would be visibility rom West Lake Streel straight through to this site,
Furthermore, we are requesting this zoning changes as a conditional rezoning meaning that it does not
allow anything but this plan'to be developed, any changes from it would require the developer to comne
back before Council again. The reason this is good is because our submitted parallel plan shows that
this sile could fit 75 lots which meet the ordinance completely and the submitled plans are only
requesting 59 lots which meet ordinance and provide far more open space than required by the
ordinance.

Additional thoughts to consider:

o The property is [ocated on the main road into Downtown City of South Lyon — the property
will be and is fully visible from West Lake Street just a few blocks from downtown. The
corner piece, directly adjacent, has been rezoned to multiple and has a clear view to this siie
in addition to the upland directly on 10 Mile Road which could be used for Commercial dog
kermels, outdoor storage, or just storage buildings, all of which are not visibly appealing to
the existing residential avound nor from the main road leading into the downtown.

@ A residential development here which is a mile walk into downtown City of South Lyon
where the developer as a benefit o the cily is proposing to extend the sidewalk from
Hagadorn Street down West Lake/ 10 Mile Rd across the frontage of this development,
providing walkability for City of South Lyon residents, fo walk to downtown. This benefits
the businesses in the downtown district with additional patronage,

e A residential site on this site with the regulated natural feature wetland is less
environmentally prohibitive than industrial.

e How many addilional decades will the city want for this site to sit in disarray wailing for an
industrial use when it has been a vacant dumping ground for over 20 without a single call.

e The current owners which had petitioned this to be changed from residential to industsial
have had this property listed for over twenty (20} years, They never limited what type of
industrial use was allowed.

o The developer has agreed to put additional insulation and sound deadening windows in all
proposed houses to help prevenl noise deadening from the existing tube milj, additionalily,
these new houses built with new building codes will be far more equipped to block out
sound than the houses closer to the tube mill which were built in early 1960,



L

February 11, 2021
Page 4 of 4

We hope with the above information as well as the facts of the site provided in the market
study and other information provided you will have all you need to make an informed
decision on the Conditional R-3 zoning for the subject property on February 22, We will be
on the call to answer any questions you may have regarding the site or the plans as we believe
that this development would be a welcome addition by the residents in the City of South Lyon.

Sincerely,

POWELL ENGINEERING & ASSOCTATES, INC.
Consulting Engineers

Michelle C. Spencer
Vice President



THOMAS DUKE

[ S M A Ak oot |

December 1, 2020

City of South Lyon
Planning Commission
335 8. Warren Street
South Lyon, MI 48178

RE.: 32+/- Acres of Land located at Ten Mile and Dixboro Roads

Dear Sir/Madarm:

The Thomas Duke Compaay is a 4% Generation Commercial Real Estate Company specializing in the sale
of office, industrial, retail and vacant land properties. We are providing this information on behalf of
Chuck and Lois Smith, owners of the above referenced property.

The subject property was purchased and annexed in to the City of South Lyon by Chuck and Lois Smith
in 1989. In 1999, a Site Plan and Rezoning at the Smith’s request was approved for a Lt. Industrial Patk.
"The owners began marketing the property for sale, for lease or build to suit. Tn 2003, 2 decision was made
by the owners to develop the property with hopes that it would spur interest in the propetty. Utilities
wete installed and the road constructed. It was a mistake. In the 17+/- years since the property was
developed, there has been no sale, no offers, no interest from anyone intetested in the undetlying zoning.
17 years. During this ime Chuck and Lois Smith have hired 4 different commercial/industrial firms who
have all tried and failed to sell or lease this property to anyone who fits within the cutrent zoning,

The Thomas Duke Company was hited in 2015. During the last 5 years, we have sent out over 3,900
marketing pieces specifically targeting Industrial Users, Developers and Brokers. During the last 5 yeats
we have procuted 5 Offers to Purchase, all from Residential developers zeto from Industrial users ot
developers. During the Jast 5 years, we have spoken with dozens of Industrial users, developers and
brokets and their responses have had a common theme;

1) They don't like the location.

2) ‘Too far from the expressway.

3) No clear path to get there. Have to dtive through Downtown South Lyon.
4) No demand from tenants.

5) Other options in better locations.

Keep in mind that over the last 5 years, we have experienced one of the strongest markets with the
greatest activity for Industrial related properties in Southwest Oalland County. In fact, the Smiths have
been through two economic cycles, and still, zeto interest for Industrial uses.

The lack of interest is clearly not price related. According to a Costar Report dated 12/1/2020 (see
attached), there are currently 691 acres of Industrial land available for sale within a 7 mile radius of the

Smith’s property. The average asking price is $201,000 per acre. We are asking $52,250 per acre.




South Lyon Planning Commission
December 1, 2020
Page two.

We understand that the “Master Plan” is not based upon land use and zoning decisions of current market
situations, but rather long term in a “reasonable” amount of time. It has been 25 years, actively and
aggressively marketing the propetty for sale or lease. With all of the available properties many/most of
which in superior location, there is no confidence that this site would be sold or Ieased as it is presently
zoned in the next 25 years.

Chuck and Lois Smith ate 88 years old, they have invested greatly in South Lyon. They have been trying
to recoup their investment for over 25 years. They do not have internet, otherwise they would be joining
us on the “zoom meeting”.

They respectfully request that you approve the rezoning request. If denied for the purpose of keeping this
zoning for “Some Time” in the future as has been previously stated, they would ask the City to buy the
propetty instead of holding it hostage.

Sincerely,
THOMAS DUKE COMPANY

/Mek

Matk W. Szerlag, CCIM
Partner



Boghloe 7 m B
Brighton 1R 2 &E 'H ' -
Recreation : [sfand Lok @ '

fareti coreatig

s 1zl "F{"']fé:'{il?{ :P

i

P aden

Sialater

116-416-3 -
-2
116-6 Froyinsest]

4.5 roiles

o

Boardwalk Rd Zoning: LT. INDUSTRIAL Sale Price: $235,000
' Pricef/AC: $100,000.00

Boardwalk Road Parcel Size: 2.35 AC Sale Status: Active
Green Oak Township, Mi Lot le;ﬂﬂffl:ﬁf - Days On Market: 2,574
48116 arLots: -

Livingston Couniy
This property is represented by Signature Associates - Jim Montgomery, (248) 359-0614
This property Is for sale individually

Citation Dr Zoning: B-3 Sale Price: $179,000

) . ) Price/AC; $70,472.44
Brighton Business Park Parcal Size: 2.54 AC Sale Status: Active
Brighifon, Mf 48116 Lot Dlmensmnsi - Days On Market: 2,100

# of Lots: -

Livingston County

This property is represented by Thomas Duke Company - John Porth, (248) 476-8661
This property is for sale individually

% Copyrighted report licensed to Thomas Duke Company - 95859,
THOMAS DUKE

12172020

Page 1



Land for Industrial - For Sale

54500 Grand River Zoning: - Sale Price: $6,762,800
. Price/AC; $220,000.00
54500 Grand River Parcel Size: 30.74 AC Sala Status' Active
Wixom, M! 48165 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 432
# of Lots: -
Oakfand County

This property is represented by Signature Associates - Jim Montgomery, (248) 359-0614
This property is for sale individually

56085 Grand River Zoning: BY Sale Price: $4,375,000
) Price/AC: $175,000.00
56085 Grand River Avenue Parcel Size: 25 AC Sale Status: Active
New Hudson, Wi 48165 Lot Dimensians: - Days On Market: 1,338
# of Lots: -
Oakland County Proposed Use: Industrial

This property is represented by Thomas Duke Company - Mark W. Szerlag, (248) 476-1277
This property is for sale individually

Grand River Ave Zoning: General Ind. Sale Price: $109,823,472
Price/AC: $287,496.00
Lyon Twp, MI 48165 Parcel Size: 382 AC Sale Stalus: Active
Oaktand County Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 2,240
# of Lots: -
Central 1-96 Corridor
Submarket

This property is represented hy Signature Associates - Steve Gordon, (248) 948-0101
This property is for sale individually

Grand River Ave Zoning: Industrial Sale Price; $695,000
i Price/AC: $154,444.44
ggnd River & Fleasant Valley Parcel Size: 4.50 AC Sale Status: Active
Lot Dimansions: - Days On Market: 1,183
Brighton, M 48116 # of Lots: -

Livingston County
This properiy is represented by Locations Commercial Real Estate Services LLC - Harry A, Dikho, (248) 939-9976
This property is for sale individually

Green Qak Industrial Dr Zaning: G-1 Sale Price: $1,320,000
PricefAC: $36,184.21

Green Oak Industrial Park Parcel Size: 36.48 AC Sale Statue: Active
Whitmore Lake, Mi 48189 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 930
#of Lots: -

Livingsfon County

This property is represented by RH Commercial Realty - Rob Hughes, {248) 505-0399
This property is for sale individually

. . 12/1/2020
L Copyrighted repart licansed lo Thomas Duke Company - 95858
THOMAS DUKE

Page 2



Land for Industrial - For Sale

Lochiin Dr Zoning: L1 Sale Price: $253,000

. . . Price/AC: $100,000.00
Kensngton Pines Industrial Farcel Size: 2.53 AC Sale Status: Active
Park - Lot 23 Lot Dimensions: 369x369 - Irregular Days On Market: 917
Brighton, Mi 43116 #of Lots: -

Livingston County
This property is represented by RH Commercial Realty - Rob Hughes, (248) 505-0399
This property is for sale individually

PHi s

55285 Lyon Industrial Dr Zoning: 11 Sale Price: $150,000-
$328,500
New Hudson, MI 48165 Parcel Size: 2.18 AC Price/AC: $68,493.15-
Lot Bimensions: Irregular $150,000.00
Oakiand County # 0f Lots: - Sale Status: Active
Central I-96 Corridor Days On Market: 3,912
Submarket

This property is represented by Signature Associates - Jim Montgomery, (248) 359-0614
This property is for sale individually

55280 Lyon Industrial Dr Zoning: Lt. Industrial. Sale Price: $150,000
Price/AC: $37,688.44
New Hudson, MI 48165 Parce) Size: 3.98 AC Sale Status: Active
Oakiand County Lot Dlmensmnsi - Days On Market: 1,187
# of Lots: ~

Central I-96 Corridor
Submarket

This property is represented by Signature Associates - Jim Montgomery, (248) 359-0614
This property is for sale indlvidually

McCarthy Dr Zoning: M2, Milford Sale Price: $958,800-
. $2,064,000
M2, Zoned Acreage Parcel Size: 17.20 AG Price/AC: $55,744.19-
. Lot Dimensions: - $120,000.00
Wilford, Mi 48381 # of Lots: - Sale Status: Active
Oakland County Days On Market: 279

This property is represented by Signature Associates - Jim Montgomery, (248) 359-0814 Joseph T. Hamway, (248)
948-0113

This property is for sale individually

Pleasant Valley Rd Zoning: I-1 Sale Price: $1,350,000
. Price/AC: $21,791.77

Brighton, Mi 48116 Parcel Size: 61.95 AC Sale Status: Active

Livingston County Lot D'”:S?:f‘ﬂfl:f - Days On Market: 2,287

Fieasant Valley Road & I-36

Livingston County Submarket
This property is represented by Colliers International - Paul Gobeille, {248) 540-1000
This property is for sale individually

) 12172020
T Copyrighted report licensed to Thomas Duke Company - 85859,
THOMAS DUKE

Page 3



Land for Industrial - For Sale

Pontiac Tri Zoning: M-2 Sale Price: $4,124,000
. . Price/AC: $131,883.59
Pontiac Traif Parcel Size: 31.27 AC Sale Status: Active
Mifford, Mi 48381 Lot Dlmensmnsi - Days On Market: 292
# of Lots: -
Oakland County

This property is represented by RH Commerclal Reaity - Rob Hughes, (248) 505-0399
This property is for sale individually

Pontiac Trail & Old Plank Rd Zoning: IV Sale Price: For Sale
. PricefAC: -
Mitford, il 48381 Parcel Size: 4 AC Sale Status: Active
Oakiand County Lot Dlmensmnsi 408x408 Days On Market: 2,070
# of Lots: -
Ceniral I-86 Corridor
Submarket

This property is represented by Burger and Company - John O'Brien, (248) 536-2888
This property is for sale individually

1129 Rickett Rd . Zoning: - Sale Price: $99,000
Price/AC: $116,470.59
Lot1 Parce! Size: 0.85 AC Sale Status: Active
Brighton, Mi 48116 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market; 298
# of Lots: -
Livingsion County Proposed Use: Industrial

This property is represented by Chestnut Development - Steve Gronow, (810) 599-5147 Christian Bugeja, (810) 59%-
8359

This property is for sale individually

m y N Territorial Rd E Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
VA Price/AC: $86,585.89
fen Parcel C Parcel Size: 10.10 AC Sale Status: Active

L}i] Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 totbimensens: - Days On Market: 3,781
: :a'.:}.m.:l X
Washtenaw County Proposed Use: Gommercial, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Warling, (734) 769-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 769-3203
This property is for sale individually and is for sale as part of a portfolio

Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
Price/AC: $86,585.89
Parcel Size: 5.10 AC Sale Status; Active
Whitmore Lake, Mi 48189 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 3,781
# of Lots: -
Washtenaw County Proposed Use: Commercial, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Warling, (734) 768-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 76%-3203
This property is for sale individually and is for sale as part of a portfolio

T ) 12/112020
) Copyrighted report licensed te Thomas Duke Company - 95859.
THOMAS DUKE

Page 4



Land for Industrial - For Sale

N Territorial Rd E Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
Price/AC: $86,585.89
Lotz Parce! Size: 5.10 AC Sale Status: Active
Whitmore Lake, Mi 48189 Lat Dimensions: - Days On Market: 3,781
# of Lots: -
Washtenaw County Proposed Use: Commercial, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Warling, (734) 769-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 769-3203
This property Is for sale individually and is for sale as part of a portfolio

N Territorial Rd E Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
Price/AC: $86,585.89
Lot3 Farcel Size: 8 AC Sale Siatus: Active
Whitmore Lake, M/ 45189 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 3,781
# of Lots: -
Washtenaw County Proposed Use: Commerclal, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Watling, (734) 763-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 769-3203
This property is for sale individually and is for sale as part of a portfolic

N Terriforial Rd E Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
Price/AC: $86,585.89
Jomar Park Parcel Size: 11.60 AC Sale Status: Active
Whitmore Lake, MI 48189 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 3,781
# of Lots: -
Washtenaw County Proposed Use: Commercial, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Warling, (734) 769-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 769-3203
This property is for sale individually and is for sale as part of a pertfolio

m | N Territorial Rd E Zoning: RMT Sale Price: $4,002,000
' ' Price/AC: $86,585.89
Lot5 Parce| Size: 6.32 AC Sale Siatus: Active
| Whitmore Lake, Wi 48189 Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 3,781
#of Lots: -
' Washitenaw County Proposed Use: Commercial, Industrial

This property is represented by JLL - Neal R. Warling, (734) 769-3201 Kelly Fisher, (734) 769-3203
This property is for sale individually and is for sale as part ofa portfolio

Whitmore Lake Rd Zoning: Light industrial Sale Price: $725,000

. Price/AC: $94,895.29
Whitmore Lake, i 48189 Parcel Size: 7.64 AC Sale Status: Active
Livingston County Lot Dm;egfs]ljnorlzf Days On Market: 1,329

Livingston County Submarket ~ Propased Use: Industrial

This property is represented by Lee & Associates Commercial Real Estate Service - Jon G. Savoy, (248) 567-8000
This property is for sale Individually

: ) 12/1/2020
T Copyrighted report licensed to Thomas Duke Company - 95859,
THOMAS DUKE

Page 5



Land for Industrial - For Sale

7100 Whitmore Lake Rd Zoning: - Sale Price: $3,500,000
Price/AC: $245,614.04
Parcel 2 Parce! Size: 14.25 AC Sale Status: Active

Let Dimensions: - Days On Market: 714

Brighton, Mi 48116 # of Lots: -

Livingston County

This property is represented by Thomas Duke Company - Mark W. Szerlag, (248) 476-1277 John Porth, {248} 476-
8661

This property is for sale individuaily

8860 Whitmore Lake Rd Zoning: Light Industrial Sale Price: $190,000
Price/AC: $163,793.10
Brighton, MI 48116 Parcel Size: 1.16 AC Sale Status: Active
Lot Dimensions: - Days On Market: 725

Livingsfon County # Of Lots: -

Livingston County Submarket

Proposed Use: Commercial. Industrial, Office
This property is represented by Thomas Duke Company - Blake Macek, (248) 478-3700 John Porth, (248) 476-8661

This property is for sale individually

T ) 12/1/2020
o Copyrighted report licensed to Thomas Duke Company - 95859,
THOMAS DUKE

Page €



PROPERTY INFORMATION

400 McMunn Street
21-30-126-004

Vacant Land Mill Street
21-20-326-002

Vacant Land Mill Street
21-20-326-018

600 N Mill Street
21-20-327-020

299 N Mili Street
21-20-327-015

1.51

5.2

42

Total undeveloped land area: approximately
15 acres

Total undeveloped land area: 2 acres

Total undeveloped land area: 1.51 acres

Total undeveloped land area: approximately
4 acres

Total undeveloped land area: approximately
3 acres




& il v
i 3 H B
H 'l ¥ i :
| L H : i i
















August 27, 2020

Dear Governor and Legislative Leaders—

Michigan has a growing housing crisis and we, the undersigned organizations representing both
non-profit and for-profit housing organizations, as well as economic developers, community
leaders and others ask that you come together to develop a comprehensive and bi-partisan
strategy that will help us more effectively deal with the housing availability and affordability
challenges emerging across our state.

Our state’s housing development problems are complex and, given the ramifications from the
housing downturn more than a decade ago and the pandemic challenges posed right now,
there are fewer builders, contractors, workers, parcels, operators and capital in today's
marketplace. There is also a disproportionate rate of homeownership by race and income
levels across our state, making home appreciation/equity and greater wealth generation out of
reach for an increasing number of Michiganders.

To briefly summarize:

Annual production of single-household homes has been dramatically below historic averages
for more than a decade in our state. Further, those homes that are being built now have
generally been at the high-end of the market. A recent study by our state housing agency
showed that the median price of a newly constructed home in our state last year climbed to
$331,000. And, in some communities, those median price points are now approaching a half-
million dollars or more. With little to no entry-level homes being built, lack of supply has sent
existing home values soaring, making it difficult for first time home buyers and others to find
homes.

In multi-family housing, market analyses over the last decade (including those sponsored by
MSHDA) finds steadily growing demand for rental and ownership in smaller-scale “missing
middle” buildings ranging in size from 4 to 20 units. These buildings fit and compliment the
economic and social needs of households in community neighborhoods because their
walkability access can reduce housing and transportation costs — and hence increase
affordability. Some key regulatory changes already underway in other states —e.g., missing
middle housing returning to its historic by-right allowance in neighborhoods and having equal-
footing in housing funding programs — have seen significant, positive impact but to-date have
not been implemented here.



The net effect from these trends has limited households, homes, and units from a natural range
and balance of choice and instead created more price pressure throughout the entire housing
spectrum, meaning lower-income individuals and families have correspondingly seen increased
rental costs. All of this has pushed workers further and further away from their places of
employment in search of more affordable housing—exacerbating road congestion, increasing
road maintenance costs and carbon emissions among other things. In more and more
communities we are also seeing a lack of housing options impact economic growth and job
opportunities for our state’s citizens.

There is no, one, simple policy solution to help address this crisis. However, our diverse group
has identified critical needs/opportunities and implores you to consider a focused housing
initiative, with enacting reforms to include but not limited to the following areas:

State Assistance (particularly discretionary programs for economic development, housing, etc.)
should only go to communities that have encouraged housing development at price-points
average Michiganders can afford. The State should look at density restrictions and other local
community policies in determining whether a community is discouraging entry-level housing
investment in making such determinations;

Create a “housing-investment-ready” community benchmarking program, similar to other
states, to identify and spotlight best practices (things like expedited reviews, fee reductions or
waivers, by-right zoning, and innovative partnership solutions should be encouraged});

Identify traditional economic development tools that could be modified {either legislatively or
through MEDC action) to utilize in attracting needed housing investment, including but not
limited to amendments to our Tax Increment Financing (TIF) statute;

Direct MSHDA to make “missing-middle” and “entry-level” housing an agency priority, including
direction to make it a low-cost financing arm for these type of housing developments, including
but not limited to projects that utilize tax increment financing;

Establish protocol by and between MEDC and MSHDA so that housing incentive options are
included with business attraction/retention offers to address the “where are my employees
going to live” dilemma;

Recognize and direct the multiple State development-focused agencies ~ MSHDA, MEDC, Land
Bank, MDOT, MDARD ~ to organize in support for this initiative, to be undertaken in
partnership with the signatories to this letter;

Create a tax credit and/or enhance loan and grant programs to encourage home repairs to help
keep people in their homes and maintain current housing stock;



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

5.

Expand the entry-level housing point to increase the number of potential home owners who
are eligible for down payment assistance and financial education;

End the practice of using the cost of construction to determine permit fees across the state.
This practice artificially inflates the cost of construction and renovation (and thus housing). It
also pushes unscrupulous contractors to try and bypass permitting processes;

Require or incentivize road commissions and fire marshals to expedite any necessary review of
housing development plans;

Discourage local communities from adopting any ordinance that prohibits building techniques
or products that are allowed under the state’s residential building code;

Recognize the design-range and affordability inherent in modular housing, and direct the DTMB
to establish a fast-track plan review process and State-approved plan website so that access is
enabled for developers, builders, and citizens to realize the time and cost-savings;

Restore the full authority of the State Construction Code Commission—so builders and local
inspectors can get clearer direction on code interpretations and other disputes. In the past local
inspectors and builders could get opinions/guidance with a quick phone call to the State. Now
the State essentially requires a builder to file suit if he/she disagrees with a local interpretation,
adding delays and costs to the housing development and construction process;

Re-establish a code promulgation system that uses building experts to help determine what
ought to go into Michigan’s Residential Code—this system was eliminated by the Snyder
Administration as part of a larger regulatory reform effort. Without this system we may not be
able to customize model codes to what is appropriate for our state, resulting in increased
housing costs; and

Given the fact that it can take years to gain approvals for new developments which, in turn
raises the cost of the homes in those developments, remove the non-homestead tax rate {for a
defined period of time to prevent tax avoidance schemes) on development properties. This
would mirror the current tax treatment of inventory/spec homes.

We appreciate your consideration of our request and stand ready to work with you on these
and/or any other ideas you believe will positively impact and advance one of the most critical

needs of people and families in our state — safe and decent housing for all.

Sincerely,



Robert L. Filka
CEO
Home Builders Association of Michigan

Luke Forrest
Executive Director
Community Economic Development Assoc of Michigan

John Avery
Executive Director
Michigan Economic Developers Association

Ryan Kilpatrick
Executive Director
Housing Next

Justin Horvath
President and CEO
Shiawassee Economic Development Partnership

Cindy Kosloski
CEO
Home Builders Association of Greater Lansing

Carmelina Crisci
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Central Michigan

Priscilla Lyon
Executive Director
" Home Builders Association of Greater Grand Rapids

Sandra Pearson
President & CEO
Habitat for Humanity of Michigan

Robert Campau
President & CEQ
Michigan Association of Realtors

Michael Stoskopf
CEO
Home Builders Assoc of S.E. Michigan

Yarrow Brown
Executive Director
Housing North

Bob O’Hara
Executive Officer

Home Builders Assoc of the Grand Traverse Area

Ernest Werth
Executive Director
Blue Water Habitat for Humanity

Ted Fines
Executive Director

Habitat for Humanity Northeast Michigan

Ann MacGregor
Executive Director
Habitat for Hurnanity of Hiawathaland



Susie Mulvaney
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Jackson

Sue Schurman
Executive Officer
Lakeshore Home Builders Association

Sarah Foster
Executive Officer

Home Builders Association of the Upper Peninsula

Jeff Tafel
CEQ

Home Builders Association of Western Michigan

Michelle Revette
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Saginaw

Andrea Salemi
Executive Officer
Ann Arbor Area Home Builders Association

Samantha Adcock
Executive Officer
Bay County Home Builders Association

Lisa Sears
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Flint

Wendy Knox
Executive Director
Habitat for Humanity of Lenawee County

Wendy Irvin
Executive Director
Habitat for Humanity Grand Traverse Region

Bev Thiel
Executive Director
Habitat for Humanity of Kent County

Don Wilkinson
Executive Director
Lakeshore Habitat for Humanity

Stephanie Osterland
CEO
Habitat for Humanity Detroit

Vanessa Buhs
Executi\(e Director
Manistee County Habitat for Humanity

Ann Kilkuskie
Interim Executive Direcctor
Kalamazoo Valley Habitat for Humanity

Beth Hanis
Executive Director
Tri-Cities Area Habitat for Humanity, Inc.



Judy Carlisle
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Lenawee County

Boyd Buchanan
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Livingston County

Kimberly Sylvester
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Midland

Bill Kipf
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Monroe County

Wilma Barber
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of North Central Lakes

David Stull
Executive Officer .
Home Builders Association of the Thumb

Wendy Clow
Executive Director
Greater Jackson Habitat for Humanity

Alice Dent
Executive Director
Habitat for Humanity of Western Wayne County

Sarah Ulrich
Executive Director
Northwest Michigan Habitat for Humanity

Carol Weller
Executive Officer
Southwestern Michigan Home Builders Assoc

lanet Chambers
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of Northern Michigan

Bob Collins
Executive Officer
Home Builders Association of West Michigan



e
PORTLAND

STARTING AT
1623 sqft

.

THREE OR
FOUR BEDROOM
RANCH

e snmansounzs

20R
3 BATH

ey O rights reserved. Elkow Homes 2019 Elevation C
iy — P
DINING ROOM ! FREANe |
10 : 11 | o ""-l > BATH
l 1 51 A
MASTER SUITE O
| - rA L —
| FAMILY ROOM A ER ELRY T [ BEDROOM 4 e
~CATHEDRAL GERING— | | 137x1a¥ 0 1825154
[ 157 x 197 L [ Lid J
[ _/\ - = ~abim D wic
! \/ g D
O sarn :
STA;;&‘L%%%“%NAL OPTIONAL BONUS ROOM
wl [LTATT ~ e 0 SECOND FLOOR PLAN
: _ |
BEDROOM 2 > LAUNCRY e —————
108195 LE Sy T s wic [ g x l
A\ B - ,
=R SsIzzzzrzzrsrszes OPTIONAL OPTIONAL
— i i MORNING ROOM COVEHE?DI:ATIO
X

" OPTIONAL

b " CATHEDRAL CEiLING 55
BATH E,' i | 3 5‘9
y {3
B @) FOYER p : p IS S  E———— | ==
: N .

- GARAGE Y oARAGE & DiNing Room | MASTER SUITE

150y 220 i (ADDS ADDITIONAL) & 1045 8% | FAWILY ROOM QFTIONAL TRAY OR

BEDROOM 3 g " 1205240 " 1 | c:.ﬂnHls‘i?;;»\ti g:aslune CATHEDRAL CEILING

109 ¢ 116 PORCH i " ¥ 131 ¢ 1311
. H OPTIONAL
ﬁ | i MORNING ROOM f COVERED PATIO
— Y. Feamsussaasy_ 0 FIRST FLOOR PLAN
L o, i
R L 'r’- : -—

B FIRST FLOOR PLAN N e




Jhe
PORTLAND

Elevation A

Elevation B



-yhe

WASHINGTON

STARTING AT
2665 sqft

FOUR BEDROOM
COLONIAL

e ]

2-1/2
OR
4 BATH

E\/ LAGNDR;'“. ,,l,\‘/ _.'
- 1 waster
i < BATH
E wiG o]
1GEN q
OPTIONAL LUXURY
MASTER BATH
I-_I — | nste— |
< i (5]
wic <] | |
BEDROOM 4
= e ) | masreRsue |
we go| 1ot -
EATHC:] ;..(\\ /\ o | 15t x16! i
NE N . !
N 71
OPTIGNAL BEDROOM 3 N LAUNDRY '
PRINCESS x - ey e {
SuE & L Sl
< Batn Yl
v WG
OPTIONAL e
PRINCESS SUITE BEDROOH 2 —3
16tix 19
; Wb
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

CPTIONAL
MORNING

ROOM
GATHEDRAL
GEILING
1 6%
OPTIONAL
MORNING ROOM

[ ar—

Elevation F

FAMILY ROOR
169z 171

KITCHEM
#4x 17

NOOK
1495151

mJT VEEH L
wﬁ.K S MUD BEOOM
PANTRY age
s -
2
OPTIGNAL K
LW PR
Hixte FOYER GARAGE
1955220
: | SR [ A W
OPTIONAL
IN-LAW SUITE FoReH E
=

e,

TR
TEALT

FIRST FLOOR PLAN



1.%6
WASHINGTON

Elevation C ' ' ' T Elevation D




SEDONA

STARTING AT
2022 sqft

(RSt ERREen

FOUR BEDROOM
COLONIAL

SramatsEn AL

2-1/2 BATH

| ———
e |>
P BEDROCM 4
1%z 708
) "\,
OPTIONAL LUXURY
MASTER BATH PLAN
| sew—] —1 - [——
P e— e — OFYUDL 5K U
| MASTER
BATH BEDRGOM 4
|MASTER SUTE Tax10e
OPTIONAL TRAY G| >
— fcmu;:g;mm&ums—
j o e >/\
L. >
‘ 5 BEDROGM 3
'.;Jﬁ CPTL.OGL EHK 1ni:11s
an BATH
Lan . S EE a g ]
BEDROOM 2 wie ‘ BEDROOM 3
1142190 08197
| m—
j S—————

SECOMD FLOOR PLAN

OPTIONAL SECOND FLOOR
LAUNDRY PLAN

Al rights reserved. Ekow Homes 2019

B

| ey | a— |
OPTIONAL OPTIONAL ]
COVERED PORCH MOHNING
e HOOM
by e CATHEDRAL CELING
i [ St |
OPTIONAL MORNING ROOM / L

COVERED PATIO PLAN

| S — 1 .

l | ve——— |

vt
wip
o FAMILY RGOM 1201310
o &y 1310
e PWOD.
- BM,
o
FOYER
STUDY
1100
2-CAR
GARAGE
214, 208
PORGH
Df:

OPFTIONAL
3-CAR
GARAGE
120 188



Elevation D



CITY OF SOUTH LYON
OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN
NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC PUBLIC HEARING
November 12, 2020
Conditional Rezoning Request RZ#20-03 and Preliminary Site Plan SPR#20-04

Noticeis hereby given that the City of South Lyon wilt hold a Planning Commission meeting and public hearing
electronically on Thursday, November 12, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. to hear all persons interested in a Conditional
Rezoning and Preliminary Open Space Site Plan approval request.

Members of the public wishing to participate in the-electronic meeting may do so by clicking the helow
meeting link or by dialing one of the telephone numbers listed below and entering the meeting ID.

Meeting link: https://usOZW@b.zoom.us/i/85446771733
Toll-Free numbers: (888) 788-0099 or (877) 853-5247

Local numbers can be found at: https://usD2web.zoom.us/u/kcl. bS8z FIV
Meeting ID: 854 4677 1733

The meeting agenda and additional participation instructions are available on the City’s website at
www.southlyonmi.org.

The applicant is proposing an open space residential development, consisting of 65 single family residential
units, located on the east side of Dixboro Road, south of Ten Mi]e/Lé—ke Street, The 34.32-acre 7pa‘réel-is
currently zoned I-1, Light Industrial, and the applicant is requesting to conditionally rezone the property to
R3, One Family Residential. The applicant is proposing to develop the property under Section 102-459, Open
space Preservation of the City of South Lyon Zoning Ordinance. The parcel number is 21-30-126-003. |

)
%"q@. \

Lyoen

* 0 piinget

1§ wosaigy
15 uiBpulud N

2

ET - ———

E Lyen
h"l l R-3 o R"3 o ;,-;érpm; IL
ity peby . R3 .
: R Lake gt . .
_RM-3 §
5]
SITE

taspron | EXISTING ZONING -1 | 12
PROPOSED ZONING RT
OPEN SPACE

Py IO

South Lyan

LOCATION MAP

KO SCALE



i

CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT
City of South Lyon

and
Pathway Builders & Developers, Inc.
(Parcel ID 21-30-126-003)

THIS CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT (the "Agreement™) is made this ___ day of
February, 2021, by and between the CITY OF SOUTH LYON, a Michigan municipal corporation,
with its offices located at 335 S. Warren Street, South Lyon, MI 48178 ("City") and Pathway
Builders & Developers, Inc., a Michigan corporation, whose address is 10166 Colonial Industrial
Drive ("Owner™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City is a municipal corporation organized and existing under and pursuant
to the Michigan Home Rules Cities Act, 1909 PA 279, MCL 117.1 et seq,, as amended, and
exercising all of the powers provided for therein and pursuant to the City of South Lyon City
Charter;

WHEREAS, the Owner is a Michigan limited liability company, and it is the fee title holder

of approximately 34.42 acres of vacant property located on the east side of Dixboro Road, south

of West Lake Street in the City of South Lyon, Tax ID 21-30-126-003 (the “Property”) and more

fully described as follows:



Drad+

That part of the southwest 14 of Section 19 lying scuth of Ten Mile
road and north 32 acres of the northwest fractional 14 of Section
30. Except: Beginning at a point in the west line of Section 30,
distant north 675.5 feet from the southwest corner of the north 32
acres of the northwest fractional 14 of said Section 30, also distant
south <48.5 feet from the center line of Ten Mile road; thence north
70 feet; thence south 89 degrees 46 minutes east 223 feet; thence
south 70 feet; thence n89°46'w 223.00 feet to the point of
beginning; except also a part of the southwest fractional 14. Section
19 and a part of the northwest fractional 14 of Section 30.
Beginning at intersection of the centerline of said road and the
north and south line on curve to right, radius 1535.89 feet distant
418.03 feet; thence s00°24'e, 532.45 feet; thence n89°i3'47"w
198.47 feet; thence n00°55'%e, 70.00 feet; Thence n89°13'47"w,
223.00 feet; thence n00°55'e along county line to beginning.

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned I-1 (Light Industrial) and Owner desires to
develop a single family residential development project on the Property which is not permitted
under the Property's I-1 zoning;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, 2008 PA 110,
MCL 125.3405 et seq., as amended, certain conditions voluntarily offered by the Owner of the
Property, may become a condition of rezoning the Property;

WHEREAS, on or about October 12, 2020, the Owner submitted a Conditional Rezoning
Application for the Property along with a preliminary site plan, a written supplement, preliminary
architectural drawings, and a preliminary fandscape plan (attached as Exhibit A, collectively the

“Application decuments”), voluntarily offering, in writing, certain conditions to rezone the Property

from I-1 (Limited Industrial) to R-3 (Single-Family Residential) with Open Space Preservation
development, and with conditions as set forth in this Agreement;

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2020, the City Planning Commission held a public hearing,
after publication of notice thereof, on the Owner's Conditiona! Rezoning Application;

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2020, the City Planning Commission tabled the Owner's

Conditional Rezoning Application, at the request of the Owner’s representative;



Drafy

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2020, the Owner submitted supplemental information to its
Conditional Rezoning Application, including & revised preliminary site plan, revised preliminary
architectural drawings, and a revised preliminary fandscape plan (attached as Exhibit B) for City
Planning Commission consideration;

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2021, the City Planning Commission recommended approval of
the Owner's request for conditional rezoning based upon the conditions voluntarily offered by
Owner in writing which are set forth in this Agreement and the attached exhibits:

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2021, the City Council approved the request for Conditional
Rezoning and adopted Ordinance No. . based upon the conditions voluntarily offered by
the Owner in writing which are set forth in this Agreement and the attached exhibits; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises hereinafter
set forth, the City and Owner agree as follows:

1. Conditional Rezoning. Pursuant to Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act, MCL 125.3405, Owner agrees to limit the development and use of the Property as set forth
in the rezoning conditions below as a condition of rezoning. Upon execution of this Agreement
by the parties, the City shall effectuate the conditional rezoning of the Property from the I-1
district (Limited Industrial) to the R-3 district (Single-Family Residential) on the City's official
Zoning Map. This Agreement is valid and entered into on a voluntary basis and represents a
permissible exercise of authority by the City pursuant to MCL 125.3405.

2. Rezoning Conditions. Owner agrees to develop and use the Property in accordance
with the fo!iowi'ng conditions which have been offered voluntarily in writing by the Owner as

conditions to the rezoning:

a. Development and use of the Property shall be for a single family residential
development consisting of no more than fifty-nine (59) detached single
family residential units in substantial conformance with preliminary site
plan attached as Exhibit B:



Vvofs

b. Development and use of the Property for a single-family residential
development shall be subject to and in conformance with the final approval
of the site plan for the Property by the City Planning Commission. The
parties agree that minor revisions to the approved final site plan which, in
the sole discretion of the City Manager, do not significantly modify the
proposed development or use of the Property or the site plan, may be
considered and approved by the City administratively without the necessity
of review and approval by the Planning Commission and/or without
amendment of this Agreement and exhibits hereto;

C All other permitted and spedial land uses in the R-3 district are prohibited
on the Property;

d. Sidewalks shail be constructed along the 10 Mile frontage of the Property
and the additional 650 lineal feet of sidewalk from the Property to tie into
the existing sidewalk at 10 Mile and Hagadorn Street;

e. Screening and tandscaping shali be provided on the Property in accordance
the Application documents, and otherwise consistent with City Ordinances;

f. The single-family residential units shall be constructed with sound
deadening (triple-pane) windows;

g. Two by six (2x6) walls and additional insulation on all proposed homes in
the development to mitigate noise concerns from the tube factory; and

h. Except as modified herein, development and use of the Property shall
comply with all other applicable state, county and local requirements for
land development and use, ordinances, codes, standards, regulations,
reguirements, and engineering design standards and requirements,

3. Compliance with Conditions. Once commenced and established, development and

use of the Property must remain in compliance with the conditions of rezoning and this
Agreement. Any failure to comply with a condition contained herein shall constitute a violation
of the City of South Lyon Zoning Ordinance and shall be punishable as provided for therein.
Additionally, any such violation shail be deemed a nuisance per se and subject to abatement as
provided for by law.

4. Time Limits. The City and Owner agree that the following approvals and activities
are conditions to this Agreement and if not completed in the following time limits, the Property

will revert back to the I-1, Limited Industrial Zoning District:



Drobt

a. Final site plan approval within six (6) months from the date of this
Agreement;
b, A building permit for the Project, or first phase thereof if applicable, is

obtained within one (1) year frem the date of final site plan approval;

C. A final certificate of cccupancy for the Project, or first phase thereof if
applicable, is obtained within thirty (30) months from the date the buiiding
permit was issued.

5. Extension of Time Limits. The City may agree to extend the time Imits in

paragraph 4 on written request from the Owner, but shall not be required to grant such request

for extensiocn. Any extension granted shall be in writing signad by both parties.

B. City Right to Rezone. 1In the event that the time limit conditions in paragraph 4
are not met, nor extended upon mutual agreement of the parties pursuant to Paragraph 5;
nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prohibit the City from rezoning all or any portion
of the Property which is subject to this Agreement to ancther zoning district. Any rezoning shall
be conducted in comptliance with the City's Zoning Ordinance and the Michigan Zoning Enabling
Act.

7. Owner Acknowledaments. Owner acknowledges that it voluntarily offered the

conditions contained in this Agreement in connection with the request for conditional rezoning of
the Property and that such conditions were offered in writing. Owner acknowladges that upon
the requested conditiona! rezoning and this Agreement becoming effective, the development and
use of the Property shall conform thereafter with the terms and conditions of the conditional
rezoning, this Agreement, and all the requirements regulating development and use within the
R-3 zoning district as modified by the voluntarily offered conditions and with this Agreement and
that any failure to fully comply with such conditions and/or this Agreement shail constitute a
viotation of the City of South Lyon Zoning Ordinance, and shall be punishable accordingly. Owner
acknowledges and agrees that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are necessary and

roughly proportional to the burden imposed by the conditional rezoning of the Property, and are

5



Droft

therefore necessary to ensure that public services and facilities will be capable of accommodating
the development and use and the increased service of facility loads causad by the development
and use, to protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources, to ensure
compatibility with adjacent uses of land, and to promote the use of the Property in a sodally and
economically feasible manner, and to achieve other legitimate objectives authorized by law.
Owner agrees that the terms and conditions herein do not constitute a taking of properiy for any

purpose or a violation of any Constitutional right, and Owner agrees to be bound by each and

every provision and conditions of this Agreement.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with any agreements referenced

herein, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject of this

Agreement.

9. Binding Effect, Running with the Land. This Agreement shall be binding on and
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors, heirs, assigns and transferees,
and shall run with the land.

10.  Amendments. The terms of this Agreement may be amended, changed, or
modified, but only by written agreament executed by the required parties, Any amendment of
this Agreement shall be recorded in the Qakland County Register of Deeds.

11.  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in

accordance with Michigan law.

12, Authority to Execute, The parties each represent and state that the individuals

signing this Agreement are fully authorized to execute this document and bind their respeactive

parties to the terms and conditions contained herein.



Drodf

13. Enforcement. In the event of a proceeding to enforce this Agreement, a prevailing
party may seek to recover its costs and attorney fees in addition to any other applicab!e_and
avallable relief,

14.  Joint Drafting. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed against or
interpreted to the disadvantage of one party against any other party by any court or other
governmental authority by rezson of any determination or assertion that one party was chiefly or
primarily responsible for having drafted this Agreement.

15, Conflicts. In the event of conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and
the provisions of another applicable ordinance, code, regulations, requirement, standard, or
policy, the provisions of this Agreament shall prevail.

16.  Severabiiity. This invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the
validity of the remaining provisions, which shall remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

17.  Recording. This Agreement shall be binding on the parties and the Property and

shall be recorded with the Oakiand County Register of Deads.

18.  Counterpars. This Agreement and any amendments to it may be executed in
multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute
one Agreement. The signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature

to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date

first set forth above.

CITY: OWNER:
CITY OF SOUTH LYON, PATHWAY BUILDERS & DEVELOPERS, INC.
a Michigan Municipal Corporation A Michigan Corporatoin




By: By:
DANIEL L. PELCHAT, its Mayor Name:
Title:
By: By:
LISA DEATON, its Clerk Name:
Title:
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

The foregoing Agreement was signed and acknowledgad before me by Daniel L. Pelchat, the
Mayor of the City of South Lyon, and Lisa Deaton, the Clerk of the City of South Lyon, on behaif
of the City of South Lyon, a Michigan municipal corporation, on the day of
2021,

I

Notary Public
Oakiand County, Michigan
My Commission Expires:

ACKMOWILEDEEMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

) ss
COUNTY OF OAKLAND)
The foregoing Agreement was signed and acknowledged before me by and
by , both on behalf of Pathway Builders & Developers, Inc. on the
_____dayof , 2021,
Notary Public

Oakland County, Michigan
My Commission Expires:




[ —-
o 15 NMOQYOVH NANY Q¥ou ST B LV STIVMa018 HULSINE SHL DL S 'NOISIANIENS 035060 JHL 03 5V AB ONY 0390 W3 U55W EIDNoN L A¥H 401 LHEIDY VTS 03504024 el
O LI Y I3 40 47058 ‘KOWILY SUQITTING CYet T BT INTVANIVIA 38 ONY LYACA 39 OL DRSO 3 SOVOY TISO0MCUA ONY INLLENE ThF 21 amun Coiou i, S L1 O
UIAOHLIS SYHOILL YA LPINDY SHOTY WA N TEANTEVOR Y A3TNTANE LNIFOT539D dod i FWKE 138 ALY 3141 3 SALYOIS 2A £ Mo/INY _._m_wn,.._uﬁmﬁuw“uxwzwhﬁnﬂwﬂ_ﬁwynﬁ R s e 4 £ + s oo
ANCUO TVILNACISTY SNOISUINECD . *13W 30 I 3000 314 KNOLIYNUZIND SHL 3 INTWLAVAI0 T4 3HL AR SIRWTMINDEY TIY "D J————————
A AT TR O L AN QISOH0A R1XT 65 > TBMOTTY BLIT S8 “EINHVHT HONIW HITAS INIWARTIAT0 0TS0 M0 GFISA 36 0 NALING LIG ¥AMIS WUOLS 6 18N AT D356 0T 30vis BNIEDE
53301 OIS0dGE4 40 NOILYDAT ¥04 TWLLIWATS 804 OI0ATONI NYTd 3dWDSONYT TWNI4IDNGD 335 °1 [r— Dd "
— TTAOISIouGE "CASDCH DNLIKOI LATHLS ON 'L ! F—
ITAVR EEST ATT AR AT LY SO DY BT “AMIORTH 0 1M ¥INOISSIHKOD i 30T TIECHDA Lt
B THLNSAR NI, T ROISIATTANG N1 816794 w 61407 2SS TUNOSTR HILWAL ALNIOD SHUTAYE JHL WORIJ LIWHA) NOILYIMIWTTS ONY NOISOH 105 ¥ " Eu._auﬁﬂxi‘_|§| FRLYH VO TR THUSIG IR
e Loyl *NOILDATICD WILNIISH 36 OL WH04SI0 HEWSL °5 INEESRE ALLTLN QSSTMOU —— —— — — — Ho1 ' Y35 MUDLS OHLISES onm e e e O ——
LS O HENOD M AT LN 8 CHYONVIE ¥ FLLA 10 T . “31NMDA ML 0L G353 ACL LNV WY AD NIV CISHEN b= i e
_ I SLT 3K SIOHE HOH M NV 1 TIVEVA I Yied 255 NI "GITIVASNT ACYRIITY SI HOIHIN NOAYLY# D3NN ATO1Nd 35 0L KTddS 3 Lv > T LS GG —— ¢ S ¢ = 4 —_
SHMVWIONHT TN NIV LD oS azsans — — — ) — B aLim 45 303 SHUSTES
T T NI AT o HHOHL CVELTS ST D e e e e e e e ye—
IVHS WHHNIDONH K 51 B0V B0 QI AOH  H0Z T¥ K40 OAIND T iyt R —— A B0
RV NGRS DF PCHINIA DL 401 S9a¥A AR STEGER]
ST~ STUDY 09 20/ EVE NIO 0 STHOY 62 5m
L Ly ]
s 1 Eoiei Tmons POt it ol
LV TIRAD INTICIAATT 95 MV 6 7= (SANTLIR BRI D ROVAS MadD
NITA ALIHLY S8 T Eﬁﬂwmh__\quﬂxcﬁ._oazdp.g
NI, WLl ES £ # -
NP oD 5 TR ST VIV INEIMOTEAS THLL
s31wa anssl N e oy STEOV 0972 = BONVLITA ¥ 46, 0'H SSET YRRV ST 15N (WoRAL 1
LTS ¥ IA0I TRHARTD 15 TOIOTILLAS T T IV I - YUY TUG ISR NOLLAMYSIA 40 ST 5 20VdS N3O
A TR T SYOVELAS LOT LY VY LS
XHONT L35S HDISAA TDVAS MO N HLLA £F 6N A JTOHS OIEOIDR
2 “TYISLTIRING - 11 -DHINDY A LHAd0¥d DRUSIRA
m w NOLLVIRIQAINT I LIS
2 @0
Tz =z 5 30745 NId0
EmzT
=~ IN
o=
== - lA Y az:ﬁ::g "ROTLAALEIN KV $ALLT ILLN BLY FIHGLS HOA QNY SHEN/ ALATICNA FHL XA RS0 HOL VEMY H0VE GHV BIVAS IR0 qHI0I0NT
I~ a =
B o NOMARIDSHA TVOTT HOVdS NHIO FUVL
e85 =
Sm O
To = o
ra o
E] g m
k3 g ) “
o=
L E
= m ==
F-4 -
M mpe= OININO.D NOLNGLLACHNY STETTEL ALY M KHOLS 30 (N SHEINAD ALYEONA SHLL AT 8511 Heud VAW YV GV 2.5%as N0 Csadosd
g -4 m NOTLIRIDSHA TVOHT HOVAIS NHJO
=
M “ORINNEOEE OL BNTT ALNOOD HNOTY 955.00M HINTELL WAL 00 TEE "M.L0E 1SN HINANL
SRR £ V6T AARE LSRN SONAHL L PV ‘LACO0S TINTILL LA M8k ANVASIO LTI SRSEST SIKIVH LEON 0L BANIL) NGO INIT HLOGE .
LA HH), 0 NOTLIASTRLNT L¥ ONIRNISEE T NOLLIES A6 ] TYNOUIWET LLATILYHON AL 40 LAV ¥ ANV 6t NOLEDES
[TV ra—— ¥ DFIV L4AJXE “ORINNISRE AC INIOd AILL L LT 00'TCE 419, 5N IINTILL THE 0 HALTIOS INAML 8R4 25 T5VH SRLANTA - DLYG R GEEAdNOD 3 D4 SUIDDY T, |
y NV 1L3M - NOLLVOLLSIANT ANAld WOUS, 1

111 PO LAF: §'§H FITNOS I NVLSIT BETY 0F NOLLOGS (VS AC f TYNOLLIVET .
G BTHOD TSAAILLION T JOHT ARG CaAs HIMON LN¥AST TIE NCILIES 40 SN LS Q1L NILNIOD ¥ LV SHINNIDET -
ITHCN FHL AD SRDV 25 HIMON AT (VOd FITW NITT 0 FLNOF SNIAT 61 NOILYTS 42§ LSamHUINGS SHL J0 JNVd IVILL

(F0G-97-GE-TE] GHAN O §F NOIIAMOSad TPodT

5 S5IN TIYD
DI noa suadsn

P zd:.ﬁ.u...nzﬁh.;nm._.«z_._hw -

anos oy

dYIN NOLLY2OT

ALTILLA SS'ANY $51330S,
NO SUY-SINZWE ST AL,
+ ANY INFWIEYS ALOLN AT 228N

* [*anigies eE.duv 75 S1IAHE, -
7] T WD Y ST DNLLSDA
- QMY Dz_n_s.xmu L3IS0dO¥d TV msz A

FOVAS NIO

3¥dS NIJO
£Y DNINOZ A35040Ud
T-I SNINOZ BNLLSIX3

TwILNaaISTY|

NVOIHOIN. 'ALNNCD ANV TDIVO 'NOAT HINOS =0 ALID

IIOH NOAT HiL{lOS

HO SNV 1d 31S

'sajersossy ¢ HUIIOS

wrronlunias PuoRaedom £O3gTILITL 'Y
SN VB B A0 Susiemurd 0L

2711

Sy g b Suuasudig,
sizauduyg mun) Supmsuon




[y

CREL

= g
T naERaD

T

SALYO INSSI

‘NOATHLNOS 20 ALI3 QY 3TN 0} ¥ CHOBXIA]

AWNININOANOD 311S STIH ATI0H

NV1d 9NIaVH9
NOISIAIgaNns ST1IH ATIOH

ALND ONYIHYO

bR TRTG00L
91a SSIH T1vd

oy BurprasdSou| SBYGFELETE

EREK UGUaI e T AL S imuin OnLY

'saeppessy 2 BULI9aUIf

om

X SN~
OhICTILIE ANC LIS
U INIOd 150 0L 919

/

SOSg isg B Suuedudug,
SpzuRug gD Sugnsuosy

iy TR

Tk

1]

Sran g

LR AvAN AuAmwia u




RS-y

R mERa

T

s34y dnssl

NYd 9ONIdY¥D
NOISIAIQaNS ST1IH ATI0H

[ALND GNVYTAVO ‘NOAT HINOS 40 ALID “0d 3TN 0} ¥ CHOEXIA
WRININOGNOD LIS S1TIH ATTOH

LL LI TRm000-)

2lg $SIW 11V
o1a nok ANCAY

D

e 2| Eunsean Bungs oo o) SRRAYLLMPE W
ERAP VEBiyaar ' i D BRSO G2
o7 fsaje[aassy B 6“']33“

L HOBygy ST B Supaaudng,
somniey D funsuon

STIYGHIIT ALD 23 TYILIYA IWIANVED L) NN .=

VLA NV ANACS HELHNONGD

005 D MG TGN § 1Y

B
ARG W ¥ HIW L3000 Aveang 96 b CEYOO) 0 ATIGENGD
EVILRIUY R TVIG BYVAMIS- VB3OS AIBoR00,0  TIVHS SINOF DRLHGS XTviaos -

ONISSOND AvOY 04 Vil dWvY NIVMITLS

5 4AL SATH HIYNIGE

1IVL3d XIYMIAIS TVIIdAL

O B

T LT WS Al L

QY ONILSIX3 NI SUIVdIY ¥03

NOQLLDAS 55040 LNIk3AYd

HiINYS g3iNdNos

L=l IS
29-09 ANV 6E-/€ “/T-1 S1QN
NOLIYHNDHNGD 107

]
65-0F CN

awas

£-3T S101
NOLLYYNDIINOD 1O

ima Fhos
65«45 5101
LAY 1S3 SNOTY NOLLYENOLINGD 101
i L.
T -
llllllll o p— [—
——
R e S
1 S
10OV 334D B |
P
Ty s,
i

T
—l ]

Y

e
235 SNITIRE WA

VCM

Ko 468 L1t
avmu 30enms D3

s
sz S
N i —— LT —
PRk ] PN TS R
—_—— i ——— R
T o
]
i

£ :
83, i
B i
B |
L !
= E |
BAE i
af 2 | |

4 |

FL !

ket

N

NIVEIIE BNV Y

?zi___m,ﬁ

#4101

ATV LOT

0

IR




[ ——"

SNIING M0

/m D S ./ IIVdS NIJO

X NI 1535003 01 918 t—_‘._ __I:I__J y
€T Z1 IT o1 6 w,\ i 9 c ¥
¥1 ==
D 1 il D R e
. Tt i [N 1 i i HE 1o %
sald L L “ o H T i i
A\ ™1 i1 | i i i N ol L] i 111 ; g
Vi WSTR[ i ERRSH ! 1 1 1 il ot _,§§.L E
iy \ Il L HEY L fons ] l_. H “ ,_ H ‘“. .__ , §
30VdS NIdO = - 4 I - L H
$31va anssi
=]
x
3
2 X
&)
. &
32 RN
nm c - . i
= b 4 ' 111
L& u —_— | 1 il
BE = , i
3EE Hi
o35 ——p= | e
Mﬂ IAS o lNI“I Ewﬁ% LA
Mu.m -c _ | _ . , /Msw.::m.: TRTw REToE ne,
5 "@ ' ' b . Ftss]l - e e %mm
2 B3 [T 1 e i
m £ =z - b ' | h \ K , El m_
ZZ =< o 1 ’ e 380
o0& - _ / . T ErEa
5 @ f /4 2 - o : SdUIV Z1°¢ bl a0 mwm it ;
1 o ! , v A N S S . IDVdS N3JO Hvd £ \L 3
[ ' = A e, ] ¢ - : ; ¢
I Z| 7 onvuam, A TN e ki : 25
2 .+ do3Daaxs : et el
Y b ' ¢ e \ o e N/w. -_..w [ 5 T LE “w.n
| Y 4 m” % e Yy aasd sureme s e LT FpE
[T Xi} A RS RN P AN Y i s O A
3 - X By IR e - = m
VYo 3 ; e ,\\m.m\\\“ r _@H

O — |

1
!
i
|
1
]
1
|

NN TR 0D
] A |

|

) T W

| S G —— e Z NP < P i
N & TN N oL ..
tregning) ey R
I~ aGar _ e )
= o

] _.u..H,%n i

-
-
-
-
o™
\

] o
e
il
) Aw.

nh s
¥ ,_\»%Wa\m

| i : | N -
auike]

- ANTWASWH RN T A0 | ! . | - | I [

WM W IRKIT O RIS 1Ty aaouf

EF 'SIWIV BOHTT -+ - 1 - 0 -«
2= 1 A0VdS N3dO, U

Ee\

iy

A i
T iy

- =~
: (30ta] vasy Ny
' [ omUIE R 'y,

AT S s o Sop | ST LLENZ I

CAEER VNN Ay ik *920 RIS OD2D

‘saje|o0s8Yy R ﬁul'la

M

By g v Suusaundu,
saaurug i Sunpnsuoy

i ' | . ' 1 - S e KT aA

MAwiUws Y vty Aunnure




i

10 M1t

OPEN SPACE

E'ROAD
E STREET

Consuiting Civil Engineers
“Enginesring A Better Michigan™

Jineering e associates, LLe

HEFORE ¥OU 0IG
CALL MI5SS DIG
1-A00-183T171

TS EX EDGE OF
. 1 WETLAND
A,
P+

oy

- WEST LAKE

HOLLY HILLS SITE CONDOMINIUM
DIXEORO & 10 MELE RD, CITY OF SOUTH LYON, DAKLAND CNTY)

HOLLY HILLS SUBDIVISION

UTILITY PLAN

A w1 62 eyt o
RETRICTICHe MAD

are ra

[ ——




ALND NVIHYO "NOATHLNOR 40 ALID 'ad 3TIW 0} 7 0HOEXIY
WNININOAROD LIS $T7IH ATToH

AVTYIAO LNIW4OTIAIA
NOISIAITENS ST11IH ATTOH

W o igsae g NOAIO R (AYTT ) LUPE
EAERP UEBAIn 4T AU ‘BRI drobeimise Q0K

1.800-482.7471

 undzypy ey v Suumaudug,
SaFTAUT 4Ty Funnsua

BEFORE YU DIG

CALL MISS MG
ISSUE DATES




SOUTH LYON POLICE DEPARTMENT

Christopher J, Sovik

Memorandum

To: Paul Zelenak, City Manager
From: Chief Christopher J. Sovik
Subject: Depot Day — Witch’s Hat

Date: February 11, 2021

I have received a permit request for the above-mentioned event. I discussed
Depot Day with Mr. Larry Ledbetter, one of the organizers. The event is scheduled for
Saturday, September 11, 2021, 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. The planned activities will be
similar to those of prior Depot Days.

The planned event should cause little or no disruption to normal traffic in the area,
and no street closures are necessary. The Police Department will monitor the event and
provide support, as necessary. Therefore, I have approved the request and have so
notified the organizer. I have attached a copy of the approved application and packet for
your information.
ec: L. Douglas Baaki

Lisa Deaton, City Clerk
Chief Robert Vogel, SLFD

Doug Varney, DPW
Nate Mack, DDA



18) 437:045

40*Aygug DepoT DAY

Parade/Event Application
Date of Event: SEPT H. 202 |

S _ 248413 7579
Applicant’s Name: LH'Q‘QY £, L-EDE’ETTEIZ" Phi#:

Applicant’s Address: 1243 Crovis s (gou‘ﬁ{- Lyba)

Name of Event: Depot Day

Business/Organization Name: JOuTH Lo H:é‘lbﬁ ICH JO(’ICT:
Business Address: =200 Do RoHy ST, Sﬁu"m- [ Yo

Business Phone Number: &40 ~ 437-9929 . |
President/CEQ Responsible for Event: ZAWQ}J ZEﬁE&F%@Phﬂ26‘5’~é/3 75 -79
Event Start Time: [QN_C’@/ PM End Time: ﬂ)AM /@

Approximate number of persons attending: 65)‘50

Approximate number and types of vehicles: Cg) Ty TeAtN , FiRE ENGINE,
AMBUBINCE, ANTIQUE Chgs & TRACTORS DoitiAy oL

Approximate number and types of animals: (10 ) Pf/”‘?}\/(éo 600/\' u/@lﬂiSB
Amount of space maintained between all units in parade: M/A /MO PﬁQ/}DE)

Route to be Traveled (Include Street Names and turning directions) or area to be utilized:

The Soutd Lion HisToricac S0CIETY WLl PRoVIDE
G HmES _ANC Ful) ZVENTS AT 7HE 1viee HGE
FOr. _CHi PREV AND AL ES.

o
Pﬁhcarp;{ Slgnitur’ and Date

o by Larhee Tt o
Approved Denied D )

Chief Christopher Sovik &~ Date

VID o nPh o Bl sk cute s P



HOLD HARMLESS

To the fullest extent permitted by law thej(:'?t-('?-l Lron H ISTORICAL 50 ety

{Name of Applicant/Organization)
agrees to defend, pay on behalf of, iIndemnify, and hold harmless the City of South
Lyon, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers, and others working
on behalf of the City of South Lyon against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss,
including all costs connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted,
claimed;, or recovered against or from the City of South Lyon by reason of personal
injury, including bodily injury or death and/or property damage, including loss of use
thereof, which arises out of, or Is in any way connected or associated with this event,

///2 Zo Zo
Date

2/2 /202 Q/F%




815005 1207 &

Ytie39j50os




Mwulll'llll__ bl
5 : .

¥,
=

G -
4 . et d
s/ﬁ 11 ,z/s. W\ Y owa.m .
i

i = Fareeriams o o — e e ree 4y

JoyTip DidelstH NoKT  HuNog

Stz )7 pr e )
SOER L



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
COMMERCE

Economics and Statistics Administration
U.S. Census Bureau

Chicago Regional Census Center
Chicago, IL 60604-2948

January 13, 2021

Dear Trusted 2020 Census Partner;

Thank you for your valuable partnership during this Decennial Census. With your support, the
Region exceeded the National Self-Response Rate of 67% and had the highest self-response rate
among all Regions, of 69.8%.

In collaboration with more than 50,550 partners, that collectively held nearly 64,750 events and
made more than 70,450 commitments, you exhibited enormous dedication, creativity, and support
in developing outreach and marketing activities that engaged, educated, and encouraged
households to complete the 2020 Census, particularly in historically underserved communities.

Working alongside more than 2,015 Complete Count Committees, you and our many valuable
partners hosted thousands of recruiting events to hire census workers that spoke the languages,
understood the cultures, and lived within the communities they were tasked to count. Your efforts
also ensured a successful Mobile Questionnaire Assistance (MQA) program across our Region, with
more than 12,819 MQA events that assisted low-responding communities in completing their
census guestionnaires online and by phone.

Together, we ensured the Census had the most up-to-date address file, delivered paper
questionnaires to rural areas, recruited workers during one of the lowest periods of unemployment,
took on a global pandemic through unique virtual engagement, and engaged communities through
Get Out the Count (GOTC) efforts that brought Census staff to historically undercounted
neighborhoods.

Your valuable contributions will ensure critical planning over the next decade.
Thank you for Making It Count!
Sincerely,

ndyuid Ll

Marilyn A. Sanders, Chicago Regional Director
U.S. Census Bureau

CUnited States~

ensus

o Bureau
census.gov



) .

THE U.S. CENSUS BUREAU HEREBY RECOGNIZES
City Of South Lyon - MI

as an invaluable member of the 2020 Census Community Partnership and Engagement
Program. We appreciate the efforts you made in making the Partnership Program
a success and helping achieve a successful 2020 Census.

At 9 A

Dr. Steven D. Dillingham, Hirector
U.S. Census Bureau




